

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • Jared Mead • John Steckler 


   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the Acting City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days 
prior to the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2018-843 


Next Resolution No. 2018-577 


December 11, 2018 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. Recognition of Outgoing Councilmember Jared Mead   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 


C. Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase 


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 







D. 35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)  
 


E. 35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to Contract 2018-
1405 


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 


F. Exploration Park Contract Award  


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 


G. Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses  


(Peggy Lauerman, Director of Finance)   
 


H. Adoption of Personnel Policies 


(Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resources)   
 


I. Agreement for Professional Legal Services 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
STUDY SESSION 
 


J. Historical Preservation Project 


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 


K. City Council Appointment Process 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


L. Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount of 
$1,049,027.98 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Mead and Councilmember Todd)   
M. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $191,483.94 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Mead and Councilmember Todd)   
N. Cancellation of the December 25, 2018 and January 1, 2019 City Council Meetings  


 
REPORTS 
 


O. Mayor/Council   
P. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule   
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


Q. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 238







.
-v.


CITY or /§g_._/,,,. /'=M111 r ek Agenda Item Q?
WA 5 H1 N G T 0 N Meeting Date: December 11,2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: UPDATING THE MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK FEES


PROPOSED MOTION:


Motion to amend City Policy 13-003 to update the Mill Creek Sports Park Fees with an effective
date oflanuary 1, 2019.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


Council Policy 13-003 established fees for the Mill Creek Sports Park in January 2013. Staff
proposes to amend the policy to update the fee schedule in section 4 with an effective date of
January 1, 2019.


Information on a proposed rate increase for ?eld use and light use at the Mill Creek Sports Park
was presented to the City Council on November 13, 2018. During that meeting and in separate
conversations with staff, there were a number of questions raised by Council, which are listed
below with responses.


- Ifwe had maintained costs with in?ation, what would the rate be?


If the City had raised rates in alignment with the Consumer Price Index for the Greater
Seattle area, the rate would have increased to $25.01 (increase of$3.01).


Base Year


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019


Base Fee S 22.00 $ 22.00 $ 22.26 $ 22.66 S 22.98 $ 23.49 S 24.22
Rate Increase Based on In?ation S 0.26 S 0.40 S 0.32 S 0.51 S 0.73 S 0.80


Annual In?ation-Based Fee Increase 5 22.26 S 22.66 S 22.98 S 23.49 3 24.22 S 25.01


Increase Over Base Year 3 0.26 S 0.66 S 0.98 S 1.49 S 2.22 $ 3.01


o Are /here any cost savings fromnew LED lights?


Snohomish PUD reviewed our initial proposed lighting plans and speci?cations for the
Mill Creek Sports Park Turf and Light Replacement Project in 2016, and estimated a
63% reduction in power consumption, resulting in a $6,000 annual savings. However, the
costs of electricity continue to rise; in the last year electricity costs have increased about
3% for both per day use and per kilowatt hour. Staff expects costs to keep increasing.


0 Do other jurisdictions distinguish rates by user groups? Are some user groups offered
discounted rates, particularly youth groups?


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 3 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


The City’s rates are tiered for local and non-local groups, with local groups receiving
priority consideration.


The City of Shorelinewas mentioned as a potential example of a city that offers
discounted rates. Their synthetic ?eld turf fees are as follows. For their youth programs,
the regular hourly cost is $27 and the resident discounted rate is $19. For adult leads and
private groups, the hourly cost is $78 and the resident discounted rate is $64. Both youth
and adult rates may be discounted by an additional$1 during low-use hours. Field lights
are $23 per hour and are determined by a dusk schedule. They do not further discount
their rates. They adjust their fees 3% annually.


Staff reached out to the City of Everett about discounted rates for groups, particularly
youth. They do not provide free space to any group not af?liated with the City of Everett.
Their light fee is only $16 per hour, but they also charge a $25 ?eld prep fee for baseball
and softball.They adjust fees every other year.


Whydo we charge users forFreedom Field and not for other parks, when all parks have
capital costs?


Freedom Field generally has designateduses and the ?eld is scheduledmuch of the year.
Unlike other parks that are open to all and used by all, due to schedule limitations there
are only a few groups that use this ?eld.


Staff spends approximately3,000 hours per year (at a service cost of approximately
$126,210) to maintain Freedom Field and the concession stand facility. This includes
fence repairs, ?eld painting, plumbing, scoreboard sign installation, in addition to regular
maintenance tasks.


How do concession stand costs ?gure into this? Do theypay rent, utilitiesanda
percentage ofthe gross receipts?


Only the Mill Creek Little League uses the concession stand at Mill Creek Sports Park.
They pay a ?at monthly rental rate that is established annually plus a monthly utility fee
of $50 for the months spanning February through July each year. The monthly rental fee
is based on 18% of the previous season’s gross revenue. When revenue is down, the rate
decreases; when revenue is up, the rate increases.In 2017, the monthly rent was $1,435.
In 2018, the monthly rent was $900.


Whatare the user groups and the amount oftime per year that they use thefield?


Outside of the recreationalprogramming on the ?eld that occurs for about 14 weeks each
summer, there are three main user groups on the ?eld. They are listed below with the
average annual hours over the last three years. The City occasionally receives one-time
use requests from other parties, such as the Mukilteo Youth Soccer Club and Shoreline
Community College.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 4 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 3


Following is a table that demonstrates the average hours used by the top three groups
each year, the cost of those average hours at the current rate, and what the average hours
would cost under the proposed rate.


Group Average Hours Cost / Current Rate Cost / Proposed Rate
Mill Creek Little League 976 $21,472 $27,328
Washington Rush 489 $10,758 $13,692
Soccer
Silver Lake Soccer 666 $14,652 $18,648


- Please add Kasch Park, Phil Johnson Ball/"zeldsand Jackson High School?elds to the
comparisons.


Staff reached out to these other parks / ball?elds for their rates. The updated chart of
comparable fees is as follows:


City/County Youth $ Adult S Lights $


City of Mill Creek — Current Rates (2"d/3"’Priority) 22/44 44/65 15
City of Mill Creek ~ Proposed Rates (2“"/3'“
Priority) 28/50 50/65 20
Snohomish County - Tambark Synthetic 60 90 20
City ofBothell 29 57 N/A
City ofEverett* 48 63 16
City of Shoreline 27 78 23
City of Redmond 40 50 20
City of Seattle 15 77 30
Jackson High School** 31.25 76.75 N/A
King County 60 60 23
Average Rates (excluding City of Mill Creek) $38.78 $68.97


’


$22


*Fees are the lowestper—hourrate; Everett also has per—game rates. These are for
Kirsch, Phil Johnson, Legion, Jackson and Hall Parks.
**Jackson High School turf?eld rental rates above foryouth is the in—districtyouth
groups; foryouth groups that are onlypartially in—districtthe rate increases to 576.75
per hour. Similarly, the adult rate for non-district and for—profitgroups is $109.25 per
hour. They also charge a $67.50 park


Current/Proposed Fee Schedule


Proposed increases are in green.


First Priority
City of Mill Creek sponsored programs and events.


Second Priority
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations, clubs and groups based in Mill Creek or with 51%


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 5 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 4


or more of the participants residing within the city limits of Mill Creek. Priority will be given to


groups in the following order:
A. Youth


° Recreation Teams
' Select Teams


B. Adult
' Recreation Teams
° Select Teams


Everett School District will be given priority after second priority user groups have been
scheduled. In conjunction with the interlocal agreement between Everett School District and the
City of Mill Creek, there will be no charge for Everett School District use.


Yo $29/$35
5


Baseball / Softball Field’
$44 / $50 $22 / $28 (20.7% increase)


Modi?ed Soccer Field (13'6% 073%
increase) increase) Adult $51 / $57


(1 1.8% increase)
$15/$20 $15/$20


Field Lights (33.3% (33.3%
$15 ./$20


. . (33.3% increase)
increase) increase)


Third Priority
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations, clubs and groups with participants being composed
of less than 51% City of Mill Creek residents. Priority will be given to youth groups, then to
adult groups.


Baseball / Softball Field, - $44./€50 Y h $51


Modi?ed Soccer Field
$63 (136%)


increase) Adult $72
$15/$20 $15/$20


Field Lights (33.3% (33.3% 25./$20
. . (33.3 A) increase)
increase) increase)


Revenue Projections


Field Rental
Based on data for the last three years, the average income from Mill Creek Sports Park use is
$58,871 per year. Projecting a split of 75% for youth rates (at lowest possible proposed rate) and
25% for adult use (at lowest possible proposed rate), and based on average hour of use, it is
projected that this new rate increase would bring in an average of $67,687 ~ a projected revenue


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 6 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 5


increase each year of $8,816.


Q1 Q2 Q3 94 TOTAL
2018 — hours 572 716.5 409.5 460 2153
2018—gross revenue 9 9,300.50 $ 18,370.00 5 10,749.00 $ 13,800.00 5 52,219.50
2017 — hours 540.5 708.5 438 449 2136
2017—gross revenue $ 16,653.50 $ 19,059.00 9 11,113.50 3 13,478.00 $ 60,304.00
2016 — hours 556 619 528 474 2177
2016--gross revenue $ 17,935.00 $ 18,3000 $ 13,851.00 $ 13,904.00 $ 64,680.00


* Projected for Q42018


Livhts
Figldlights are generally most used in the fall and winter months. The light rate increase would
raise revenue from an average of $1 1,966 per year to an average of $15,955 per year — an


increase of$3,989.


Light use 2015 2016 2017 2018 Average
Hours . ‘ 701.5 900.5 687.03 902 797.76
Gross Revenue at $15/hr ' x 6 $ 10,522.50 $13 507.50 $ 10,305.50 $ 13 530.00 $11,966.38
Projected Annual Re‘venue"at$20.based on average‘, 7 . $15,955.15


This rate adjustment for both the ?elds and lights will help offset the lost revenue in early 2019
when the field is out of commission during the Mill Creek Sports Park Turf and Light
Replacement project.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Amend CCP—13—003to update the City of Mill Creek’s fee schedule for the Mill Creek Sports
Park with an effective date of January 1, 2019.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 2013 Scheduled Use of Mill Creek Sports Park Policy
0 Updated Fee Schedule


ert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 7 of 238







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


SCHEDULED USE OF MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK


City Policy No.: CCP 13-003


Effective: March 1, 2013


Amended: January 8, 2013


PURPOSE


Establish scheduling priorities.
Outline facility—schedulingpolicies.
Establish fees for use of the fields
Establish rules and regulations regarding use.
Assure equitable distribution and maximum use of the facilities by the public.
Manage the limited number of City sports ?elds.


P‘$":“S-*°!‘-’1"


The City of Mill Creek has park ?elds that are available for reservation to a wide range of users.
In order to be consistent in granting use ofthese park ?elds, identifying priority user groups,
specifying deposit and fee schedules, and establishingadministrative rules, the following policy
applies.


1. PRIORITY USERS:


First Priority Group:
City of Mill Creek sponsored programs and events.


Second Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations, clubs and groups based in Mill Creek or with
51% or more of the participants residing within the city limits of Mill Creek. Priority will be
given to groups in the following order:
A. Youth


0 Recreation Teams
0 Select Teams


B. Adult
0 Recreation Teams
0 Select Teams


* Everett School District will be given priority after second priority user groups have been
scheduled.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 8 of 238







Third Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations, clubs and groups with participantsbeing
composed of less than 51% City of Mill Creek residents. Priority will be given to youth
groups, then to adult groups.


1.1 For this policy a league, organization, or club is de?ned as having 8 or more teams
playing in a round-robin or competitive format.


2. FIELDS AVAILABLE FOR SCHEDULING:


Freedom Field - Little League/Softball
Freedom Field - Modi?ed Soccer


3. SCHEDULING POLICIES:


The City of Mill Creek will have preferential use of all parks and recreation ?elds and facilities
for camps, classes, and other special events.
Facilities are scheduled for three periods each year:


Spring & Summer: March, April, May, June, and July
Fall: August, September, October, and November
Winter: December, January, and February


Field Reservations will be accepted in person at Mill Creek City Hall or via email for established
User Groups.


Block Time Users: Leagues, organizations or clubs may applyfor blocks of time for ongoing
league sanctioned events (practices and games) and/or tournaments lasting more than one day.


0 Spring/Summer Applications: (For use March 1 through July 31)
League application forms mustbe?led at City Hall between January I - 30)
To be considered for Block Time User application.


0 Fall Application: (For use August 1 through November 30)
League application forms must be ?led at City Hall between June 1 - 30)
To be considered for Block Time User application.


0 Winter Applications: (For use December 1 through February 28/29)
League application forms must be ?led at City Hall between October 1 — 31
To be considered for Block Time User application.


3.1 Regular league applications (practices & games) for Block Time Users must be submitted
to the City within the above listed dates.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 9 of 238







3.2 Block time users may not book time in incrementssmaller than three hours per day. If
less time is desired, that can be booked as an Individual User after the Block Time is allocated.


3.3 Tournament applications for Block Time Users must be submitted separately and 30 days
prior to the start of play. A tournament bracket must be submitted to the City withinlO days prior
to the event. -


3.4 Individual teams may reserve field space according to priority categories and will be
consideredon a ?rst come, ?rst served basis after Block Time is allocated. Applications must be
submitted three days prior to scheduled ?eld use.


3.4 City staff shall have discretion to resolve scheduling conflicts based upon historical use,
community interest, or other factors. Priority will be given to Mill Creek user groups. However,
the City reserves the right to make the facilities open to a wide range of users and shall make
?nal decisions in regard to scheduling.


3.5 User groups requesting the residency schedulingpriority or resident fees may be required
to submit a roster showing residency at the time of a ?eld request.


3.6 Field customer is responsible for assuring all litter related to their use is picked up and the
site is left in the condition it was found. Site includes: Field, Dugouts, Bleachers, Parking Lot,
Concession Stand Area, and Bathrooms.


3.7 Block Time Users will provide the City, prior to start date, a list of league representatives,
and or directors that are responsible for ?eld use. List to include phone numbers and email
addresses if available. Block Time Users verify that their coaches, athletes and parent/guardian
have complied with mandated policies for the management of concussions and head injuries as
prescribedby HB 1824 (Zachary Lystedt Law).


4. FEES:


4.1 Payment must be made in advance for approved field use for Individual Teams/Users.
Fees are to be paid to the City of Mill Creek.


0 Block Time Users: Payment for approved ?eld time will be invoiced monthly and is
payable upon receipt of invoice. Lights will be billed monthly according to use.


0 Individual Teams/Users: All fees are due three days prior to scheduled field use and at
time of application.


4.2 A $20.00 administrative fee will be applied to approved Block Time User applications for
any extensive block time application revision requests. Extensive revisions are those that take
more than 15 minutes to adjust.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 10 of 238







4.3 If it is necessary for the City to repair damages or clean the premises (i.e. ?eld, dugouts,
bleachers, or concessions stand during the users rental, the customer will incur the
maintenance/repair costs at $45.00 an hour with a one-hour minimum.


4.4 For large events/toumaments the City may be able to provide staffing and/or equipment.
Any additional equipment, materials or staf?ng requested by applicant, and provided by the City,
shall be at the expense of the applicant. Users must submit sixty days prior a Special Events
Permit for each Tournament.


FEE SCHEDULE:


Second Priority:
* Everett School District - In conjunction with the interlocalagreement between Everett School
District and City of Mill Creek, there will be no charge for Everett School District use.


(hourly rates) with Participation Fee


Baseball/Softball Field $44 $22 Youth - $29


Modi?ed Soccer Field Adult - $51


Third Priority:


Baseball/Softball Field $65 $44 Youth - $51


Modi?ed Soccer Field Adult - $72


5. CANCELLATIONS/REFUNDS:


5.1 An adjustment to Block Time User applicationsmust be submitted to the City in writing
and be received at least two weeks prior to the date to be adjusted in order to receive full credit
for unneeded time.


5.2 Field reservations for individual groups are non—refundableexcept as stated in item 5.4.


-4-


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 11 of 238







5.3 The City reservesthe right to limit the amount of play permitted on the ?elds and cancel
permits in the event of adverse weather conditions or ?eld maintenance. If the City closes a
?eld, every attempt will be made to reschedule subject to an agreement with the user.


5.4 The City will track all City ?eld closures. At the end of the total ?eld use time, a refund,
if applicable,will be issued to the permit holder for City mandated ?eld closures.


6. INSURANCE:


6.1 Field users shall provide a Certi?cate of Insurance to the City prior to use except as
provided in paragraph 6.4. This requirement is satis?ed by providing the City with a copy of the
customer’s Certi?cate of Insurance naming the City of Mill Creek as an additional insured and a
copy of the endorsement to this insurance policy, meeting the requirements in paragraph 6.2.


6.2 Liability Insurance Requirements:
The user shall provide evidence of commercialgeneral liability insurance of two million dollars
($2,000,000.00) combined, single limit per occurrence. Such insurance shall be primary over any
coverage held by the City and shall name the City as an additional insured. Prior to usage of the
facility, the user shall submit a copy of the insurance policy declaration page to the City as
evidence of acceptable insurance coverage.
The following must be on the Certi?cate of Insurance:


I Location of activities must show on certi?cate (For example: City of Mill Creek)
I Type of activities must show on certi?cate (For example: Softball, Baseball, and Soccer)
I Separate Endorsement Sheet


‘


I Dates of coverage
I Insurance carrier may FAX to the City of Mill Creek at (425) 745-9650.


6.3 Failure to provide acceptable insurance coverage prior to the ?rst day of ?eld use will
result in loss of permission to use the ?elds.


6.4 The City Manager may, at his/her discretion, waive the insurance requirements for
individuals or groups who use the field on a limited, short-term basis (e.g., family picnics, or
non-league youth teams). If the insurance requirementis waived, a Hold Harmless agreement
will be required.


7. CON CESSION STAND:


7.1 Groups or individuals may rent the concession stand on a monthly basis subject to


availability. A Use Agreement form must be completed and submitted to the City at least two


weeks prior to the date of use. A complete list of rules and regulations for use of the concession
stand are available at City Hall.


7.2 To compensate for use of the concession stand for one month or longer, the user group
will pay a minimum of ?fteen percent (15%) of gross receipts to the City of Mill Creek each


-5-


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 12 of 238







calendar month. Payment may be negotiated by the City Manager to be received as a ?at rate


during the term of the agreement and may be adjusted to a percentage of the gross at the end of
the concession rental. Payment shall be received by the City for each month the Concessionaire
operates the Concession Stand and within ?fteen days of the Concessionaire receiving an
invoice. A late charge of 10 percent of the sum due and owing each month shall be assessed by
the City and shall be immediately due and payable by the Concessionaire if the fees are not
received in full and when due.


The term “gross receipts” means the value accruing from the sale of goods without any deduction
for costs of products sold, material used, labor, or other expenses. It excludes monies collected
as Washington State Sales Taxes. All payments shall be made to the following:


Attn: Finance Department
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


7.3 A monthly utility fee of $50.00 will be charged to the user.


7.4 A written statement of daily gross receipts on forms provided by the City shall
accompany each payment. The user group shall submit any other information requested by the
City for evaluation and monitoring purposes; and shall, at all times, keep records available for
audit by an authorized representative of the City of Mill Creek.


7.5 No user will subcontract outside vendors to allow sales of merchandise without prior
approval from the City.


7.6 No user shall make modi?cations to the Concession Stand without prior approval from
the City.


8. RULES AND REGULATIONS:


. Failure to comply with rules and regulations may result in cancellation of use, forfeiture of fees,
and/or suspensionof team/league from using the park.


8.1 Alcoholic beverages are prohibited.


8.2 Beverages, food of any kind (including seeds and gum) are prohibited on the arti?cial turf
?eld and dugouts. Plain water is permitted.


8.3 Pets are prohibitedon the arti?cial turf ?eld and the dugouts.


8.4 Smoking and Tobacco use are prohibited.


-5-


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 13 of 238







8.5 Metal cleats or spikes are prohibited.


8.6 League Teams may not use ball fields unless pre-scheduled.


8.7 No subleasing the field.


8.8 Games and or practices shall not start before 8:00 a.m. and all activity shall conclude by
10:00p.m. NO EXCEPTIONS. No teams will be allowed in the park prior to 8:00 a.m.


8.9 Perrnittee must designate a ResponsibleParty for all field rentals. This person is directly
responsible for informing team coaches, representatives,and participants of the Mill Creek
Sports Park policy and for ensuring payment of all fees assessed for field rentals and usage.


8.10 Use of peripheral items or equipment such as scoreboard controls or P.A. systems must
be requested in advance and authorized individuals identified in the request. Permission to use
or operate these items must be pre-approved and authorized by City staff.


8.11 The City of Mill Creek reserves the right to cancel any event or to close the park. Closure
of the park may be the result of an emergency, severe weather, vandalism, maintenance, adverse
playing conditions or damage that could cause safety concerns.


8.12 Baseball/Softball Users are responsible for ensuring that individual teams clean up their
respective dugouts after each practice/game and rake or sweep the dirt from the arti?cial turf
back on to the mound after each game. The mound must be covered after the last scheduled
practice/game of each day.


Soccer Users are responsible for ensuring that individual teams clean up the ?eld after
each practice/game.


8.13 Litter Control — User groups will be held responsible for litter left after practices, games
and tournaments. Maintenance staff will monitor and report abuses of this policy to the
Recreation Supervisor. Serious or repeated offenses by facility users may result in loss of field
privileges. Maintenance or cleaning fees will be assessed to the facility user at $45.00 per hour if
deemed necessary by the City.


8.14 Field Lights will be turned off at 10:00 p.m. (unless an earlier time has been agreed upon
by City and user) All activities, including cleanup, must be completed by this time. Please
schedule games and practices accordingly.


8.15 The City of Mill Creek is not responsible for any personal property loss, damage to


vehicles, etc.


8.16 Users who ignore the ?eld closure signs will be in violation of MCMC 12.12.150
Ordinance 2003-569 and subject to penalties.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 14 of 238







8.17 These rules and regulations are in compliancewith Ordinance No. 2003-569 as passed by
the Mill Creek City Council on May 13, 2003.


Adopted this day of 2013 by a vote of for, against, and __


abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR MIKE TODD


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY CLERK KELLY M. CHELIN


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


CITY ATTORNEY SHANE MOLONEY


G:\EXECUTIVE\WP\POLICY\20l2ScheduledUseof MillCreekSports Park Policy.doc


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 15 of 238







WASHINGTON


Updated Fee Schedule for Mill Creek Sports Park
Effective January 1, 2019


Thefollowing feeschedule amends thefeeschedule identi?edin CCP 13-003, Section 4.


FEE SCHEDULE:


Second Priority:
* Everett School District — In conjunctionwith the interlocalagreement between Everett School
District and City ofMill Creek, there will be no charge for Everett School District use.


Resident Outdoor Athletic
Adult Youth


Tournaments/Camps .


Facility (hourly rates) with Participation Fee


Baseball / Softball Field,
$50 $28


Youth $35
Modi?ed Soccer Field Adult $57


Field Lights $20 $20 $20


Third Priority:


Resident Outdoor Athletic Tourmtments/Camps
Facility (hourly rates)


Adult Youth
with Participation Fee


Baseball / Softball Field,
$65 $50


Youth $51
Modi?ed Soccer Field Adult $72


Field Lights $20 $20 $20


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase (Joni Kirk, Director of Communicati... Page 16 of 238







m


.._)
CITY OF Z~l.// .‘Agenda Item #


W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: December 11, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: 35"‘ AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
ADDENDUM NO. 8 TO CONTRACT 2013-1091
(CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES)


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 for professional
services with KPFF Consulting Engineers in an amount not to exceed $15,000.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City of Mill Creek executed a contract for professional services with KPFF Consulting
Engineers in February 2014. The contract included design services to reconstruct 35”‘Ave. SE
on a pin pile-supported slab. Other work included placement of cellular concrete till, modular
block walls, storm drainage improvements, pavement, sidewalks and maintenance of traffic. The
project was advertised and the construction contract was awarded by Council on April 24"‘to
Harbor Paci?c Contractors.


Although the project is currently in the construction phase, KPFF is the engineer of record for
the project. A summary of the tasks included in Addendum 8 include:


0 Respond to Requests for Information (RF Is) submitted by I-larborPaci?c Contractors
0 On-site meetings


KPFF’s current contract budget is $509,696.


Item Amount Purpose
Original Contract $423,000
Addendum 1 $36,752 Additional scope
Addendum 2 $10,944 Additional scope
Addendum 3 $0 Time extension
Addendum 4 $0 Time extension
Addendum 5 $0 Time extension
Addendum 6 $19,000 Additional scope
Addendum 7 $20,000 Additional scope
Addendum 8 $15,000 Additional scope


Total $524,696


AGENDA ITEM #D.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 ... Page 17 of 238







Construction of the 35"‘Ave. SE Reconstruction Project is began in June 2018. All pin piles have
been installed, two 54 inch culverts have been removed and bridge deck slabs have been
installed. The project is scheduled to be completed in March 2019.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute Addendum 8 to Contract 2013-1091 for professional
services with KPFF Consulting Engineers in an amount not to exceed $15,000.


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachment A: Supplemental Scope of Services and Fee (Addendum No. 8)


Respeet’ lly


/
0 ert S. Stowe


Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 ... Page 18 of 238







CITY OF MILL CREEK
ADDENDUMNO. 3


TO CONTRACT 2013 — 1091
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


35""AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTIONPROJECT


Parties


1.1 This Addendum No. 8 (hereinafter Addendum) to the Contract for Professional
Services is entered into this day of December2018, between the City of MillCreek,
15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, Washington (hereinafter City), and KPFF Consulting
Engineers, 1601Fifth Avenue, Suite 1600,Seattle,WA 98101 (hereinafter Consultant).


Recitals


2.1 The parties have previously enteredinto a "Contractfor Professional Services for
the design of the 35"‘Avenue SE Reconstruction on February 14, 2014, (hereinafter


' Original Agreement) and wish to continue their relationshipwith some modi?cations to
the terms and conditionsof the Original Agreement.


IN CONSIDERATIONof the mutual benefits and advantagesconferred by this
Addendum,the City and Consultantagree to the followingmodi?cations and additionsto
the OriginalAgreement.


Addendumto Contract
.


3.1 The last sentence of paragraph 10.1of the Original Agreement is amended
to read as follows:


The total cumulative payment(s) shall not exceed a maximum amount of Five
Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Six HundredNinety-Six Dollars ($524,696.00)
(“Total Price”).


3.2 ExhibitA of the Original Agreement are supplementedwith the attached Exhibit
A for additionalconstructionsupport services.


General Provisions


4.1 Entire Agreement. This Addendum constitutes the entire agreement betweenthe
parties as to the matter set forth herein, and both paities acknowledge that there are no
otheragreements, oral or otherwise,that have not been fully set forth in the text of this
Addendum.


4.2 Original Agreement Retained. Except as speci?cally modi?ed herein, the
Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.


1
\


AGENDA ITEM #D.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 ... Page 19 of 238







_WI-IEREFORE,the parties on proper authority have executed this Addendum as
of the date ?rst written above.


CITY OF MILLCREEK KPFF CONSULTINGENGINEERS


RobertS. Stowe, Interim City Manager Name:


/I s.co¢Mv-:3


Title:


ATTEST:


Gina P?ster, Acting City Clerk


ATTACHMENTS:


AttachmentA: Supplemental Scope of Services


E‘
1!


.m~n..wxnuguw3mmam—: u¢w:n.v$::-


AGENDA ITEM #D.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 ... Page 20 of 238







EXHIBITA
SUPPLEMENTAL SCOPE OF SERVICES


City of MillCreek
SE 35"‘Ave. Reconstruction Project


Construction Support Services


ADDENDUMNO. 8


AMENDEDSCOPE OF SERVICES &TASKS
The Scope of Services per signed “Contract for Professional Services” between The
City of MillCreek and KPFF, Inc. dated February 12, 2014 shall be amended to include
the followingtask(s):


NEWTASK15.0 CONSTRUCTIONSUPPORTSERVICES


The KPFF design team willcontinue toprovide civiland structural construction
support services on an as-needed basis during the course of the construction.
These services willbe provided in accordance with standard engineering practice on
a time and materials basis.


TASKNO. 15.02 RESPONDTO RFIS


The Consultant team willbe available to respond in a timely manner to Contractor
RF|'s during construction as deemed necessary by the City.


TASKNO. 15.03 REVIEWSUBMITTALS


The Consultant team willbe available to review the Contractor's submittals. We
have assumed that the City and its Construction Management Team willtake the
lead in reviewing submittalsand submit to KPFFfor review only as needed to
provide assistance.


Assumptions: ‘


- KPFFwillnot be providing as-built record drawings, as these willbe provided by
the Contractor.


ADDITIONALFEES


Total fees associated with this additional scope of services willbe performed on a time
and materials basis as directed by the City or its agents and shall not exceed
$15,000.00


END OF ADDENDUM8


AGENDA ITEM #D.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091 ... Page 21 of 238







v. )
CITY OF ?y


Agenda Item ii
WA S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: December 11, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: 35"“ AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
ADDENDUM NO. 1 AND ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO CONTRACT
2018-1405 (CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES)


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to Contract
2018-1405 for professional services with Gray & Osborne, Inc. in an amount not to exceed
$99,183.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The 35th Avenue SE Reconstruction Project began construction by Harbor Paci?c Contractors
on June 18, 2018. The project will address the chronic settlement and ?ooding between 141st
Street SE and 144th Street SE (project length is approximately 1,000 feet). The roadway is being
reconstructed on a pin pile—supportedslab that will prevent future settlement. Other work
includes placement of cellular concrete ?ll, modular block walls, storm drainage improvements,
pavement, sidewalks and maintenance of traffic. The width and alignment of the roadway will
not change.


On July 24"‘,Council authorized Change Order No. 2 for purposes of having I-IarborPacific
Contractors remove two 54-inch culverts as a part of the 35"‘Ave. SE Reconstruction Project in
an amount not to exceed $998,500.


Addendum No. 1
The purpose of Addendum No. 1 to Contract 2018-1405 for prol’essionalservices with Gray &
Osborne, Inc. is related to Change Order 2 (removal of two 54- inch culverts that convey water
from Thomas Lake to Penny Creek) as follows:


0 Construction management and inspection service related to Change Order 2:


a. Negotiate Change Order with Contractor and review change order with
City staff.


b. Provide submittal review of shoring, bypass pumping and dewatering
system.


C. Provide construction inspection and documentation services to include
tracking force account work as required.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 22 of 238







d. Prepare Change Order for differing site conditions.


Natural Resources and Permitting Support


a. Collect additional stream measurements in the ?eld and re?ne the
hydraulic analysis to generate anticipated range of summer stream?ow


and contractor use in planning stream by bypass. Produce summary report.


b. Coordinate with City’s prime design consultant to ?nalize exhibits.


c. Coordinate with Corps to con?rm that the stream daylighting will not
trigger additional Corps review.


d. Coordinate with WDFW (Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife) to
submit modi?cation request to obtain an updated HPA (Hydraulic Project
Approval).


e. Coordinatewith WDFW and submitdocumentationfor two HPA
extensions.


Addendum No. 2
The purpose of Addendum No. 2 to Contract 2018-1405 for professional services with Gray &
Osborne, Inc. is related to additional pin pile support services as follows:


Project Management
Additional project management support services are required to manage the
subconsultant and respond to Contractor’s lettersregarding perceived obstructions.


Structure Survey
At the request of the City provide structure survey to verify Contractor’s installation of
structures.


Geotechnical Services (Sharmonand Wilson,Inc)
Additional geotechnical support services are required due to the duration of the pin pile
driving operations, attending meetings and providing guidance due to the installation
method selected by the Contractor. The Consultant’s contract assumed the 504 pile
would be installed in approximately30 days (17 piles/day). The Contractor’s installation
rate was less than 10 piles/day.


With the execution of Addendum 1 and Addendum 2, the total contract amount for professional
services with Gray & Osborne, Inc. on the 35"‘Ave. SE ReconstructionProject is a not to exceed
amount of $710,483 as summarized in Table 1. Additionally, both addendums extend the
contract to September 30, 2019 unless extended or terminated earlier by the City pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Agreement.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 23 of 238







Table 1. Gray & Osborne Contract breakdown (35"‘Ave. SE Reconstruction Project)
Item Amount


Original Contract (executed on March 6, 2018) $61 1,300
Addendum 1 $51,820
Addendum 2 $47,363
Total Contract Amount $710,483


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute Addendum 1 in an amount not to exceed $51,820 and
Addendum 2 in an amount not to exceed $47,363 to Contract 2018-1405 for professional
services with Gray & Osborne. Additionally, both addendums extend the contract to September
30, 2019 unless extended or tenninated earlier by the City pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Agreement.


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachment: Addendum No. 1 to Contract 2018-1405 Contract for Professional Services — 35"‘
Avenue SE Reconstruction Project and Addendum No. 2 to Contract 2018-1405 Contract for
Professional Services ~ 35"‘Avenue SE Reconstruction Project


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 24 of 238







CITY OF -MILL CREEK
ADDENDUMNO. 1


TO CONTRACT 2018 — 1405
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


351“AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT


Parties


1.1 This AddendumNo. 1 (hereinafter Addendum) to the Contract for Professional
Servicesis entered into this day of December2018, betweenthe City of Mill Creek,
15728MainStreet, Mill Creek,Washington (hereinafter City),and Gray& Osborne,Inc.,
at 1130RainierAvenue South, Suite 300, Seattle,WA 98144.(hereinafterConsultant).


Recitals


2.1 The parties have previously entered into a Contract for Professional Services for
the constructionmanagement of the 35”‘Avenue SE Reconstructionon March 20, 2018,
(hereinafter Original Agreement) and wish to continue their relationship with some
modi?cationsto the tenns and conditionsof the OriginalAgreement.


IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual bene?ts and advantages conferred by this
Addendum,the City and Consultant agree to the following modi?cations and additionsto
the OriginalAgreement.


Addendum to Contract


3.1 The ?rst sentence of paragraph4.1 ofthe OriginalAgreement is amended
to read as follows:


'


All required Work and services speci?ed in the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall be completed by September 30, 2019 unless extended or ‘


terminated earlier by the City pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.


3.2 Thelast sentence of paragraph10.] of the OriginalAgreement is amended
to read as follows:


'


The total cumulative payment(s) shall not exceed a maximum amount of Six
Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($663,120.00)
(“Total Price”).


3.3 ExhibitsA, B and C of the Original Agreement are supplementedwith the attached
ExhibitsA-1, B-1 and 01 for additionalconstructionmanagement and inspection
services.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 25 of 238







4. General Provisions


4.1 Entire Agreement. This Addendumconstitutesthe entire agreement betweenthe
partiesas to thematter set forthherein,andbothpartiesacknowledgethat thereare no other
agreements, oral or otherwise, that have not been fully set forth in the text of this
Addendum.


4.2 Original Agreement Retained. Exceptas speci?callymodi?ed herein,the Original
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.


WI-IEREFORE,the parties on proper authorityhave executedthis Addendumas of
the date ?rst written above.


CITY OF MILLCREEK GRAY & OSBORNE,INC.


RobertS. Stowe, InterimCity Manager MichaelB. ohnson,P.E.


President
Title:


ATTEST:


Gina P?ster, Acting City Clerk


ATTACHMENTS:
‘


EXHIBIT A-1: . SupplementalScope of Services
EXHIBITB~1: RevisedProject Schedule
EXHIBIT C-1: SupplementalCost Summary


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 26 of 238







EXHIBIT A-1


SCOPE OF WORK


CITY OF MILL CREEK
35"‘ AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION


CONSTRUCTIONMANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES
AMENDMENT1 — CHANGE ORDER 2 REMOVETWO 54-INCH CULVERTS


The Consultantwillprovideconstructionmanagement and inspectionservicerelatedto
Change Order 2. Change Order 2 provides for theremoval of two 54-inch culverts,under
35"‘Avenue’SE, thatconvey water from ThomasLaketo Penny Creek. Since the HPA
pemiit for the project requiresthe initiationof culvertremoval in 2021 the City desires
the removalof the culverts.The servicesprovidedare summarizedbelow.


1. ConstructionManagement and InspectionServices(Gray & Osborne,Inc.)


8.


d.


Negotiate Change Order withContractor and reviewchange order
withCity staff.


Providesubmittalreviewofshoring,bypass"pumping and
dewateringsystem.


Provideconstructioninspectionand documentationservicesto
include tracldng force account work as required.


PrepareChange Order for differing siteconditions.
2. NaturalResourcesand PermittingSupport


3.


(octcberiil, 2013)


Collectadditional stream measurements in the ?eld andre?ne the
hydraulicanalysis to generate anticipatedrange of summer ‘


strearn?ow and contractor use in planning stream by bypass.
Producesummary report.


Coordinatewith City’s primedesign consultantto ?nalize exhibits.


Coordinate with Corps to con?rm that the stream daylightingwill
not trigger additionalCorps review.


CoordinatewithWDFW to submitmodi?cation request to obtain
an updatedHPA.


CoordinatewithWDFW and submit documentationfor two HPA
extensions.


Page 1 ofl


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 27 of 238







EXHIBITB-1


PROJECT SCHEDULE


CITY OF MILL CREEK ~ g
35'"!AVENUE sE RECONSTRUCTION 5


CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENTANDINSPEC'I‘ION


The project schedulewillbe the 35"‘Avenue SE ReconstructionContractOr’sprogress
schedule.


(0ctober3l, 2013) Page 1 of]


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 28 of 238







-. ._.__.. R...


~ SubmittalRev1ew


'


. _ DifferinSite conditions
;


i
T


EXHIBITC—1


ENGINEERINGSERVICES
COST SUMMARY


35th Avenue SE Reconstruction- ConstructionMunagement and Inspection
Amendment1 - Change Order 2 - RemoveTwo54-InchCulverts


’


Principal!
Project


‘


Manager
R


Ne otiate Chane Order


v


‘2_f'Natt1f!=i1Re§‘om-cesandPei-niittinisajan‘


Hour Estimate.
;D1rectLaborCostBi11inRate Rane: $33 to $57 $33 to $45 $30 to $39 l$3lto $52 $38 to $52 ;
EstimatedHour! Rates!


%


V-DirectLaborfCost:’“7‘
'


SubtotalDirectLabor: $ 13,625
IndirectCosts (180%): $ 24,525
Total LaborCost: $ 38,150
Fee (15%):


V


$ 5,723
SubtotalLabor& Fees: $ 43,873
DirectNon-Salary Cost: .


Expenses(Mileage @ Current IRS Rate) _ $ 492
Subconsultantz


Shannonand Wilson(Permitting) $ 6,777
SubconsultantOverhead(10%) $ 678


TOTAL ESTINCATED COST: $ 51,820


"‘ Actuallaborcostwillbe basedon each employeesactualrate, estimated rates are for determiningtotal
estimatedcost only. ’


(0ctober3|,2018) Page 1 of 1


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 29 of 238







CITY OF MILL CREEK
ADDENDUMNO. 2


TO CONTRACT 2018 —— 1405
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


35”‘ AVENUE SERECONSTRUCTION PROJECT


Parties


1.1 This AddendumNo. 2 (hereinafterAddendum)to the Contract for Professional
Servicesis enteredinto this dayof December2018,betweenthe City of Mill Creek,’
15728Main Street,Mill Creek,Washington (hereinafterCity),and Gray & Osborne,Inc.,
at 1130 RainierAvenue South, Suite300, Seattle,WA 98144 (hereinafter Consultant).


Recitals


2.1 The parties have previouslyentered into a Contract for Professional Servicesfor
the constructionmanagement of the 35"‘Avenue SE Reconstruction on March20, 2018,
(hereinafter Original Agreement) and wish to continue their relationship with some
modi?cationsto the terms and conditionsof the OriginalAgreement.


IN CONSIDERATIONof the mutual bene?ts and advantages conferred by this
Addendum,the City and Consultantagree to the following modi?cations and additionsto
the OriginalAgreement.


Addendum to Contract


3.1 The ?rst sentence of paragraph4.1 of the OriginalAgreement is amended
to read as follows: '


All required Work and services speci?ed in the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall be completed by September 30, 2019 unless extended or_
terminated earlier by the City pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.


3.2 The last sentence of paragraph10.1of the OriginalAgreement is amended
to read as follows:


The total cumulativepayment(s) shall not exceed a maximum amount of Seven
Hundred Ten ThousandFourHundredEighty—ThreeDollars ($710,483.00) (“Total
Price” .


3.3 ExhibitsA, B and C of the Original Agreement are supplementedwith the attached
ExhibitsA-2, B-2 and C-2 for additionalconstructionmanagement and inspection
services.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 30 of 238







4. General Provisions


4.1 Entire Agreement. This Addendumconstitutesthe entireagreement betweenthe
partiesas to the matter set forthherein,andbothpartiesacknowledgethat there are no other
agreements, oral or otherwise, that have not been fully set forth in the text of this
Addendum.


4.2 Origmal Agreement Retained. Except as speci?callymodi?ed herein, the Original
Agreement shallremain in ?lll force and effect.


WHEREFORE,the partieson proper authorityhave executedthis Addendumas of
the‘date?rst writtenabove. '


CITYOF MILLCREEK GRAY & OSBORNE,INC.


RobertS..Stowe, InterimCity Manager MichaelB. Johnson,P.E.


President
Title:


ATTEST:


Gina P?ster, Acting cityClerk


ATTACHMENTS:


EXHIBITA-2: SupplementalScope of Services
EXHIBITB-2: RevisedProject Schedule
EXHIBITC-3: SupplementalCost Summary


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 31 of 238







EXHIBIT A-2


SCOPE OF WORK


CITY OF MILL CREEK
35"’ AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION


CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES
AMENDMENT2 - ADDITIONAL PIN PILE SUPPORT SERVICES


The Consultantwill provideprojectmanagement, structure survey, and geotechnical
support services.


1. Projcot Management


Additionalprojectmanagement support servicesare requiredto manage
the subconsultantandrespondto Contractor’s lettersregardingperceived
obstructions.


2. Structure Survey


At the request of the City provide structure survey to verify Contractor’s
installationof structures.


3. GeotechnicalServices (Shannon and Wilson,Inc)


Additionalgeotechnicalsupport servicesare required due to the duration
of the pinpiledriving operations,attendingmeeting andproviding
guidancedue to the installationmethodselectedby the Contractor. The
Consultant’scontract assumedthe 504pile would be installedin
approximately30 days (17 piles/day). TheContractor’s installationrate is
less than 10piles/day.


(October31,2013) Page 1 of 1


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 32 of 238







4EXHIBIT B-2


PROJECT SCHEDULE


CITY OF MILL CREEK
35“ AVENUE SE RECONSTRUCTION


CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPEC'I‘ION .


The project schedulewillbe the 35"‘Avenue SE ReconstructionContractor’sprogress
schedule. ‘


(Oclcbcr3l, 2013) Page 1 of 1


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 33 of 238







Principal/
' ‘ ' '


"


Professional §


Project Land Field Survey
’


Manager Project Eng. Surveyor (2 person)


V


. Tasks
1


Hours
_ . Hours . Hours . Hours


'
ey


‘


S
16


$35 to $42 f 1


DirectLjab_o_ry_Cost;
1


SubtotalDirect Labor: $ 3,379
Indirect Costs (180%): $ 6,082
Total Labor Cost: $ 9,461
Fee (15%): ~ $ 1,419
SubtotalLabor& Fees: $ 10,880
DirectNon-Salary Cost: -


Expenses (Mileage @ Current IRS Rate) $ 207
Subconsultant:


Sha1monand Wilson (Geoteohncial) S 32,978
SubconsultantOverhead(10%) $ 3,298


TOTAL ESTIIVIATED COST: $ 47,363


EXHIBIT Ce2
ENGINEERING SERVICES


COST SUMMARY


35th Avenue SE Reconstruction - ConstructionManagement and Inspection
Amendment2 - AdditionalPin Pile Support Services


Actual labor cost willbe basedon each employeesactualrate,’estimatedrates are for determining
total estimatedcost only.


(October3l,20l8) Page 1 Ofl


AGENDA ITEM #E.


35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 to ... Page 34 of 238







8o.9s$.n.a
?o?om


m
m


2.3.:
E


a?E
a..E


&
=


u
5:958


58
3m


_w
no.=


=
.u<


m
w


m
a?w


w
am


em
a


m
adam


m
onam


m
m


.$m
.~$


8.3%
;


onam
m


i
m


i
new


.3
3.5


H
?noauw


oum
$.33»


ae?nnm
233%


E
3.


H
5


$68
E


u?m
oum


85
w


ng??
25


..onousra?o
"N


M
%


?.e_m
w


$.S
,


m
m


.w
8.8


8.91;
3.33


E
:


w
5


5.3
E


oaw
zm


85
E


.
.


uunuuE
E


m
».E


oU
U


na
m


hm
? .m


H
$.m


E
n_..wB


um
>


uM
"ad


xm
?éam


I


.
toanuw


_8__£3.3w
an M


m
?a


3
.nzm


E
ozB


z¢


E
ossm


E
N


M
m


m
?uam


?S
...§.


E
0»


3°35
€50


cam
s??u?n


.
..


.


2855
E


3
in


o?opm
o


Q
.35


unum
o


?onnbm
uouoahm


noom
mo=


:o>
<E


m
m


uum
m


oum
.


8o.oE
$-u.§


S
z?aem


aagam
m


.H
m


O
U


.oz_
.zow


.=
>


>azozz<
:w


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #E.


35th Ave SE R
econstruction Project Addendum


 N
o. 1 and Addendum


 N
o. 2 to ...


Page 35 of 238







CITY OF


Agenda Item # F
WASHINGTON Meeting Date: December 11,2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: EXPLORATION PARK —AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with McClure and Sons, Inc. for the
construction of the Exploration Park Project in an amount not to exceed $1,024,944.77.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


In 2006, in conjunction with the development of the North Pointe subdivision, the developer
dedicated a one-acre parcel to the City for neighborhood park land in lieu of park mitigation fees.
In 2016, the City's Parks and Recreation Board worked with staff and several members of the
Design Review Board to develop design concepts. The Parks and Recreation Board
recommended the Natural Play Park design concept to the Council at their regular meeting on


September 27, 2016, and the Council adopted the master plan. From 2016 through 2018, the
City contracted with consultants for geotechnical studies to prepare the design and construction
documents and to advertise the project for bid.


The project was first advertised in April 2018. Two bids were opened on April 30"‘with the
lowest bid at $1,306,228. Both bids were above the engineer’s estimate and exceeded the
project’s construction budget at the time of $600,000. That is, $500,000 as identi?ed in 2017-
2026 CIP (Capital Improvement Plan) and an additionalcontribution of $100,000 from
Snohomish County for purposes ofincluding a new playground structure in the project.


Council rejected both bids at their July 24"‘meeting and directed staff to “breakdown” the
project so that Council could choose to award certain portions of the project. The project
contract documents were prepared to include four schedules that included a base bid and three
alternates as follows:


0 Base Bid (Schedule A):
Grading, drainage, irrigation, planting, lawn, picnic tables, bike racks, internal pathways
and perimeter ADA compliance.


0 I-IillsidePlay (Schedule B):
This is the aspect of the project that provides the natural play theme selected by the
community. It includes hillside plantings, nature play, beaver den cave, rock scramble
and circulation features.


0 Play Area (Schedule C):
Playground parkour play structure, balanced beam, balance steppers, basket swing, at


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 36 of 238







grade play log and angled play log. The $100,000 contribution from Snoholnish County
is for purposes of including a new playground structure.


Play Furnishings (Schedule D):
Additional play fumishings such as manufactured climb boulder and rope climbing play
furniture.


The 1'o'ectwas advertised a second time on November 6"‘and bids were 0 ened on NovemberP J
_


P
28”‘.Five bids were received as summarized ln Table 1.


Table 1. Exploration Park Bids (November 28, 2018)


Engineer's Colzlcurcio Wclwcsl A-I Lrlnscnping &


Bid Item Estimate l\IcClurc & Sons ohm» Construction llrothcrs Constnlction Construction


I1];,I‘(:.:I ITEM UNIT UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE


1 Base B|d(SCI1ed\|lcA) 1.5 5550.13400 $648 39200 5000 000 00 $000,000.00 Sl,0U7.000.00 sl 245.000 00


2 Hillsldc Plav (Schcdlllc 0; 15 $374,157.00 $200,000.00 3292.00000 3386.00000 $180,000.00 $245,000.00


3 PlzwArea(Sc|lcdl1|c C) LS 5149.761 00 580.00000 $124,000 00 S|34.000.00 517150000 S21.-100.00


.1 Added Plav IscllcdlllcD) LS 507,190.00 Sl 14,000 00 313000000 SI9‘).O00.00 sl 5000000 310000 00


Slllxtoml $1,241,242 00 l SI 0112.39200 $1,192,000.00 $1,379,000.00 $1,510,300.00 $1,522,000.00


'I'.'1x10.4“/o $129,089.17 $108,408.77 $123,968 00 5141416 00 S|57.092.00 $158,238.00


TOTAL 51.570.331.17$1,159,800.77 $1,315,968.00 s1,sz2,41a00 $1,667,597.00 $1,680,288.00


As identi?ed in the project speci?cations, the successful bidder was the bidder submitting the
lowest responsible bid for the preferences listed in Table 2 which is within the amount of funds
available for the project. Per the adopted 2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan, the construction
phase budget is $1,300,000. This includes a $100,000 contribution by Snohomish County for a
new playground structure.


Table 2. Exploration Park Basis of Award


Funding


Ranking Schedules Total Cost


Preference 1 A B C D $1,150,800.77


Preference 2 A B C $1,024,944.77


Preference 3 A C D $930,000.77


Preference 4 A C $804,144.77


Preference 5 A B $936,624.77


Preference 6 A $715,824.77


Staff has received a scope and fee from KPFF Consulting Engineers for construction
administration to include review of contractor materials submittals, inspection, monitor
construction progress and process contract payment requests. Their construction administration
fee is $1 15,924. Additionally, MIG/SVR will need to be retained for design support services


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 37 of 238







during construction. Hence, the total estimated construction cost is $1,253,939.25 as shown in
Table 3.


Table 3. Construction Phase Total Cost Estimate
Item Contract Amount


1 McClure and Sons, Inc. *$1,024,944.77
2 KPFF 513115,924
3 Contingency $1 13,994.48


Total $1,253,939.25
*Schedule D (Play Furnishings) not included.


The total construction contract time is 100 working days and construction is planned to begin in
Spring 2019 when temperatures are more conducive for grading and excavation. Staff has
checked references and information included in the supplemental bidder responsibility forms and
has confirmed that McClure and Sons, Inc. is the lowest responsible bidder.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the City Manager, to execute a contract with McClure and Sons, Inc. for construction
of the Exploration Park Project in an amount not to exceed $1,024,944.77 to include Schedule A
(Base Bid), Schedule B (Hillside Play) and Schedule C (Play Area).


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachment: Contract 2018-X Construction Contract —McClureand Sons, Inc.


/ nterim City Manager


Please note that because this is a construction project the contract itsel/"consistsofthe contract


document that incorporates the call for bids, the contractor ’sproposal, including bid schedules,
informationrequired ofbidder, proposal bond and all required certificatesand affidavits, the
performance bond, the Public WorksPayment Bond, the contract provisions included within the
bid package, the plans and specifications, addendums andfuturechange orders. The entire
package has been reviewed by sta?’,our consulting engineers and City Attorney 's O?ice prior to


bid. Due to the size and technical nature ofthese documents, they are not included as part of
this agenda item,‘ however, the contract template included in the bid package that incorporates
the aforementioneddocuments is included as a reference.When the contract isformally
authorized by Council, the staff consulting engineers and contractor will ejfectuate the various
provisions ofthe documents.


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 38 of 238







CONTRACT


THIS AGREEMENT is enteredinto byand betweenthe
(hereinafter called the Contracting


Agency) and (hereinafter called the
Contractor).


The ContractingAgency and the Contractoragree as follows:


ARTICLE 1. WORK.


Theproposedproject will construct improvementsto the existingpark to provide
amenitieson a scale typicalof a neighborhoodpark. The existingparkingfor the park
will remain and no additionalparkingis proposed. After an extensivepublic involvement
process, the Parks and RecreationBoard recommended,and the City Council adopteda
conceptualnatural playpark design. Thisproject’s improvementswill include a new
concrete walking path aroundthe parkperimeterand to the top of a new earthenberm,
naturalplay features like large logs, climbingrocks,a tunnel through a berm and a slide
built into the berm,park benches,new shadetrees, and maintainroughlyhalf the park
area as an open informalplay lawn. Work includessite demolition,site grading,storm
drainageutilities,lawnand play area underdrains,concrete paths, ADA ramps, ADA
routes of travel, ADA plazas, site play furnishings, custom shotcretefeatures,wood ?ber
and rubber safety surfacing, and landscapeimprovementsincludingplantings,design-


. build irrigation, signage andmiscellaneous items as further shown,described,and
indicatedin the Contract Documents.


ARTICLE 2. CONTRACT TIME.


The Contractor shall physicallycomplete the Work within 100 Working days (the
PhysicalCompletionDate).


ARTICLE 3. LIQUIDATEDDAMAGES.


The Contracting Agency and the Contractor recognize that time is ofthe essence and that
the ContractingAgency willsuffer ?nancial loss if the Work is not completedwithin the
time, plus any extensions thereof, allowed in accordance with the Contract. They also
recognize the inconvenience,expense, and difficultiesinvolved in a legal proceeding to
prove the actual loss sufferedby the Contracting Agency if the Work is not completed
within the time allowed in the Contract. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such
proof, the Contracting Agency and the Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for
delay, and not as a penalty, the Contractor shall pay the Contracting Agency in
accordancewith Section 1-08.9 of the Standard Speci?cations for each working day
beyondthe PhysicalCompletion Date that the Contractor achievesphysical completion
of the Work.


A A-1
827476.l/01445500065


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 39 of 238







AGREEMENT - Continued


ARTICLE 4. CONTRACTPRICE.


The Contracting Agency shall pay the Contractor the amount(s) set forth in the Proposal
(in UnitedStates dollars)for completionof the Work in accordancewith the Contract.


ARTICLE 5. CONTRACT.


The Contract, whichcomprisesthe entire agreement betweenthe ContractingAgency and
-theContractorconcerningthe Work, consistsof the following:


H


0 ThisAgreement;


0 TheCallfor Bids;


0 The Contractor’sProposalincludingthe bid, bidschedule(s),infonnation
required of bidder, Proposal bond, and all required certificates and
a?idavits;


0 The PerformanceBond and the Public WorksPaymentBond;


0 The Contract Provisions,dated 11/5/2018, including the 2016 WSDOT
StandardSpeci?cationas referenced;


0 The Plans (or drawings) consistingof ~ sheets, as listedin the
indexon sheet G0.0 of the Plans;


0 Addenda numbers , inclusive;and


0 Change Orders issued after the effective date of this Agreement.


Thereare no Contract Documents otherthan those listed in this Article5. The Contract
may be amendedonly inwriting by Change Order as providedin the Contract.


ARTICLE 6: MISCELLANEOUS.


For purpose of defending any work place injury claims by employeesof the Contractor
and Subcontractors, the Contractor waives any immunity granted under the State
IndustrialInsurance Law, RCW Title 51. This waiver has been speci?cally negotiated
between the parties and is hereby acknowledged by the Contractor.


(Contractor’sinitials)


The Contractor shall not assign any rights under or interestsin the Contract, includingbut
not limited to rights to payment, without the prior written consent of the Contracting


- A-2
827476.1/01445500065


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 40 of 238







PERFORMANCE BOND
to City of Mill Creek, WA


BondNo.


The CITY OF MILL CREEK, Washington, (City) has awardedto (Principal), a
contract for the construction of the project designatedas EXPLORATION PARK, ProjectNo. 17-PARK-03, in
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, Washington(Contract), and saidPrincipalis requiredto furnisha bondfor performance
of all obligationsunderthe Contract


The Principal,and (Surety),a corporation,organizedunder the laws of
the State of and licensedto do businessin the State of Washingtonas surety andnamedin the
current list of “Surety CompaniesAcceptablein FederalBonds” as publishedin the FederalRegister by the Audit
Stat?Bureau ofAccounts,U.S. Treasury Dept., arejointly and severally held andfirmlyboundto the City, in the sum
of US Dollars ($ ) Total Contract
Amount,subjectto the provisionsherein.


This statutory performance bond shall become null and void, if and when the Principal, its heirs, executors,
administrators,successors, or assigns shallwell and faithfullyperformall of the Principal’sobligationsunder the
Contractand ful?llall the terms and conditionsof all duly authorizedmodi?cations,additions,and changesto said
Contract that may hereafter be made, at the time and in the manner’thereinspeci?ed;and if such.performance-
obligationshavenot beenful?lled, thisbondshallremainin full force andeffect.


The Surety for value receivedagrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the
Contract,the specificationsaccompanyingthe Contract, or to the work to be performed under the Contract shall in
any way affect its obligationon this bond,and waivesnoticeof any change, extensionoftime,alterationor addition
tothe tenns of the Contract or the workperformed.TheSurety agrees that modi?cationsandchangesto the terms’and
conditionsof the Contract that increasethe total amount to be paid the Principal shall automaticallyincreasethe
obligationof the Surety on this bond andnoticeto Surety is not requiredfor suchincreasedobligation.


Thisbondmay be executedin two (2) original counterparts, andshallbe signedby theparties’dulyauthorizedof?cers.
Thisbondwillonly be acceptedif it is accompaniedby a ?illy executedand originalpower of attorney for theofficer
executing on behalfof the surety.


PRINCIPAL SURETY


DT _j_——Tm


————j—'-wjl PrintedName


— Title


Name, address,andtelephoneof local office/agentof Surety Company is:


Approvedas to form:


City Attorney, City of Mill Creek Date


nor Form 272-602».1517


8/2012 B-1


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 41 of 238







PUBLIC WORKS PAYNLENTBOND
to City of Mill Creek, WA


BondNo.


The CITY OF MILL CREEK, Washington, (City or County) has awarded to
(Principal),a contract for the constructionof the projectdesignated as EXPLORATION PARK, Project No. 17-
PARK-03, in SNOHOMISI-ICOUNTY, Washington(Contract),and said Principalis requircdunder the terms of ~


that Contract to furnish a payment bond in accordwithTitle 39.08RevisedCodeof Washington (RCW) and (where
applicable)60.28RCW.


ThePrincipal,and (Surety),a corporationorganizedunderthe lawsof the
State of and licensed to do businessin the State of Washingtonas surety and named in the
current list‘of “Surety CompaniesAcceptablein FederalBonds” as published in the FederalRegister by the Audit
Sta?’Bureau of Accounts,U.S. Treasury Dept., arejointlyand severallyheld and?rmly bound to the City, in the sum
of US Dollars (3 ) Total Contract
Amount,subject to the provisionsherein.


Thisstatutory payment bondshall becomenullandvoid,if and whenthePrincipal,itsheirs,executors, administrators,
successors,or assignsshallpay all persons in accordancewithRCW Titles39.08and 39.12 including'allworkers,
laborers,mechanics,subcontractors,and materialmen, and all persons who shall supply such contractor or
subcontractorwithprovisionsand suppliesfor the carryingon of suchwork;and if such payment obligationshave not
been?il?lled, this bondshallremainin full forceand effect.


The Surety for value receivedagrees that no change, extensionof time, alterationor additionto the terms of the
Contract,the speci?cations accompanyingthe Contract, or to the work to be performedunder the Contract shall in
any way affect its obligationon this bond,except as providedherein,and waives noticeof any change, extensionof


V


time,alterationor additionto the terms of the Contractor the workperformed.TheSurety agrees that modi?cations
and changes to the terms and conditionsof the Contract that increasethe total amount to be paid thePrincipal shall
automaticallyincreasetheobligationof the Surety on this bondandnoticeto Surety is not requiredfor such increased
obligation.


Thisbondmaybeexecutedin two (2)originalcounterparts,andshallbesignedbytheparties’dulyauthorizedof?cers.
Thisbondwillonly be acceptedif it is accompaniedbya fully executedandoriginalpower of attorney for the officer
executingon behalfofthesurety.
PRINCIPAL SURETY


**:3§T '


j_: PrintedName


-:—:j—-W Title


Name, address,and telephoneof local office/agent of Surety Company is:


Approvedas toform:


City Attorney, City of MillCreek Date


DOTFonn 272-003AEF '


s/2012 B-2


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Exploration Park Contract Award (Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Wor... Page 42 of 238







 
Agenda Item #:  G 


Meeting Date: December 11, 2018 


 


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY 
City of Mill Creek, Washington 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  ORDINANCE AMENDING MCMC CHAPTER 5.04 BUSINESS 


LICENSES TO IMPLEMENT CHANGES MANDATED BY THE 


STATE LEGISLATURE AND PROPOSING MINOR 


HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENTS.  


 


PROPOSED MOTION:  


 


Motion to adopt Ordinance 2018-________ to amend Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) 


Chapter 5.04 – Business Licenses. 


 


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:   


 


Earlier this year the state legislature adopted EHB 2005, which is intended to simplify the 


administration of municipal general business licenses for the applicant and improve the business 


climate. The legislation required three distinct actions by those cities and towns with either 


business licenses requirements and/or local B&O tax regulations. These requirements are as 


follows: 


 


1. Cities and towns may only impose licensing requirements upon individuals or companies 


“engaging in business within the city.” The definition of “engaging in business,” which 


was based on the model ordinance for B&O taxes, must be included in the City Code.  


The definition also sets forth examples of activities that are considered “engaging in 


business,” as well as business activities that do not require licensing.  


 


2. For businesses that engage in business within the city but are not physically located 


within the city, the ordinance establishes a minimum dollar threshold below which the 


businesses are partially or fully exempted from licensing requirements.  The minimum 


threshold of business activity in the ordinance is $2,000, although cities may adopt a 


higher threshold if desired.  


 


3. This legislation also requires all cities and towns with business licenses to administer 


their business licensing through the state’s business license system (BLS) by 2022 or 


through the FileLocal system by 2020.   


 


Cities and towns with general business licensing requirements must adopt the language from the 


model ordinance by January 1, 2019 (RCW 35.90.090). Any city or town that does not adopt the 


model ordinance by the deadline is prohibited from enforcing its general business licensing 


requirements until it adopts the model ordinance provisions. 


 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 43 of 238



http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2017-18/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/2005.SL.pdf

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35.90.090





City Council Agenda Summary 


Page 2 


 


Although the changes required by the state legislature only address a couple of specific 


provisions of the business licensing ordinance, staff also took the time to review the rest of the 


business license requirements and fees and is proposing a couple of housekeeping changes.   


 


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: 


 


Adopt the attached Ordinance amending MCMC Chapter 5.04  


 


ATTACHMENTS: 


 


Proposed Ordinance  


 


 


Respectfully Submitted:  


 


 


       


Robert S. Stowe 


Interim City Manager 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 44 of 238







{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 1 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2018-________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 5.04 
RELATING TO BUSINESS LICENSES; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  


 
 


WHEREAS, in the 2017 session, the State Legislature passed Engrossed House Bill (EHB) 


2005, now codified as Chapter 35.90 RCW, requiring Washington cities and towns with business 


license regulations to create a model business license ordinance with a minimum threshold for 


when a license should be required for out-of-city businesses and a definition of "engaging in 


business"; and 


WHEREAS, in response to business community concerns about the level of the threshold, 


the committee proposed setting the threshold at $2,000 per year in the city for businesses without 


a location in the city; and 


WHEREAS, the City staff has reviewed MCMC Chapter 5.04 in its entirety, along with 


other business licensing processes and procedures set forth in the Mill Creek Municipal Code; and 


WHEREAS, City staff has determined that changes to MCMC Chapter 5.04 are needed 


and appropriate to conform that chapter to EHB 2005; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is in furtherance of the 


public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City and within the City’s police power 


authority; 


NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, 
WASHINGTON ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 


Section 1. MCMC Chapter 5.04, entitled Business Licenses, is hereby amended in its 
entirety to read as follows:  


Chapter 5.04 
BUSINESS LICENSES 


Sections: 
5.04.010    Definitions. 
5.04.020    Business license required. 
5.04.025    Exemptions 
5.04.030    Application procedure. 
5.04.040    Term of license. 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 45 of 238



http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.010

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.020

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.030

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.040





{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 2 
 


5.04.050    Procedure for renewing license. 
5.04.060    Fees – Time for payment – Penalty. 
5.04.070    Ineligible activities. 
5.04.080    Revocation or suspension of license – Grounds. 
5.04.090    Revocation or suspension of license – Process. 
5.04.100    Sale or transfer of business – New license required. 
5.04.110    Penalty for violation. 
 
Legislative history: Ords. 25 and 93-300. 


 
5.04.010 Definitions. 
Except as otherwise expressly declared or clearly apparent from the context in which used, the 
following definitions shall be applied in construing the provisions of this chapter: 
 
A. “Person” means one or more natural persons of either sex, corporations, partnerships, 
associations or other entities capable of having an action at law brought against such entity, but 
shall not include employees of persons licensed pursuant to this chapter. 
 
B. “Business” includes all services and activities engaged in with the object of pecuniary gain, 
benefit or advantage to the person, or to another person or class, directly or indirectly, whether 
part-time or full-time, except those business activities for which licenses or franchises are required 
by other ordinances of the city, and except nonbusiness activities carried on by a religious, 
charitable, benevolent, fraternal or social organization. For the purposes of this chapter, the owner 
of any apartment building containing three or more rental units shall be considered to be engaged 
in a “business.”  
 
B. Engaging in Business 


(1) The term "engaging in business" means commencing, conducting, or continuing in 
business, and also the exercise of corporate or franchise powers, as well as liquidating a business 
when the liquidators thereof hold themselves out to the public as conducting such business.  


(2)  This section set forth below of activities that constitute engaging in business in the 
City, and establishes safe harbors for certain of those activities so that a person who meets the 
criteria may engage in de minimus business activities in the City without having to pay a business 
license fee. The activities listed in this section are illustrative only and are not intended to narrow 
the definition of "engaging in business" in subsection (1). If an activity is not listed, whether it 
constitutes engaging in business in the City shall be determined by considering all the facts and 
circumstances and applicable law.  


(3) Without being all inclusive, any one of the following activities conducted within the 
City by a person, or its employee, agent, representative, independent contractor, broker or another 
acting on its behalf constitutes engaging in business and requires a person to register and obtain a 
business license.  


(a) Owning, renting, leasing, maintaining or having the right to use, or using, tangible 
personal property, intangible personal property, or real property permanently or 
temporarily located in the City.  
(b) Owning, renting, leasing, using, or maintaining, an office, place of business, or other 
establishment in the City.  


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 46 of 238



http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.050

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.060

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.070

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.080

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.090

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.100

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek05/MillCreek0504.html#5.04.110





{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 3 
 


(c) Soliciting sales.  
(d) Making repairs or providing maintenance or service to real or tangible personal 
property, including warranty work and property maintenance.  
(e) Providing technical assistance or service, including quality control, product inspections, 
warranty work, or similar services on or in connection with tangible personal property sold 
by the person or on its behalf.  
(f) Installing, constructing, or supervising installation or construction of, real or tangible 
personal property.  
(g) Soliciting, negotiating, or approving franchise, license, or other similar agreements.  
(h) Collecting current or delinquent accounts.  
(I) Picking up and transporting tangible personal property, solid waste, construction debris, 
or excavated materials.  
(j) Providing disinfecting and pest control services, employment and labor pool services, 
home nursing care, janitorial services, appraising, landscape architectural services, security 
system services, surveying, and real estate services including the listing of homes and 
managing real property. 
(k) Rendering professional services such as those provided by accountants, architects, 
attorneys, auctioneers, consultants, engineers, professional athletes, barbers, baseball clubs 
and other sports organizations, chemists, consultants, psychologists, court reporters, 
dentists, doctors, detectives, laboratory operators, teachers, veterinarians.  
(l) Meeting with customers or potential customers, even when no sales or orders are 
solicited at the meetings.  
(m) Training or recruiting agents, representatives, independent contractors, brokers or 
others, domiciled or operating on a job in the City, acting on its behalf, or for customers or 
potential customers.  
(n) Investigating, resolving, or otherwise assisting in resolving customer complaints.  
(o) In-store stocking or manipulating products or goods, sold to and owned by a customer, 
regardless of where sale and delivery of the goods took place.  
(p) Delivering goods in vehicles owned, rented, leased, used, or maintained by the person 
or another acting on its behalf.  


(4) If a person, or its employee, agent, representative, independent contractor, broker or another 
acting on the person’s behalf, engages in no other activities in or with the City but the following, 
it need not register and obtain a business license.  


(a) Meeting with suppliers of goods and services as a customer.  
(b) Meeting with government representatives in their official capacity, other than those 
performing contracting or purchasing functions.  
(c) Attending meetings, such as board meetings, retreats, seminars, and conferences, or 
other meetings wherein the person does not provide training in connection with tangible 
personal property sold by the person or on its behalf. This provision does not apply to any 
board of director member or attendee engaging in business such as a member of a board of 
directors who attends a board meeting.  
(d) Renting tangible or intangible property as a customer when the property is not used in 
the City.  
(e) Attending, but not participating in a "trade show" or "multiple vendor events". Persons 
participating at a trade show shall review the City's trade show or multiple vendor event 
ordinances.  


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 47 of 238







{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 4 
 


(f) Conducting advertising through the mail.  
(g) Soliciting sales by phone from a location outside the City.  


(5) A seller located outside the City merely delivering goods into the City by means of common 
carrier is not required to register and obtain a business license, provided that it engages in no other 
business activities in the City. Such activities do not include those in subsection (4). 
 
The City expressly intends that engaging in business includes any activity sufficient to establish 
nexus for purposes of applying the license fee under the law and the constitutions of the United 
States and the State of Washington. Nexus is presumed to continue as long as the taxpayer benefits 
from the activity that constituted the original nexus generating contact or subsequent contacts. 
 
5.04.020 Business license required. 
It is unlawful for any person to conduct, operate, engage in or practice any business in the city of 
Mill Creek that is conducted, operated, engaged in or practiced in whole or in part from real 
property located within the city, without having first obtained a business license from the city. If 
more than one business is conducted on a single premises, a separate license shall be required for 
each separate business conducted, operated, engaged in or practiced. 
 
5.04.025 Exemptions. 
To the extent set forth in this section, the following persons and businesses shall be exempt from 
the registration, license and/or license fee requirements as outlined in this chapter:  
(1) Any person or business whose annual value of products, gross proceeds of sales, or gross 
income of the business in the city is equal to or less than $2,000 (or higher threshold as determined 
by city) and who does not maintain a place of business within the city shall be exempt from the 
general business license requirements in this chapter. The fee-exemption threshold provided by 
this section does not apply to regulatory license requirements or activities that require a specialized 
permit.  
(2) Nonbusiness activities carried on by a religious, charitable, benevolent, fraternal or social 
organization. 
(3) Minors engaged in babysitting, newspaper delivery, lemonade stands, lawn mowing, and 
similar activities. 
(4) Common carrier delivery of goods and services. 
 
5.04.030 Application procedure. 
 
A. No business license shall be issued or renewed except upon written application made to the city 
clerk. Such application shall be signed by the person who intends to conduct, operate or engage in 
the business for which the license is to be issued, and shall state the nature and address or addresses 
of the business or businesses, or proposed business or businesses, of the applicant, and such other 
information as may be required by the city clerk. A nonrefundable application fee in an amount 
equal to the first annual license fee for the business for which the license is sought shall accompany 
the application. In the event that the license shall be granted, the application fee shall be credited 
to payment of the said first annual license fee. 
 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 48 of 238







{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 5 
 


B. If the applicant is a partnership, the application must be made and signed by one of the partners; 
if a corporation, by one of the officers thereof; if a foreign corporation, partnership or nonresident 
individual, by the resident agent or local manager of the corporation, partnership or individual. 
 
C. The city clerk shall forward copies of all applications for business licenses to the city manager. 
The city manager shall cause an investigation of the application to be made by the proper city 
officials and shall approve or deny the license in writing within 30 days of the date of the 
application unless, in the determination of the city manager, additional time is required for 
completion of the investigation process. If an application is denied by the city manager, the reason 
for denial shall be stated. 
 
D. Neither the filing of an application for license, or the renewal thereof, nor the payment of any 
application or renewal fee, shall authorize a person to engage in or conduct a business until such 
license has been granted or renewed. (Ord. 2015-792 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 2008-681 §§ 1, 2) 
 
5.04.040 Term of license. 
All business licenses issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter shall be valid until December 
31st of the year for which they are issued, and all renewals thereafter shall be for a period of one 
calendar year commencing January 1st of the year for which the license is issued and terminating 
and expiring December 31st of the same year.  
 
5.04.050 Procedure for renewing license. 
All licenses to be issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter shall be renewed by following 
the same procedure as required for original application.  
 
5.04.060 Fees – Time for payment – Penalty. 
 
A. The fee for each license and renewal of same required by this chapter shall be provided in 
Chapter 3.42 MCMC. 
 
B. All businesses required to obtain licenses under this chapter shall obtain the same and pay all 
fees required on or before February 15th of each respective year. Any business which fails to 
obtain and pay the license fees within said period of time shall, in addition to any other penalties 
provided in this chapter, be assessed an amount equal to 50 percent of the license fee for said 
business as a penalty for such late application and/or payment. 
 
C. Any business required to obtain a license under this chapter which does not commence business 
on or before July 31st of a given calendar year shall pay only one-half of the annual license fee for 
that year and upon such payment shall be issued a license for the remaining portion of said calendar 
year.  
 
5.04.070 Ineligible activities. 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a license hereunder may not be issued to or 
held by any person who uses or occupies or proposes to use or occupy any real property or 
otherwise conducts or proposes to conduct any business in violation of the provisions of this code 
or the statutes of the state of Washington or any other applicable law or regulation. The granting 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 49 of 238



http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek03/MillCreek0342.html#3.42





{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 6 
 


of a business license shall not authorize any person to engage in any activity prohibited by federal, 
state or local law or regulation.  
 
5.04.080 Revocation or suspension of license – Grounds. 
The city manager may, at any time, suspend or revoke any license issued under the provisions of 
this chapter whenever the licensee, or any officer or partner thereof: 
 
A. Has violated any federal, state or city statute, law, regulation or ordinance upon the business 
premises stated in the license or in connection with the business stated in the license, whether or 
not the licensee, or officer or partner thereof, has been convicted in any court of competent 
jurisdiction of such violation; 
B. Is or has conducted, engaged in or operated the business stated in the license upon premises 
which does not conform to this code; 
 
C. Has maintained or permitted the business stated in the license to be conducted, engaged in or 
operated in such a manner as to constitute a public nuisance. (Ord. 2010-718 § 5 (Exh. E)) 
 
5.04.090 Revocation or suspension of license – Process. 
Whenever the city manager determines that there is cause for suspending or revoking any license 
issued pursuant to this chapter, he shall notify the person holding said license by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, of his determination. Notice mailed to the address on the 
license shall be deemed received three days after mailing. The notice shall specify the grounds for 
suspension or revocation. The notice shall also specify that the licensee may appeal the city 
manager’s determination to the examiner using the procedures of Chapter 14.11 MCMC. The city 
manager’s decision shall be entitled to substantial weight. (Ord. 2010-718 § 5 (Exh. E)) 
 
5.04.100 Sale or transfer of business – New license required. 
Upon the sale or transfer of any business licensed pursuant to this chapter, the license issued to the 
prior owner or transferrer shall automatically expire on the date of such sale or transfer and the 
new owner intending to continue such business in the city of Mill Creek shall apply for and obtain 
a new business license pursuant to the procedures established by this chapter prior to engaging in, 
conducting or operating the business.  
 
5.04.110 Penalty for violation. 
Any person, as defined herein, and the officers, directors, managing agents, or partners of any 
corporation, firm, partnership or other organization or business violating or failing to comply with 
any of the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall 
be punished by imprisonment in jail for a term not exceeding 90 days or by a fine in an amount 
not less than $250.00 and not more than $500.00, or by both such fine and imprisonment. The 
minimum mandatory fine of $250.00 shall not be suspended or deferred. In addition to the penalties 
hereinabove provided, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the 
provisions of this chapter is a public nuisance and all remedies given by law for the prevention and 
abatement of nuisances shall apply thereto. Further, each day that such condition or violation 
continues shall be regarded as a new and separate offense and shall be punished accordingly.  


 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 50 of 238



http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek14/MillCreek1411.html#14.11





{SXM1838096.DOCX;4/05739.000010/ } 7 
 


Section 2. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implement and 
effectuate the terms of this Ordinance and incorporate the amendments herein into the Mill Creek 
Municipal Code. The City Clerk is authorized to correct scrivener's errors, internal references, and 
the like.    


 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance or its application to any person or situation is declared unconstitutional or invalid for 
any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance 
or its application to any other person or situation.  The City Council hereby declares that it would 
have adopted this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, 
phrases or portions be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication of a 


summary hereof consisting of the title of this Ordinance, in accordance with RCW 35A.13.200.  


 Passed in open meeting this 11th day of December 2018 by a vote of ____ for, ____ against, 
and ____ abstaining. 
 


APPROVED:     
 
 


______________________________ 
MAYOR PAM PRUITT   


 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
GINA PFISTER, ACTING CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SCOTT MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:     


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:    


PUBLISHED:       


EFFECTIVE DATE:       


ORDINANCE NO.:       


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses (Peggy Lauerman, Direct... Page 51 of 238







w )
CITY or /—L':___,/,_


Agenda Item #41‘;
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: December 11, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: UPDATES TO PERSONNEL POLICIES


PROPOSED MOTION:


Adoption of Resolution 2018-? to update the City's Personnel Polices.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


An analysis and update of the City’s Personnel Policies and procedures has been completed.
Many of the administrative policies and procedures had not been formally updated since 1997,
and were found to be inconsistent with current practice.


The amount of change necessary to bring policies and procedures in line with current practices
and current state and federal law provided an opportunity to completely re-work the current
policies and procedures to: 1) align them within the respective legislative and executive roles
consistent with state law; and 2) create a format that is easy to understand and readily available
for employees to view and acknowledge.


The proposed Personnel Policies (Policy #400-Ol) provides specific direction from City Council
to the City Manager on items such as Pay and Classification Plan, Bene?ts, and other items that
have historically been adopted by the City Council. It also encompasses items that have not
formally been adopted by the Council, but were determined to have an impact on the City’s
budget, such as Holidays and Tuition Reimbursement.


The proposed Personnel Policies update also authorizes the City Manager to approve
administrative procedures and guidelines through the Personnel Administration Manual that are
necessary and appropriate for good governance, human resource management and required by
state or federal laws.


City Council discussed the proposed policies during the December 4, 2018 study session. There
was some interest expressed to have staff provide literature and information regarding various
performance management systems, including the advantages and disadvantages to linking pay to


performance. Staff will collect the requested information for Council review and discussion in
2019. Additionally, a new section (Section 8.1) has been added to the proposed policies that
describe and promote the City’s performance management program.


Below is a summary of key policy changes:


> CCP 97-005 (Exhibit B) is superseded by section 9.0 Safety. New to this policy is a


budget amount to be used for the City’s safety program (including projects, activities,
awards, prizes, etc.). This is a requirement to be considered for AWC’s WorkSafe


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 52 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


>


Employer Award.


CCP 08-002 (Exhibit B) re?ects a merit basedpay system, which was replaced in 2013
by a step and grade system. This policy is replaced by section 4.0 Pay and Classi?cation
Plan to align with the City’s current practice,since 2013, for salary adjustments and
armual increases.Nothing new is being addedaside from the update to current practice.


CCP 09-001 (Exhibit B) is replaced by section 5.0 Incentives and Premiums. This policy
has also been updated to re?ect current practice in place since 2013. The City previously
calculated percentage of longevity premiums on a matrix which factored in years of
service and overall performance score. The current practice gives all employees the same
longevity premiumpercentage based on years of service alone, provided that the
employee’s performance is satisfactory. Thispolicy also includes aspects of the City’s
Pay and Classi?cation Plan now found in section4.0. As previously stated, this updates
the policy following the change from merit basedpay to a step and grade system. Nothing
new is being added aside from the update to current practice.


CCP 12-002 (Exhibit B) is supersededby section 7.0 Bene?ts, which includes a more
updated and comprehensive summary of the City’s bene?ts offerings. In 2015, the City
began offering a High Deductible Health Plan and accompanyingHealth Savings
Account, which is now outlined in this updated policy. Also updated is the language on
“Flexible Bene?t Dollars.” Beginning in 2017, only employees who have been
grandfathered in to this program (hired on or before August 1, 2017) are eligible for this
bene?t. Nothing new is being added aside from the update to current practice, though this
policy is more comprehensive of the City’s total bene?ts offerings than the prior policy
(CCP 12-002).


Resolution 2003-325 (Exhibit C) is replaced by section 8.1 Wellness Program with no
substantive policy changes.


Resolution 91-135 (Exhibit C) is replaced by 6.4 Donation of Annual Leave. More
complete procedures for this policy reside in the Personnel Administration Manual.
Procedures have been updated related to Annual Leave donation to include the
availability of Paid Family Leave in 2020, as well as fewer criteria for employees
donating leave (Attachment B, 5.2 Annual Leave).


Other policy sections include the following:


0 Section 6.0 Leave and Paid Time Off - This includes our Sick Leave policy which
re?ects current state law that took effect 01/01/2018, new language for WA Paid
Family Leave which is effective 01/01/2019, and the re-titling of “Administrative
Leave” to “Exempt Leave” to reduce confusion between Administrative Leave
(Exempt Leave) and Paid AdministrativeLeave (for investigatory or disciplinary
purposes). This section includes two changes from current practice:


I The addition of WA Paid Family Leave
I Qualifying Department Directorsto receive Exempt Leave. This had been


informally taken away from Directors in 2017. This policy restores the
City’s practice prior to 2017.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 53 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 3


o Section 8.2 Employee and Volunteer Recognition — Expresses support for the
City’s recognition program and ties program budget to the Business Expense
Policy.


0 Section 8.3 Tuition Reimbursement — Designates an annual maximum amount for
tuition reimbursement. This annual cap is consistent with current practice.


The Personnel Administration Manual is attached as a reference document for the Council
presenting how the Proposed Council Policies will be implemented.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Approve the proposed updates and consolidation of the Personnel Policies through adoption of
Resolution 2018-1.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: Resolution 2018;
0 Attachment B: Personnel Administration Manual
- Attachment C: Redline version ol’Policy 400-01


ectfully S ' ted:


/%/
/ obert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 54 of 238







RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING
CITY COUNCIL POLICY 400-01 CITY OF MILL CREEK PERSONNEL POLICIES,
REPEALING PRIOR INCONSISTENT POLICIES AND RESOLUTIONS, AND
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ADOPT A PERSONNEL
ADMINISTRATION MANUAL THAT SUPPORTS THE COUNCIL’S DIRECTION.


WHEREAS, Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) Chapter 1.24 establishes a process for
the City to adopt, maintain, amend, repeal, replace and publicize city policies and procedures;
and


WHEREAS, pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Chapters 35A.1 l, 35A.l3,
and 35A.34, the City Council has the authority and responsibility, upon the recommendation of
the City Manager, to approve the City budget, create employment positions, establish a


compensation plan, and enact certain employment policies directly affecting wages and bene?ts;
and


WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35A.l3.080, the City Manager is vested with the
responsibility for supervising and managing the administrative affairs of the City, appointing and
removing all department heads, officers, and employees of the City, proposing, implementing
and administering the City budget, and recommending to the City Council such measures as


he/she may deem necessary; and


WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the following policies; 97-005 related to safety,
08-002 related to salary adjustments, 09-001 related to employee classification and salary and
12-002 related to medical bene?ts, and such policies are now in need of updating; and


WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution 91-135 relating to the donation of
annual leave, and Resolution 2003—325relating to the Wellness Program, and such resolutions
contain information that is in need of updating; and


WHEREAS, the current City Council Policies do not cover all aspects of employment,
leave, and benefits that are determined by the City Manager to have budgetary impact within the
Councills authority to approve ; and


WHEREAS, for efficiency purposes and to promote the authority of the City Manager to
oversee administrative personnel matters within the City, it is in the interest of the City to


expressly delegate authority to the City Manager to adopt and implement administrative
personnel procedures and guidelines based on policies adopted by the City Council;


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, THAT:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 55 of 238







Section 1. The City Council adopts Policy 400-01 City of Mill Creek Personnel
Policies (Exhibit A), which contains updated policy statements that re?ect changes in
Washington State law and the City’s current practices.


Section 2. The City Manager is authorized and directed to create and implement
administrative personnel procedures that govern aspects of employment, conduct, leave, and
bene?ts that support the direction of the City Council as provided in Policy 400-01 and the
approved budget.


Section 3. The adoption of Policy 400-01 effectively supersedes CCP 97-005, CCP
08-002, CCP 09-001, and CCP 12-002 (collectively Exhibit B) and repeals and replaces
Resolution 91-135 and Resolution 2003-325 (collectively Exhibit C), as well as all other prior
inconsistent policies, procedures, or resolutions.


Adopted this 11"‘day of December, 2018 by a vote of for, against, and
abstaining.


APPROVED:


PAM PRUITT, MAYOR


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


GINAPFISTER, ACTING CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


SCOTT MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


RESOLUTION NO.: 2018-


EXHIBITS:
0 Exhibit A: Policy 400-01 City of Mill Creek Personnel Policies
0 Exhibit B: CCP 97-005, CCP 08-002, CCP 09-001,andCCP12-002
0 Exhibit C: Resolution 91-135 and Resolution 2003-325


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 56 of 238







\)
.4


1‘\‘/'t’ii'1c’:’?“eZai<
i\'.—\.<HI.\'n;T0.\'


Subject
PERSONNEL POLICIES


Index: Human Resources
Number: 400-01


Effective Date:
December 11,
2018


Staff Contact:
Human
Resources


Supersedes: Clerk ID Number:
CCP 97-O05
February 11,
1997
CCP O8-002
June 10, 2008
CCP 09-001
January 1, 2009
CCP 12-002
January 1, 2013


Date:


Repeals and
Replaces:
Res. 2003-325
March 11,2003
Res. 91-135
December 17,
1991


1.0 PURPOSE:


1.1 Adoption of Personnel Policies. In accordance with the City of Mill Creek’s
Municipal Code, Chapter 1.24, the City Manager has determined, based on the
authority of the City Council to approve the City’s budget and define financial
priorities, that the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01 City of Mill
Creek Personnel Policies) related to wages and benefits should be presented to
and approved by the City Council.


In the event that the City Manager determines that changes to these Personnel
Policies are appropriate, the City Manager will so advise the City Council and
present proposed revisions for Council consideration and approval. In the event
immediate changes are necessary to respond to State or Federal law, the City
Manager may implement the required changes immediately and advise the Council
of the changes made.


CITY OF MILLCREEK PERSONNEL POLICIES


Approved By and


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 57 of 238







1.2


1.3


Personnel Administration Manual. The City Manager is authorized to, based on the
direction provided by the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01 City of
MillCreek Personnel Policies), approve administrative procedures and guidelines
as required for the good governance and human resource management of the City
and as may otherwise be required by State or Federal law. Any time this policy
(400-01) is updated, the City Manager shall also provide to the City Council the
updated section(s) of the Personnel Administration Manual as a reference
document. At no time shall the Personnel Administration Manual be inconsistent
with the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01).


Collective Bargaining Agreements. The City Council may authorize policies or
procedures which are inconsistent with this policy (400-01) for positions in a
bargaining unit through the collective bargaining process. These alternative
policies or procedures willbe documented in the applicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA). In the event of any inconsistency between this policy and a
CBA, the CBA will supersede the policy statement for represented employees
covered under that CBA.


2.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:


All City departments/divisions.


3.0 EMPLOYMENT STATUS:


3.1


3.2


3.3


3.4


3.5


Allemployees have a designated employment status which is used to determine
pay, benefits, and other eligibility. The following four employment statuses are
referred to throughout this policy.


Casual. An employee hired to work on an intermittent or as-needed basis, or is
regularly scheduled to work less than twenty (20) hours per week.


Fu||—Time Regular. An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of time
and regularly scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours per week.


Part-Time Regular. An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of
time and regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week and less
than forty (40) hours per week.


Temporary. An employee hired to filla position with a defined end date. The length
of a temporary position willgenerally not exceed six (6) months.


4.0 PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN:


4.1 All employee positions are subject to available funding. The City Council shall
establish, through approval of the City’s biennial budget, salary grades,
corresponding pay range assignments, and authorized full~timeequivalent (FTE)
count for all positions within the City. This shall include approval of any cost of


2


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 58 of 238







4.2


4.3


4.4


4.5


4.6


4.7


4.8


living increases to be applied on January 15‘of each year not previously approved,
such as during union contract negotiations.


Each salary grade in the current salary plan shall be placed at 5% above the grade
below it. Each step within a salary grade shall be placed at 4% above the step
below it.


Annually the City Council shall consider adjustments to position classifications
and/or the assignment of salary grades to positions to be effective January 15*of
each year based on the recommendation of the City Manager.


The City Manager in conjunction with Human Resources shall determine the
appropriate placement of personnel within those salary ranges as well as the
progression within a certain salary range or grade. For represented employees,
the City Manager’s decision shall be in line with all applicable clauses of that
emp|oyee’s contractual bargaining agreement. No employee shall be placed in-
between steps in their assigned grade.


If it becomes necessary to reclassify a position mid-year, the City Council may,
with the City Manager’s recommendation, approve a mid-year adjustment to a
position's salary grade. Mid-year adjustments to a position's assigned salary grade
must be supported in the biennial budget.


No employee shall earn less than the bottom step of the approved salary grade for
their position (excluding incentives and premiums). Employees earning less than
the bottom of their current salary grade shall have their wages adjusted to no less
than the bottom of the salary range. This may occur in situations such as
promotions or position reclassi?cations.


No employee shall earn more than the top step of the approved salary grade for
their position (excluding incentives and premiums). Employees earning more than
the top step of their current salary grade shall have their wages adjusted to fall
within the range of their position's salary grade. This may occur in situations such
as demotions or position reclassifications.


In cases where a reclassi?cation, demotion, or other action causes an employee's
pay to fall above the approved salary grade for their position, excluding incentives
and premiums, the City Manager may approve freezing that emp|oyee’s salary at
its current rate above the approved salary grade subject to the City's approved
budget. In this case, the employee will not be eligible for any annual increase or
cost of living increase until their current salary falls within the approved salary
grade for their position.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 59 of 238







5.0 INCENTIVES AND PREMIUMS:


5.1


5.2


5.3


As a retention strategy, and to acknowledge long term employees for their years
of service to the City, the City Council authorizes longevity premiums awarded to
employees commencing on the seventh (7"‘)anniversary of their hire date, and at
certain other milestone anniversary dates, provided that their work performance
maintains an acceptable level, according to the schedule below:


Longevity Premium
rovided erformance maintains accetable level


All longevity premiums are calculated on the emp|oyee’s base pay and are not
cumulative, and must be supported in the City's budget. The City Manager shall
approve, through the Personnel Administration Manual, the appropriate
performance measures and a process by which to calculate an employee's years
of service when there are breaks in service.


An employee's base pay is their base wage or salary absent all applicable premium
or incentive pays. Normally, an emp|oyee’s base pay corresponds to a step in their
position’s assigned salary grade.


6.0 LEAVE AND PAID TIME OFF:


6.1


6.2


Observed Holidays. The City formally observes the following holidays:
New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Presidents’ Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Native American Heritage Day (Friday after Thanksgiving)
Christmas Eve Day
Christmas Day


Ifa holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. Ifa
holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be observed on the preceding Friday.
Holidays shall be considered as 8 hour days for regular full‘time employees, and
prorated based on FTE for regular part time employees.


Floating Holidays. Employees shall accrue a number of floating holidays based on
years of service as shown in the table below. Floating holidays are awarded on
January 1 of each year, and expire if unused on December 31 of each year.


4


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 60 of 238







6.3


6.4


6.5


Holidays shall be considered as 8 hour days for regular full time employees, and
prorated based on FTE for regular part time employees.


Less than 10


A A


Annual Leave. Annual Leave is also referred to as “Vacation." Regular full time
employees shall accrue annual leave (vacation) hours per pay period based on
their years of service as shown in the tables below. Regular part time employees
shall accrue annual leave pro-rated based on their assigned FTE. Temporary and
Casual employees are not eligible for annual leave.


Department Directors


.x -..z -~.«:..m r.. ..n.....


All ears of service —


AllOther
A.‘


_"_-’a-s" -I .5 J


K


'\ ' .-r—L. .—urI.»8..\.__..~.Z~o.n-AI-..J.‘~,—


..
L, .3.-;,g.


-I :2". - ‘:2:


A maximum of 200 hours of annual leave may be carried over from December 31
of one year to January 1 of the next year.


Donation of Annual Leave. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to
approve the donation of annual leave from one employee to another for the
purposes of aiding a fellow City employee who is suffering from, or has an
immediate family member suffering from, an extraordinary or severe illness, injury,
impairment, or physical or mental condition which has caused or is likelyto cause
the employee to take leave without pay or to terminate his/her employment with
the City.


Any and all donations of annual leave shall be voluntary, and no other type of leave
(ex: sick leave) shall be donated in any circumstance.


Exempt Leave. To acknowledge that exempt employees will regularly be required
to work overtime hours without additional compensation, exempt leave is provided
to FLSA exempt employees as a bank of 40 hours on January 1 of each year.
These hours expire ifunused on December 31 of each year.


5


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 61 of 238







6.6


6.7


6.8


6.9


6.10


Sick Leave. Employees shall accrue sick leave hours each pay period depending
on their employment status as shown in the table below:


Employment Status Annual Accrual (Hours)
Ful|—Time Regular 96
Part—TimeRegular (96 * assigned FTE)
Casual or Temporary 1 hour per every 40 hours worked


A maximum of 1040 hours of sick leave may be carried over from December 31 0


one year to January 1 of the next year.


Employment Offers. In some cases it may be necessary to offer paid time off in
addition to what this policy provides to new hires for the purposes of filling a hard
to fillposition. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to approve additional
annual leave or exempt leave to be offered to a candidate at the time of hire at
his/her discretion, provided that the new hire‘s leave accruals stay consistent with
this policy. For example, the City Manager may authorize a candidate to start their
employment with 40 hours of annual leave pre-loaded into their bank.


Pay-out upon Separation. Upon separation, some or all of an employee’s accrued
but unused paid time off ba|ance(s) may be paid out based on criteria approved by
the City Manager in the Personnel Administration Manual.


Paid Family Leave. The Washington State Family and Medical Leave Program
(ROW 50A.04) provides paid benefits for employees who need to take unpaid
leave when they welcome a new child into their family, are struck by a serious
illness or injury, need to take care of an illor ailing relative and for certain military
connected events. Although self-insurance is an option to fund benefits, the City is
choosing to participate in the program administered by the Employment Security
Department using the statutory default payroll deductions beginning January 1,
2018. Benefits from this program become effective January 1, 2020, and
employees seeking to apply for paid family and medical leave will apply through
the Employment Security Department.


Bereavement Leave. Employees may request bereavement leave for up to three
regularly scheduled work days or shifts upon the death of a member of the
employees family. in the event the employee needs to travel out of state to attend
a funeral or make other arrangements related to theirfamily member’s death, leave
may be allowed up to five days.


Up to one day or shift of leave may be allowed to attend services related to the
death of a co—worker.


7.0 BENEFITS:


7.1 Eligibility for Benefits. Benefits eligibility is determined by an employee’s
employment status. All regular full-time and regular part—time employees are


6


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 62 of 238







7.2


7.3


7.4


0-75 or less


eligible for healthcare benefits coverage for themselves and for their eligible
dependents. Casual and Temporary employees are not benefits eligible.


Section 125 Plan. The City of MillCreek maintains a Section 125 plan that allows
for any premium payments made in accordance with that plan to be made on a
pre-tax basis. The City Manager is authorized to update health plan and elective
options to ensure compliance with the Section 125 Plan, and to update the Plan
when necessary.


Flexible Benefit Dollars. The City sponsors a program designed to share bene?t
cost savings with eligible employees. Employees hired on or before August 15*,
2017 who decline health insurance coverage through City sponsored health plans
for themselves and/or their eligible dependents may receive a credit of 50% of the
amount that the City would have contributed towards the coverage. To be eligible,
employees must provide evidence of alternative coverage. These “flexible bene?t
dollars” may only be used for purposes defined in the City’s Section 125 Plan
document and Personnel Administration Manual. The “flexiblebenefit dollars" may
not be taken as cash.


Health Insurance. The City provides medical, dental, and vision insurance
coverage options for benefits eligible employees and their dependents.


7.4.1 Medical Premiums. Insurance premiums for medical insurance (ifan eligible
employee selects medical coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are shared between the employee and the City based on the
emp|oyee’s FTE status as shown in the chart below:


w-.3.-n
T


i
T i


,
.....


7.4.2 Dental Premiums. Insurance premiums for dental insurance (if an eligible
employee selects dental coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are shared between the employee and the City based on the
employee’s FTE status as shown in the chart below:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 63 of 238







7.5


7.6


7.7


7.8


7.4.3 Vision Premiums. Insurance premiums for vision insurance (if an eligible
employee selects vision coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are paid for 100% by the City.


Health Savings Account. Employees enrolled in a High Deductible Health Plan
(HDHP) are also eligible to enroll in a Health Savings Account. The City sponsors
a program designed to share the cost savings of a HDHP with the employee. The
Citywillcontribute 50% of the cost savings between the HDHP and the City’sother
medical plan offering(s) to the enrolled employee's Health Savings Account each
pay period. This cost savings may not be taken as cash or used for any other
purpose.


Life,Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Long Term Disability, and Survivor.
The City provides Life, AD&D, LTD, and Survivor insurance to all regular full time
and regular part time employees at no cost to the employee, deducted from the
employer portion of MEBT(Social Security replacement) contributions.


Employee Assistance Program. The City provides an Employee Assistance
Program to all regular full time and regular part time employees at no cost to the
employee, deducted from the employer portion of MEBT (Social Security
replacement) contributions.


Optional Health, Wellness, and Retirement Plans. The City facilitates enrollment
in other optional health, wellness, and retirement plans (such as Flexible Spending
Accounts or AFLAC insurance) for benefits eligible employees. Allvoluntary plans
or accounts are funded entirely at the employee's own cost. Enrollment is
dependent on the eligibility requirements speci?ed in the individual plan or
account’s documents.


8.0 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND RECOGNITION


8.1 Performance Management Program. The purpose of an effective performance
management program is for employees to have a clear understanding of the work
expected from them, to receive ongoing feedback regarding how they are
performing relative to expectations, to identify development opportunities, and to
address performance that does not meet expectations. A comprehensive
performance management program empowers employees to have greater input to
their personal career progression and will enable managers to provide more
meaningful feedback based upon an agreed set of performance criteria.


The City strives to provide an environment where all employees understand the
impact their contributions have on the achievement of City goals and are provided
the opportunity for ongoing personal growth. To accomplish this objective, the City
will develop and maintain a strong performance based review program that
culminates in an annual performance review of employees.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 64 of 238







8.2


8.3


8.4


Wellness Program. The City maintains a Wellness Program to educate, promote,
and encourage health awareness and healthy lifestyle choices by City employees.
Participation in this program may earn the City discounts on the cost of health
benefits.


The City Council authorizes, through the biennial budget, the funds necessary to
allow the Wellness Committee to effectively operate and promote participation in
this program. Additionally, the City Council supports one “wellness day off’ per
employee per year if earned through program participation as defined in the
Personnel Administration Manual.


Employee and Volunteer Recognition. To promote employee and volunteer
engagement and to recognize employees and volunteers for their service,
significant achievements, and modeling the City’s STAR Values, the City Council
authorizes funds for recognition through the biennial budget to be used in a manner
consistent with the Business Exgense Policy; sections 8.11 and 8.12.


Tuition Reimbursement. To support employee growth and development, as well as
incentivize continued education that benefits the City, the City Council authorizes
tuition reimbursement for college courses up to $500 per year per employee as
described in the Personnel Administration Manual Chapter 6.8.


9.0 SAFETY


9.1


9.2


The intent of the City is to provide a safe working environment and keep injuries to
the absolute minimum, thus protecting its most valuable asset — its employees.
The City Council will support the City's Accident Prevention Program and the
operation of a Safety Committee as described in WAC 296-80-130 and ensure that
adequate resources such as employee time, funds for safety equipment and
training, and commitment to the program from management are available.


The City Council shall authorize, through the approval of the biennial budget, at
least $10 per employee (per year) to be used for safety projects, activities, and
awards/prizes related to the City’s safety program.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 65 of 238







CITY or MILL CREEK POLICY"
'


FOR
SAFETY


City Policy No.: CCP 97-o5
'


Effective: February 11, 1997


:
Executive é
CommunityDevelopment .
PublicWorks J
Finance
Police


The intent of the City is to providea safeworkingenvironmentand keep injuriesto the‘absolute
minimum,thus protectingits most valuableasset - its employees.The Cityrecognizesthat thereis
a bene?t to City employeesand the generalpublicthroughthe developmentand implementationof
general health and safety practicesboth on and o?‘thejob. All City of Mill‘Creek employeesare
activelyencouragedto participateinthepreventionof injuriesand illnessesthroughthe City’3 safety
awarenessandtrainingprograms._Itistheresponsibilityof every employeeof the Cityof1\/?llCreek
to follow the guidelinesand regulationsoutlinedin the City's SafetyManual.


In accordance with statelaw, employeeswill have access to all required informationregarding
hazardousmaterialswhichthe employeeisordinarilyexpectedto encounter in the work environment
so as to reduce concernand uncertaintyaboutworkingwith and/or around suchmaterials.


The Citywill support the operationof a City safety committeeand ensure that adequateresources
suchas employeetime,?mdsforsafetyequipmentandtraining,andcommitmentto the program?'om
management are availableto implementthe safetyprogram. The City's commitmentto safety
includes investigatingaccidents?rlly and taking corrective action to prevent recurrence of the
hazardousconditionsor behaviors.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 66 of 238







The safetyprogram for the Citywillbe detailed the City’ssafetymanual.The CityManager or
designee is authorizedto developandmaintaintheCity’ssafetymanualto implementthispolicy.


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THECITYOF MJLLCREEK,WASHINGTONTHIS
% ISQ35DAY OF‘ 1;5 ,1997.


APPROVED:


QFFICEOF THE c =5-;ATTORNEY
E


'


- e:\nA'i3.3.\B::3c\wp\PoL1cv\97_os.w1=n


Si;I0;iI.C§1zBssMAN&13UIxGEss ( ~


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 67 of 238







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


SALARY ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-REPRESENTEDENIPLOYEES


City Policy No.: CC!’ 08-002


Effective: June 10, 2008


Department Review:


Executive
CommunityDevelopment
Public Works
Finance
Police


Pursuant to City Council Policy 08-001, it is the policy of the City to maintain an Employee
Classi?cation and Salary Plan designed to provide compensationthat is equitable in order to
maintain and attract a quali?ed workforce. It is also the policy of the City to pay salariesthat
compare favorably with other similar cities in the local area for comparablejobs withinbudget
limitations.


The City Council recognizes that the compensationplan developedby the City Manager involves
both merit and lump sum payment components. This compensationplan supports the City’s
philosophy that salary increases are driven by the principle of pay-for-perfonnance. The City
Council hereby establishes the following policy guidelines for the administration of the
compensationplan by the CityManager:


Based on the results of the salary survey perfonned as of May 2008, salaries for non-
representedemployeesshallbe adjustedas indicatedin Table 1. The “revised”salarieswill
be retroactive to January 1, 2008. Thereafter, employees shall be eligible for a salary
increase on their anniversary date in an amount up to 5 percent based on merit. In no case
shall any increase cause an employee s salary to exceed the approved salary range. All
increasesmust be supported in the City’sbudget.


Due to the collectivebargainingprocess, thispolicyis not directlyapplicableto employees covered
by a collective bargaining agreement or represented by a recognized labor organization.


The City Manager is directedto developand administera compensationplan with the abovepolicy
guidance ?om the City Council.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 68 of 238







CCP 08-002
June 10,2008
Page 2


PASSEDBY TI-[B CITY COUNCIL.OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON THIS


10”‘DAY OF IUNE zoos.


APPROVED:


'="{—-‘Z-I-F" . -


MAYOR
113%;


Q.RYAN t
ATTEST/AUTI-IENTICATED:


C Y C KELLY CHELIN


APPROVEDAS TO FORM:


OFFICEOF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SHORT CRESSMAN & BURGESS


Tables:
1- Adjusted 2008 Salariesfor Non-RepresentedStaff


G:\B.X.BCUTIVE\WP\POLlCY\2008-02.doc


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 69 of 238







CCP 08-002
Table l


Adjusted 2008 Salaries
for Non-RepresentedStaff
Effective January 1, 2008


Position Monthl Sal


8467


Note 1


8808


7771


7276


eer Note 1


Note 1


5125


6128


5549


4468


Note 1


4174


3897


Communi Develoment Director


FinanceDirector


Police Chief


Public WorksDirector


Plam?n Man er
Ci


Police Commander


Public Works Suervisor


Buildin Official .5 FTE


ExecutiveAssistant/Ci Clerk


RecreationSuervisor


RecordsSuervisor


HR _.ecialist


Admin Secret .75 FTE


Note 1 — Positionsvacant on January 1,2008. Startingsalarieswillbe negotiatedduringhiring
process.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 70 of 238







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


ENIPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY PLAN


City Policy No.:
'


CCP 09-001


Effective:
_


January1, 2009


Amends Cig Policy No.: CCP 08-001


Department Review:


Executive
Community Development
PublicWorks
Finance .
Police ’-”""-


It is the policy of the City to maintain an Employee Classi?cation andSalary Plan designed to


provide compensationthat is equitable in order to maintainand attract a quali?ed workforce. It is
also the policy of the City to pay salariesthat compare favorably with other similarcitiesin the local
area for comparablejobs withinbudget limitations.


TheCity Councilshallestablish,throughapprovalof theCity’sbiennialbudget, salaryranges forall
positionswithin the City. Annually the CityCouncilshallconsidermarket adjustmentsto thesalary
ranges to be effectiveJanuary 1 of eachyear basedon therecommendationof the CityManager. The
CityManager shall detenninethe appropriateplacementof personnelwithin those salaryranges as
well as the progressionwithina certainsalaryrange or grade. TheCity Councilshalldetenninethe
?equency, subject to budgeted ?mds, of an employee salary survey and marketadjustments that
might be necessary to keep the salary survey current during interveningyears until the next survey
can be completed.


'


The City’scompensationplan involves bothmeritand incentivepayment components and supports
the City’sphilosophy that salary increasesare drivenby theprincipleofpay-for-perfonnance. The
City Council hereby establishes the following policy guidelines for the administrationof the
compensationplan by the City Manager:


"


Employees shall be eligible for a salary increase on their anniversarydate in an amountup to 5
percent based on merit. In no case shall any increase cause an employee’s salary to exceed the
approvedsalary range. All increasesmust be supported in the City’sbudget.


Employees earning less than the bottomof the current salary range shall have their wages
adjusted to no less than the bottom of the salary range. All increases must be supported in the
City’s budget.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 71 of 238







I ~n..4..~.'.: ~ :. ~. . ~ ..-. ~
».. ..- »


- ' .‘.‘...'.. 2. .: J. .... , -~5-_-,,-.x..;,_,,.g.«_,
.,_.___ .- ,.


cc1>09-001
March 24, 2009
Page2


The City Council shall authorizean incentivepayment pool indexed to the CPI-W SeattleArea
First Half Index subject to a 2%’minimumand 4% maximum. As authorizedby the City
Manager, incentivepayments may be awardedto employeesin accordancewiththe attached
sampleincentive pay fonnulas, provided funds are available,andincentivepayment criteriaare


met.All incentive payments shall be in additionto any meritpay. Incentivepayments, excluding
the armualCustomer Service Survey award, shall:


i


(1) be paid in a lump sum at the time of the awardbased on the employee's salary as of
January 1 of the year awarded, or for employees who are promoted, demotedor
transferred to a differentpositionduring the period between January 1 and the time of the
incentive award calculationof the awardsshallbe basedonthe emp1oyee’snew salary,


(2) adjustbase pay on.thenext January 1,up to but not exceedingthe top of thepay
range. The City Manager is also authorizedto develop alternativeincentivesfor
employeeswho desirealternativesto an incentivepayment, providedthat the total
equivalent costs of these incentivewith payments do not exceed the budgeted incentive
pool. "“


Employeesshall be eligible for a longevitypremiumcommencingon the seventh(7"’)anniversaryof
theirhiring date. Payment of a longevitypremiumwillbe effectiveJuly 1,2008. An employeeshall
receive a longevitypremiumprovidedthey meet all of the following criteria: ‘


A. Have met the standardsof the assignedpositionby receiving an overall
employee performance score of 3.0 or greater ontheirmostcurrent performance
evaluation,and


'


B. Have been employed by the City of Mill Creek for a minimum of seven (7) years.


All longevity premiumsare calculatedon the employee’sbase salary and are not cumulative, and
must be supported in the City’sbudget. Longevitypremiumsshallbe awardedbased on years of
serviceas an employeeof the City of Mill Creekaccordingto the following schedule:,


0.-


Overall Employee
PerformanceScore


No.
Years 4.0 - 5.0 3.0 - 3.9 < 3.0
>7 2%
>10 3%
>15 4%
>200 5%


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 72 of 238







CCP09-001
March 24, 2009
Page 3


Ifthe employee fails to meet the minimumoverallemployeeperformancescore of 3.0 for their
assigned position, the longevity premium will expire. If, at the emp1oyee’ssubsequent
evaluation, the employeemeets the minimumstandardsand requirementsof the position, then
the employee shall receive the longevitypremiumaccordingto the above schedule.


Due to the collectivebargainingprocess, thispolicyis not directlyapplicableto employeescovered
by a collectivebargaining agreement or representedby a recognizedlabororganization.However,
the CityCouncilreiteratesitsbelief thatthepay-for-performancephilosophyshouldbe appliedto all
employee groups and classi?cation.


The CityManager isdirected to develop and administera compensationplan with the above‘policy
guidance ?om the City Council; '


PASSED BY THE CITYCOUNCIL OF TH:ECITY OF MILLCREEK, WASHINGTON 'I‘HIS


ZWDDAYOF IWW/L2009.
APPROVED:


z-""——-——j”-


MAYORmévQ.RY% ‘


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


KELLY CI-IELIN


APPROVED AS TO FORM:_
OFFICEOF THE CITYATTORNEY
SHORT CRESSMAN & BURGESS


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 73 of 238







CITY or MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


MEDICAL BENEFITS


City Policy No.: CCP 2012-002


Effective: Section 125Plan Bene?ts - Effective January 1,2013
HealthBene?ts- Effective Januag 1,2013


Repeals and Replaces City Policy No: CCP 03-001and CCP 09-002


Department Review:


Executive 14
CommunityDevelopment 1/


PublicWorks a/
Finance 1/
Police 4/


In light of rising health care costs and the desireto providea competitivebene?t package
comparableto otherjurisdictions, the City Councildirectsthe City Manager to changecertain
provisionsof the City’s personnelpoliciesrelatedto the City’s contribution to the employees
Section 125Plan and the City’s premiumcontributionfor dependentmedicalcare coverage.


Listedbeloware the speci?c policyprovisionsthat the City Manager shall implement.


Section 125 Plan Bene?ts - EffectiveJanuary 1, 2013


The City will provide employeeswith a Section 125 plan that allows for any premium
payment madeinaccordancewiththatplanto bemadeon a pre-tax basis.The Cityrequires
thatall employeessubscribeforhealthinsurancecoverage forthemselves,but can opt-outof
health insurance coverage through the City if they provide evidence of other coverage.
Employees have the option of purchasinghealth insurancebene?ts for their eligible
dependents.An employeewhochoosesnot to purchasehealthinsurancebene?ts for their
eligible dependents may receive a 50% payment of the amount that the City would have
contributedtowardsdependenthealthinsuranceforuse as ?exible bene?t dollars. Flexible
bene?ts includelegallyacceptedSection125expenditures,alternativeinsurancecoverage,
MEBTcontribution,or deferredcompensationcontributions.Employeesmay choose,during
the City’s open enrollment period,whether they will waive insurance coverage for eligible
dependents. Re-enrollment to City coverage can be accomplishedduring the next open
enrollment period or immediately if other coverage is terminated, as provided in City
coverage re-enrollment contracts. Upon re-enrollment, ?exible bene?t dollars will be
reducedor eliminated accordingly.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 74 of 238







Health Bene?ts - EffectiveJanuary 1, 2013


Premiumsfor Regular Full Time Employees:


The city shall contribute100%of the premiumfor Washington Dental ServicePlanF for
bothemployeeand dependentpremiums.The city shallcontribute100%of the premium
forthe employee’svision insurance,and 100%of the premiumfor dependents’vision
insuranceand 90% of the premiumfor employee’smedicalinsuranceand 90% of the
premiumfor the dependents’medicalinsurance.Dependentchildrenmay be coveredup
to and includingage 26.


Premiums for Regular Part-Time Employees:


Regularpart-timeemployeeswill be providedmedical, dental and visioninsuranceon a
pro-rata FTE basis, except that for part-timeemployeesbetween0.5 FTE and 0.75 FTE
the City shall pay the rate of a 0.75 FTEemployee(after the 10% employeecontribution)
andthe employeeshallpay the balance.


Due to the collectivebargainingprocess, this policyis not applicableto employeescoveredby a
collectivebargainingagreement.


The City Manager is directedto developandadministerthe above policyprovisionsand maintain
any necessary administrativeproceduresto implementthis policy.


PASSED BYTHE CITY COUNCILOF THECITYOF MILLCREEK, WASHINGTONTHIS
47"DAY OF DECEMBER,2012.


APPROVED:


ATTEST/AUTI-IENTICATED:
MAYOR MIKETODD


‘(SI-'I"YATTORNEY SHANE MOLONEY


G:\EXECUTlVE\WP\POl..lCY\CCP2012-001- InsuranceBcncf'Its.doc


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 75 of 238







,
RESOLUTION NO. 2//Jé


A RESOLUTION OF 'I'HE CITY COUNCIL OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHINGA POLICY PROVIDING FOR THE
TRANSFER OF LEAVE BETWEEN EMPLOYEES.


WHEREAS, the Cityprovidesannual leave to its employees as a vested right subject


to payment upon termination; and


WHEREAS, the City Council?nds it in the public interest to permit employees to


share annual leave under speci?c circumstances and to transfer such leave to employees


who, without such transfers, would be forced to terminatetheir employment or go without


payin order to meet the needs of severe illness;and


WHEREAS, the authority to approve budgetary decisions is vested in the City


Council of the City of Mill Creek; and


WHEREAS, an administrative policy establishing for the transfer of annual leave


between employees has a budgetary impact on the City;


NOW, THEREFORE,THE CITY COUNCIL OF T'I-IECITY OF MILL CREEK,
'


WASHINGTON,HEREBY RESOLVESAS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. PURPOSE


The purpose of shared leave is to pennit City employees, at no additional cost to the
City other than the administrative costs of the program, to come to the aid of a fellow City
employee who is su?ering from, or has an immediate family member suffering from, an
extraordinary or sever,illness,injury, impairment,or physicalor mental conditionwhichhas
caused or is likely to cause the employee to take leave without pay or to terminate his/her


_
employment with the City.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 76 of 238







~.':§.-.-‘--.:-‘ :;':?ii.::,e:~2:....-I .
‘A


~
" . ;.'.r.‘l\v.A.«‘.-.-‘.-L':2;‘“‘.IE:‘:.';.'."_"«1'§:.':\..'\‘.‘.‘!‘,. ~ .L‘.:*':.a.‘=-'.;‘..\.‘~:..- '. .'..,‘."‘.'.".LJ:'.'.t'.'.".»3.r»x


Section 2. ELIGIBILITY OF RECIPIENT OF SHARED LEAVE.


The City Manager may permit an employee to receive shared leave under this
resolution it‘:


A. The employee suffers,or has an immediate familymember (as de?ned by the
City’s personnel policies) suffering from an illness, injury, impairment, or
physicalor mental conditionwhichis of an extraordinaryor severe nature, and
which has caused, or is likely to cause, the employee to go on 1eave-without-
pay status or to terminate his or her employment with the City; and


The employee has depleted or will shortly deplete his/hertotal of accrued
annual leave, compensatory time,sick leave, holidayleave, and/orother paid
leave; and


The employee has abided by the City’ssick leave policyin the past;and


The employee has diligentlypursued and is found to be ineligible for state
industrial insurance bene?ts; and


The use of shared leave will not signi?cantlyincrease the City’scosts, except
for those costs which would otherwise be incurred in the administration of this
program or whichwould otherwisebe incurred by theemployee’sdepartment.


Section 3. ELIGIBILITY OF DONOR OF SHARED LEAVE.


The City Manager may permit an employee to donate shared leave under this
resolution if:


A.


C.


The employeehas a total of more than ten (10) days of accrued annual leave;
and


The employee has taken at least ?ve (5) days of annual leave within the
ea~lenda-r—year;—a-nd


The donating employee retains at least ten (10) days total of accrued sick
leave, annual leave and/orcompensatory time off.


Section 3. AMOUNT OF SHARED LEAVE ALLOWED.


The City Manager shall determine the amount of shared leave, if any, which an
employee may receive under this resolution. The employee shall be required to provide
appropriate medical justification and documentation regarding the necessity for the leave
and the time which the employee can reasonably be expected to be absent due to the


2


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 77 of 238







condition. An employee shall not receive more hours in shared leave than the difference
between 1,440hours and the number of leave hours already used by the affected employee
in this extraordinary situation. To the extent possible,shared leave should be used on a
consecutiveday basis.


Section 4. IMPLEMENTATIONOF SHARED LEAVE.


A.


B.


F.’


All donations of shared leave shall be voluntary.


Transfers of shared leave shallbe in increments of one (1) day. The transfer
of shared leave shall be on an hour-for-hour basis regardless of the salary
differencebetween the employee donating the shared leave and the employee
receiving the shared leave.


The employee’s salary rate shall not changes as a result of being on shared
leave,nor under any circumstances, shall the total of the emp1oyee’ssalary
and other bene?ts, including but not limited to state industrial insurance or
any other bene?t received as a result of payments by the City to an insurer,
health care provider,or pensionsystem, exceed the total of salary and benefits
which the employee would have received had he/shebeen in a regular pay
status.


Donations of shared leave may be made between any twonon-represented
employees. Donations of shared leave may be made between represented
employeesand/orbetween represented and non-representedemployees if the
contract between the City and the represented employees permits such
transfers of shared leave.


While an employee is on shared leave, he/sheshall continue to receive and
‘


accrue all bene?ts as he/she would normally receive if using other accrued
paid leave.


Any leave transferred which remains unused shall be returned to the
ployee(s) who donated it.


RESOLVED, this gz?aayof , 1991.


APPROVED:


MAYOR,
K1;Fx%1~iTHJ. GRASKA


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 78 of 238







ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITYC RK,MICI-IE Z


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


BY:
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
STOEL RIVES BOLEYJONES & GREY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK: -// /
PASSED BY Y COUNCIL:/ -


PUBLISHED: .


W:\Data\Exnc\WP\Resol\Shlve.Pcr


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 79 of 238







RESOLUTION NO. 2003-325


A RESOLUTION OF THE MILL CREEK CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING
THE MILL CREEK EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAM


WHEREAS,.theMill Creek City Counciladoptedthe WellnessProgram in 1988 to aid and
encourage employees in maintaining good physicalandmental health;and


WHEREAS,thisprogram educates and reinforcesemployeehealth awareness and health??
lifestyle choices;and '


WHEREAS,the ?tness and good health of the City’s employees ensures that our citizens
receive the bene?t of more productive employees as well as strategies to control health care
expenditures; and


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Councilof the City of Mill Creek, Washingtonresolves as
follows:


Section1. TheCityCouncilof the City of MillCreekherebyexpressestheir support of the
Mill Creek Employee Wellness Program as describedin the attached Chapter 8, Section F of the
Personnel Manual.


?optedthis 1-lth‘dayof March, 2003 by a vote of for, ‘against,and
abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR TE?fYQ.
RY?(


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


APPROVED AS TO FORM:_
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SHORT, CRESSMAN& BURGESS


mu .aq=9


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 80 of 238







FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK: 3[ III733


PASSED BY 'I'HE CITY COUNCIL: % II 7?3
EFFEC'I‘IVEDATE: 9 VE
RESOLUTIONNO.: 90 05 “ 329


\\MILL_CREEK\SYS\DATA\EXECUTlVE\WP\Resdutions\2003\Wclness.doc


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 81 of 238







PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION MANUAL 


Table of Contents 1 rev. 07/2018 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


GOVERNING CITY COUNCIL POLICIES 


Policy Number Policy Title Staff Contact 


400-01 City of Mill Creek Personnel Policies 
Adopted by Resolution 2018- 


HR Staff 


Other City Council adopted policies. 


CH. 1 GOVERNING PRINCIPLES 


Section Title Staff Contact 


1.1 Personnel Administration Manual HR Staff 


1.2 Definitions HR Staff 


1.3 Equal Employment Opportunity HR Staff 


1.4 Employees with Disabilities HR Staff 


1.5 Whistleblowing HR Staff 


1.6 Conflicts of Interest HR Staff 


CH. 2 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


Section Title Staff Contact 


2.1 Recruitment and Selection HR Staff 


2.2 Position Descriptions HR Staff 


2.3 Background and Reference Checks HR Staff 


2.4 Trial Period HR Staff 


2.5 Performance Management HR Staff 


2.6 Separation from Employment HR Staff 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 82 of 238



file://mc.net/data/EXECUTIVE/WP/POLICY/Table%20of%20Contents/Table%20of%20Contents%20-%202018%20update.xlsx





Table of Contents 2 rev. 07/2018 


CH. 3 EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


Section Title Staff Contact 


3.1 Personal Appearance and Dress Code HR Staff 


3.2 Attendance HR Staff 


3.3 Anti-Harassment HR Staff 


3.4 Drug Free Workplace HR Staff 


3.5 Non-Smoking Workplace HR Staff 


3.6 Workplace Violence HR Staff 


3.7 Personal Weapons HR Staff 


3.8 Disciplinary Process HR Staff 


3.9 Complaint Resolution HR Staff 


3.10 Personal Relationships HR Staff 


3.11 Safety in the Workplace HR Staff 


3.12 Information Technology IT/IS Staff 


3.13 Email Communications IT/IS Staff 


3.14 Personal Electronics HR Staff 


CH. 4 COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


Section Title Staff Contact 


4.1 Employment Status 


 


HR Staff 


4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices HR Staff 


4.3 Re-Hires and Bridging Service Gaps HR Staff 


4.4 Work Hours and Pay Period HR Staff 


4.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time HR Staff 


4.6 Callback Pay HR Staff 


4.7 Incentives and Premiums HR Staff 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 83 of 238







Table of Contents 3 rev. 07/2018 


4.8 Recording Time and Timecards HR Staff 


CH. 5 TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


Section Title Staff Contact 


5.1 Holidays HR Staff 


5.2 Annual Leave (Vacation) HR Staff 


5.3 Exempt Leave HR Staff 


5.4 Sick Leave HR Staff 


5.5 Family and Medical Leave Act HR Staff 


5.6 Jury / Court Duty HR Staff 


5.7 Bereavement Leave HR Staff 


5.8 Other Types of Leave HR Staff 


5.9 Temporary Accommodations HR Staff 


CH. 6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


Section Title Staff Contact 


6.1 Flexible Benefit Plan 


 


HR Staff 


6.2 Health and Welfare Plans HR Staff 


6.3 Municipal Employee Benefit Trust HR Staff 


6.4 Retirement Plans HR Staff 


6.5 Extended Health Benefits (COBRA) HR Staff 


6.6 Wellness Program HR Staff 


6.7 Recognition and Appreciation HR Staff 


6.8 Training and Tuition Reimbursement HR Staff 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 84 of 238







Table of Contents 4 rev. 07/2018 


CH. 7 OTHER PROVISIONS 


Section Title Staff Contact 


7.1 Employment Records 


 


HR Staff 


7.2 Release of Confidential Information HR Staff 


7.3 Inclement Weather HR Staff 


7.4 Volunteer and Intern Programs HR Staff 


7.5 Vehicle Usage DRAFT Finance Staff 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 85 of 238







CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


1.1 Personnel Administration Manual 1 rev. 07/2018 


1.1 PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION MANUAL 


The purpose of the Personnel Administration Manual is to ensure equal employment 
opportunity, compliance with all applicable federal and state regulations, and to promote 
communication between the City and its employees. The contents of this manual are governed 
by the City Council adopted policy #400-01 City of Mill Creek Personnel Policies. Policy #400-01 
contains policy statements related to wages, benefits, and other items affected by the Council’s 
authority to approve the City’s budget and financial priorities, and authorizes the City Manager 
to approve procedures and guidelines to support those policies. 


The contents of this manual are reviewed periodically or as necessary to support a change in 
policy #400-01. In the event that there is an immediate need for a change, addition, or deletion 
related to operational necessity and/or State or Federal regulation, the City will implement 
necessary changes and advise all affected parties accordingly. 


None of the procedures or guidelines in this manual shall create or be deemed to create a 
vested or implied contractual right for any employee, or to limit the power of the City Manager or 
City Council. This manual is intended to provide guidelines only, and should not be interpreted 
as promises of specific treatment in specific situations. The City reserves the right to repeal, 
modify, deviate from or amend policies or procedures at any time, and will make reasonable 
efforts to notify employees in a timely manner of changes by email, bulletins, or other means.   


In cases where this manual conflicts with Civil Service rules, Collective Bargaining Agreements, 
City ordinance, state or federal law, or other employment contracts, the terms and conditions of 
that rule, agreement, ordinance, law, or contract shall govern.  


Except to the extent specifically negotiated otherwise and agreed to in writing through a 
collective bargaining process or employment contract, all employment with the City of Mill Creek 
is at-will. At-will employment means that either the employee or the City can terminate the 
employment relationship at any time, for any reason or no reason, with or without cause and 
without or without notice.   


Individual departments may develop standard operating procedures that are applicable to their 
own operational needs and goals, which will not appear in this manual. Department managers 
are responsible for informing employees of these procedures as appropriate. 


Managers are responsible for understanding and administering the City’s personnel policies 
within their departments and for keeping their employees informed of current policies and 
practices. In consultation with Human Resources, managers are responsible for ensuring that all 
practices are applied fairly and consistently. Employees are responsible for reading, 
understanding and following the procedures and guidelines contained in this manual, and 
consulting with their supervisor and/or Human Resources if they have any questions regarding 
this manual.  


Violations of the procedures and guidelines contained in this manual may result in disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 86 of 238







 


CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


 


1.2 Definitions 1 rev. 11/2018 
 


 
 
1.2 DEFINITIONS 


 
 
This section provides a centralized reference intended to define general terminology used in this 
manual. Additional detail and/or further clarification of terms as they relate to specific sections 
may be contained in those sections. Collective bargaining agreements may also include 
definitions that apply to represented employees.  
 
Anniversary Date:  The annual date on which an employee’s performance evaluation and pay 
changes are effective. This may be the anniversary of the employee’s hire, rehire, promotion, 
demotion, or transfer.  
 
Applicant:  A person who has completed a formal application of employment for an available 
position with the City of Mill Creek.   
 
Appointment:  The assignment of a qualified applicant to a position by the Appointing Official 
for a defined period of time, usually to fill a temporary need. In some cases, these employees 
may be referred to as “acting” or “interim.” 
 
At-will:  The City of Mill Creek has both represented (by a union and subject to collective 
bargaining agreement) and non-represented employees. Employees who are not covered by a 
collective bargaining agreement (CBA) are “at-will” employees and either the City, or the 
employee, may end the employment relationship at any time, for any reason or no reason, with 
or without cause or notice.  
 
Base Pay:  An employee’s base wage or salary absent all applicable premium or incentive 
pays. Normally, an employee’s base pay corresponds to a step in their position’s assigned 
salary grade.  
 
Casual:  An employee hired to work on an intermittent or as-needed basis, or who is regularly 
scheduled to work less than twenty (20) hours per week. See Chapter 4.1 Employment Status. 
 
Classification:  Positions sufficiently similar in type of work duties, authority, and responsibility 
to permit grouping them under a single classification title and corresponding pay range. 
Generally, minimum qualifications and conditions of employment are similar. 
 
Compensation:  Salary, wage and/or other forms of remuneration earned by or paid to any 
employee in a position in the service to the City. 
 
Compensatory Time:  Authorized time off from work in lieu of pay for overtime worked. 
 
Continuous Service:  Employment in the service of the City without interruption longer than 30 
days, except for authorized leaves of absence. 
 
Demotion:  See Chapter 4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices.   
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 87 of 238







1.2 Definitions 2 rev. 11/2018 
 


Disability:  (1) A physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 
activities; (2) a record or history of such impairment; or (3) a perception of such impairment. 
   
Domestic Partner:  The employee’s domestic partner as registered under RCW 26.60 with the 
State of Washington. (Certificate of domestic partnership filed with Human Resources). 
 
Employment Status:  See Chapter 4.1 Employment Status. 
 
Essential Job Functions:  The necessary and fundamental job duties of a position; the 
purpose for which the position exists.  
 
Examination:  Any device or procedure used in the selection process to measure an applicant's 
abilities and suitability for a position.  Examinations may include but are not limited to oral 
interviews, psychological exams, physical exams, written tests, performance tests, evaluation of 
performance during probation, etc.  
 
Exempt:  Exempt from the provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), as 
amended, and the Washington State Minimum Wage Act, RCW 49.46. See Chapter 4.1 
Employment Status. 
 
Family:  Also referred to as “family member” or “immediate family.” Generally considered to be 
an employee’s spouse or domestic partner and their dependent children. Other relationships 
(such as parents, siblings, etc.) may be included depending on the specific policy or procedure.  
 
FTE:  Stands for “Full-Time Employee” but can also reflect the status of an employee who 
works part-time hours as a percentage of full-time. 
 
Full-Time Regular:  An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of time and 
regularly scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours per week. See Chapter 4.1 Employment 
Status. 
 
Grievance:  See Chapter 3.9 Complaint Resolution.  
 
Intern:  A paid or unpaid temporary employee who desires on-the-job experience in a field 
related to their course of study or career objectives, who is assigned a project or responsibilities 
designed to be a learning experience. See Chapter 7.4 Volunteer and Intern Programs. 
 
Lay-off:  A non-disciplinary termination of an employee due to the City’s financial position or a 
change in business needs related to staffing (sometimes called “lack of work”, or “reduction in 
force”). See Chapter 2.6 Separation from Employment. 
 
Leave of Absence:  Leave from regularly scheduled duties that may be paid or unpaid, for 
medical or personal reasons without loss of employment status.  
 
Light-duty:  A temporary assignment of limited duties to an employee during recuperation from 
an illness or injury. See Chapter 5.9 Temporary Accommodations. 
 
Manager:  An employee in a position representing City management.  
 
Non-Exempt:  Covered by the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), as 
amended, and the Washington State Minimum Wage Act Wage Act, RCW 49.46. See Chapter 
4.1 Employment Status. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 88 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=26.60.010

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46





1.2 Definitions 3 rev. 11/2018 
 


Non-Represented Employees:  Employees holding positions that are not included in a 
bargaining unit that is represented by a union or guild.   
 
Part-Time Regular:  An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of time and 
regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week and less than forty (40) hours 
per week. See Chapter 4.1 Employment Status. 
 
Personnel File:  The files, maintained by the Human Resources Department, containing 
information on a current or former employee, including date of hire, position title(s), performance 
reviews, disciplinary notices and payroll records.  Records of internal investigations and medical 
information are kept in separate confidential files. 
 
Position Description:  Position descriptions are written specifications that describe the nature 
and level of the work, the distinguishing characteristics, essential functions, minimum 
qualifications and the knowledge, skills and abilities required to perform the job. 
 
Promotion:  See Chapter 4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices.   
 
Reclassification:  See Chapter 4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices. 
  
Represented Employees:  Employees holding positions that are included in a bargaining unit 
and represented by a union or guild 
 
Resignation: voluntary separation from employment with the City that is initiated by the 
employee.  
 
Salary Grade: A defined range of pay with a minimum and maximum value. Salary grades (also 
referred to as ‘salary range’) may be broken into defined steps. 
 
Salary Plan: A document that outlines each Salary Grade, including each defined step if 
applicable, and indicates which positions fall within a specified Salary Grade.   
 
Seniority:  A measure of an employee’s length of service. See Continuous Service definition. 
See also Chapter 4.3 Re-Hires and Bridging Service Gaps. Note: Collective Bargaining 
Agreements may have alternative definitions for seniority. 
 
Separation:  A voluntary or involuntary separation of employment. Can be a resignation, lay-off, 
retirement, etc. See Chapter 2.6 Separation from Employment. 
 
Supervisor:  An employee with the City who may be delegated responsibility and authority to 
hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, promote, dismiss, evaluate, discipline or direct other 
employees, or to effectively recommend such action. An employee’s supervisor is the 
management member who the employee reports directly to (may carry the position title of 
Supervisor, Manager, Director, etc.). 
 
Suspension:  A temporary separation from duty, with or without pay, of an employee: (1) for 
disciplinary purposes; (2) for the purpose of investigation of an accusation brought against an 
employee; or (3) where necessary to preserve employee safety or public confidence. See 
Chapter 3.8 Disciplinary Process. 
 
Temporary Employee:  An employee hired to fill a position with a defined end date. The length 
of a temporary position will generally not exceed six (6) months. See Chapter 4.1 Employment 
Status. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 89 of 238







1.2 Definitions 4 rev. 11/2018 
 


Termination:  See Separation definition.  
 
Transfer:  See Chapter 4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices.   
 
Trial Period:  Also known as “probationary period.” A defined period of time (minimum 6 
months) which is an integral part of the examination and selection process, during which an 
employee may be dismissed or returned to their previous job classification with or without 
cause, and without access to the grievance process. See Chapter 2.4 Trial Period. 
 
Volunteer:   An individual who performs services for the City who receives no compensation 
other than expenses, reasonable benefits or a nominal fee and who is not otherwise employed 
by the City to perform the same type of service. See Chapter 7.4 Volunteer and Intern 
Programs. 
 
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 90 of 238







 


CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


 


1.3 Equal Employment Opportunity   1     rev. 07/2018 


 
 
1.3 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 


 
 
The City of Mill Creek is an equal opportunity employer. We believe that every employee has 
the right to work in an environment that is free from all forms of unlawful discrimination. 
Consistent with applicable laws, the City will make decisions involving any aspect of the 
employment relationship without regard to race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, 
disability (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, citizenship, 
genetic information, or any other status or characteristic protected by local, state, or federal law. 
Discrimination and/or harassment based on any of those factors is in conflict with our 
philosophy of doing business and will not be tolerated. This policy of non-discrimination applies 
to all aspects of recruiting and employment, including compensation, benefits, advancement, 
transfers, training, reductions in force, and general employment activities.   
 
What is Unlawful Discrimination? 
 
Unlawful discrimination happens when being part of a protected class causes a person to be 
treated differently from others, either through disparate treatment or a disparate impact. A 
protected class is a group of people protected against unlawful discrimination through local, 
state, or federal laws. In the City of Mill Creek, discrimination is considered unlawful or 
prohibited when it is due to a person’s race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, 
disability (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, citizenship, 
genetic information, or any other status or characteristic protected by local, state, or federal law.   
 
Reporting a Complaint 
 
Any employee with questions or concerns about equal employment opportunity in the workplace 
is encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of the City Manager and/or Human 
Resources. If an employee witnesses, or is the victim of, any disparate treatment or disparate 
impact, they should report their concern to the City Manager and/or Human Resources. The City 
will not allow any form of retaliation against individuals who raise issues of equal employment 
opportunity or unlawful discrimination. 
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 91 of 238







CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


1.4 Employees with Disabilities 1 rev. 07/2018 


1.4 EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES 


The City does not discriminate against any qualified employees or applicants with regard to 
terms or conditions of employment because of the individual's disability, perceived disability, or 
record of such disability, so long as the employee can perform the essential functions of the job, 
with or without reasonable accommodation. Reasonable accommodation will be provided to a 
qualified individual with a disability who has made the City aware of his/her disability and 
requested accommodation, unless the accommodation would constitute an undue hardship on 
the City. 


Requesting an Accommodation 


Employees or job applicants with a disability, who believe they need reasonable 
accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of their job, should contact Human 
Resources. This information will be treated confidentially, except to the extent other employees 
have a need to know (in order to evaluate the accommodation request or to accommodate the 
disability).  


The City encourages individuals with disabilities to request reasonable accommodation if 
needed, but employees are not required to disclose a disability unless they are seeking an 
accommodation. In order to ensure compliance with all applicable provisions of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the Washington Law Against Discrimination ("WLAD"), the City 
has outlined the following procedure for employees or job applicants requesting an 
accommodation: 


• Upon receipt of an accommodation request, Human Resources and the employee’s
supervisor will meet with the employee to discuss and identify the precise limitations resulting
from the disability and the potential accommodation that the employee believes the City
might make to help overcome those limitations. As needed, Human Resources may seek
input from the employee’s health care provider(s) to confirm the need for and explore
potential accommodations.


• The City will determine the feasibility of the requested accommodation by considering
various factors, including, but not limited to, the length of time the accommodation would be
needed for, the nature and cost of the accommodation, the City's overall financial resources,
and the accommodation's impact on City operations, including its impact on the ability of
other employees to perform their duties.


• Employees with disabilities are not entitled to the accommodation of their choice if an
alternative reasonable accommodation is available that sufficiently enables the employee to
perform the essential functions of his/her position. The City reserves the right to provide
alternative accommodations as appropriate after engaging in an interactive process with the
employee and/or his/her physicians. Whenever possible, reasonable accommodation will be
made provided that the accommodation does not constitute an undue hardship.


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 92 of 238







1.4 Employees with Disabilities 2 rev. 07/2018 


• The ADA and the WLAD do not require the City to make the best possible accommodation, 
to reallocate essential job functions, or to provide personal use items (i.e., eyeglasses, 
hearing aids, wheelchairs, etc.). 
 


• The City is responsible to inform the employee of its decision regarding the request for 
accommodation.  If the request is denied, employees may appeal the decision by submitting 
a written statement to the City Manager explaining the reasons for the request.  If the request 
on appeal is denied, the decision is final, but is subject to revision as conditions or 
circumstances may dictate. 


 
Any employee or job applicant who has questions regarding this procedure or believes that he 
or she has been discriminated against based on a disability should notify Human Resources.  
All such inquiries or complaints will be treated as confidential to the extent practical and 
permissible by law. Employees or job applicants who report discrimination will not be retaliated 
against in any way.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 93 of 238







 


CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


 


1.5 Whistleblowing 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
1.5 WHISTLEBLOWING 


 
 
The City strongly encourages employees to report improper governmental action taken by its 
officials or employees, and to do so without fear of retaliatory action. Per Washington State law, 
the following terms as used in this policy, are defined below: 
 
“Improper governmental action” is any action by a City employee that: 
 
 Is undertaken in the performance of the employee’s official duties (whether or not the action 


is within the scope of the employee’s job); and 
 Is; (i) in violation of any federal, state, or local law or rule; (ii) an abuse of authority; (iii) of 


substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety; or (iv) a gross waste of public 
funds. 


 "Improper governmental action" does not include personnel actions, such as: grievances, 
complaints, appointments, promotions, transfers, assignments, reassignments, 
reinstatements, reemployment, performance evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissals, 
suspensions, demotions, violations of collective bargaining or civil service laws, alleged 
violations of labor agreements, or reprimands. 


 
“Retaliatory action” is any adverse change in the terms and conditions of a City employee’s 
employment. 
 
To Report Improper Governmental Action 
 
City employees who become aware of what they believe may be improper governmental action 
are encouraged to raise the issue first with the City, i.e., their supervisor, the City Manager, or 
City Attorney. The employee should submit a written statement within thirty (30) days of the 
incident occurring, or within thirty (30) days of the employee becoming aware that the incident 
occurred. The statement should describe in detail the basis for the employee’s belief that an 
improper governmental action has occurred.  
 
In cases where the employee reasonably believes that the improper governmental action 
involves their supervisor, the employee shall raise the issue directly with the City Manager or 
City Attorney. In the case of an emergency, where the employee believes that imminent 
damage to persons or property may result if action is not taken immediately, the employee may 
report the improper governmental action directly to the appropriate government agency with 
responsibility for investigating the improper action. If the action creates an existing or imminent 
risk to employee or public safety, they should contact the police department and/or call 911. 
 
The supervisor, City Manager, and/or City Attorney shall take prompt action to assist the City in 
properly investigating the report of improper governmental action. City employees involved in 
the investigation shall keep the identity of reporting employee(s) confidential to the extent 
possible, unless the employee authorizes the disclosure of his/her identity in writing. After an 
investigation has been completed, the employee reporting the improper governmental action will 
be advised of a summary of the results of the investigation. Personnel actions taken as a result 
of the investigation may be kept confidential. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 94 of 238







1.5 Whistleblowing 2 rev. 07/2018 


Contacts 
 
City employees also have the right to report information about improper governmental action 
directly to the appropriate external government agency if they reasonably believe that (1) an 
adequate investigation was not undertaken by the City; (2) insufficient action has been taken by 
the City to address the improper governmental action; or (3) for other reasons the improper 
action is likely to recur. The following external agencies may accept reports, or may be able to 
direct an employee to the appropriate government agency in light of the nature of the improper 
government action: 
 
Snohomish County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office  
www.snohomishcountywa.gov/202/Prosecutor  
(425) 388-3333 
 
Washington State Office of the Attorney General 
www.atg.wa.gov 
(360) 753-6200 
 
U.S. Attorney’s Office (Western District of Washington) 
Department of Justice 
www.justice.gov/usao-wdwa 
(206) 553-7970 or (800) 797-6722 
 
Protection against Retaliatory Actions 
 
City officials and employees are prohibited from retaliating against a City employee because 
he/she has in good faith reported an improper governmental action in accordance with these 
procedures. 
 
Employees who believe that they have been retaliated against should promptly advise their 
supervisor, the City Manager, City Attorney, or Human Resources. City officials shall take 
appropriate action to investigate and address complaints of retaliation. In addition or as an 
alternative, the employee may obtain protection pursuant to state law by providing a written 
notice to the Mill Creek City Council within 30 days of the alleged retaliatory action that specifies 
the alleged retaliatory action and the relief requested. The City will respond to a charge of 
retaliation in accordance with the process set forth in RCW 42.41.040. 
 
Responsibilities 
 
The City Manager and Human Resources are responsible for implementing the City’s 
procedures for reporting improper governmental action and for protecting employees against 
retaliatory actions. This includes ensuring that these procedures are readily available to all 
employees, and are provided to all newly-hired employees.   
 
Directors, managers, and supervisors are responsible for ensuring the procedures are fully 
implemented within their areas of responsibility.  
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 95 of 238



http://www.snohomishcountywa.gov/202/Prosecutor

http://www.atg.wa.gov/

http://www.justice.gov/usao-wdwa

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.41.040





 


CHAPTER 1 – GOVERNING PRINCIPLES OF EMPLOYMENT 


 


1.6 Conflicts of Interest 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
1.6 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 


 
 
Promoting and preserving public confidence in City government depends largely on the integrity 
of City employees. No City employee shall engage in behavior or actions that are in conflict 
with, or would create the appearance of being in conflict with, official City business or the best 
interests of the City. Employees are expressly prohibited from using City personnel, time, 
property, equipment, or money for their own benefit or financial gain. Violations may lead to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 
Provided below are some examples of activities that are, or may be, prohibited. The examples 
provided are not meant as an exhaustive list. If an employee is not clear whether specific 
behavior would constitute a conflict of interest, they should seek immediate clarification from 
their supervisor, the City Manager, or Human Resources.  
 
Outside Employment 
 
Employees shall not engage in employment other than their City position if that employment 
would interfere with the efficient performance of their City job or would result in a poor public 
image for the City. Outside employment includes any activity for which an individual receives 
compensation, including consulting or self-employment. 
 
Solicitation 
 
Employees are not permitted to conduct or arrange for collections, solicitations or sales on City 
premises unless approved in advance by the City Manager. 
 
Political Activity 
 
In accordance with RCW 41.06.250, employees shall have the right to vote and to express their 
opinions on all subjects and candidates, to hold any political office, and to be involved in any 
political campaign, as long as that involvement is not during working hours or while performing 
official City duties. Nothing in this section shall prohibit an employee from participating fully in 
campaigns relating to constitutional amendments, referendums, initiatives/issues of a similar 
character and for partisan or non-partisan offices, as long as involvement is not during working 
hours or while performing official City duties, and is not prohibited by law.  
 
• Employees shall not hold a part-time public office for the City if holding office would interfere 


with the employee’s official job duties.  
• Employees shall not actively promote a political cause while at work unless they are acting 


in an approved official capacity on behalf of the City.   
• City property or equipment shall not be used to further any political campaign or candidate. 
• No person, elected official or City employee shall solicit a contribution to be used for political 


purposes on City property. Employees shall not use their City title or position to solicit or 
promote political activity. Employees shall not be required to make any contribution to a 
political party, an elected official, a candidate, or an initiative or referendum.   


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 96 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.06.250





1.6 Conflicts of Interest 2 rev. 07/2018 


• This is not intended to prevent employees from participating in advocacy activities, such as 
testifying to the legislature on behalf of their professional organizations or associations. The 
City Manager should be informed about such activities in advance. 


 
 
Acceptance of Gifts 
 
City employees may not use their position to solicit or secure special treatment, privileges or 
anything of value for themselves or others on more favorable terms than those granted to the 
public. City employees may not accept any type of gift or favor in exchange for their official 
services, or that could be construed as influential in any matter related to their service for the 
City.  
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 97 of 238







CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


2.1 Recruitment and Selection 1 rev. 07/2018 


2.1 RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 


The City recruits and selects employees on the basis of skill, ability, experience, and 
competence. We provide equal employment opportunity to all applicants, without unlawful 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, disability (including 
pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, citizenship, genetic information, 
or any other status or characteristic protected by local, state, or federal law. 


Job Openings 


Many factors are considered when deciding to recruit for a new employee, including the 
department budget, position responsibilities, and the existing staff. Some job openings may be 
posted only for internal applicants, while others may be posted for external applicants as well. 
Job openings may only be posted with the approval of the City Manager, Finance Director, and 
Human Resources.  


There may be instances when posting an open position is not required (for example, a 
reclassification of an employee, a formal appointment, etc.). Hiring without posting must be 
authorized by Human Resources and the City Manager. Selection procedures may be modified 
as appropriate when internal vacancies are being filled. 


Prior to initiating the recruitment for a job opening, the hiring manager should work with Human 
Resources to develop a new position description, or review and make any necessary updates to 
an existing position description as appropriate. All newly created or updated position 
descriptions must be approved by both Human Resources and the City Manager. 


Recruitment 


All recruitments will be posted internally on the City’s online employee portal for a minimum of 
six (6) working days. Recruitments may also be advertised on the City’s external website. 
External recruitment efforts may begin concurrently with the internal posting. Generally, 
positions will be left open until filled, unless there is a need to interview or hire a candidate 
within a specific time frame. In this case, the closing date for the position will be clearly identified 
in all recruitment materials. At the request of the hiring manager, advertisements may be placed 
in designated newspapers, publications, newsletters, etc. Applications are only accepted for 
current open positions, and must be submitted along with any other required materials or forms 
on or before the final date and closing time if specified in the position announcement. 


Upon request, the City will provide reasonable accommodation to applicants with a disability if 
needed. Applicants should notify Human Resources or the City Manager’s office at least five (5) 
working days prior to that need. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 98 of 238







2.1 Recruitment and Selection 2 rev. 07/2018 


 
Selection  
 
Human Resources will work with the hiring manager to identify the best qualified applicants to 
move forward in the recruitment process. Various factors such as prior experience, training, 
education, past job performance, demonstrated interpersonal and communication skills, attitude, 
etc. will be considered when selecting an applicant for further consideration.  
 
The selection process may include a phone screening or interview followed by a more formal in-
person interview and/or other pre-employment activities.  
 
Hiring 
 
Prior to extending any offer of employment, the candidate’s employment references must be 
checked by the hiring manager (or designee). Upon selection of a candidate, the hiring manager 
will partner with Human Resources to generate the terms of the offer letter (including starting 
salary). The hiring manager will then contact the successful candidate to officially extend an 
offer of employment or promotion. Any offer or agreement must be authorized by the City 
Manager in advance of the offer.  
 
All employment offers will be contingent upon the applicant providing any required 
documentation and/or passing required pre-employment checks.   
 
At the conclusion of the recruitment, all materials and/or documentation should be returned to 
Human Resources for filing with the recruitment file.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 99 of 238







 


CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


 


2.2 Position Descriptions 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
2.2 POSITION DESCRIPTIONS  


 
 
Position descriptions (also referred to as “job descriptions”) will be created and maintained as a 
collaborative effort between Human Resources and the applicable Department Director. 
Position descriptions are used not only as a tool in managing compensation, but also for 
performance management, employee development, workforce planning and determining 
employee and organizational training needs. They are meant to reflect the current 
responsibilities of the job described and will be created, updated, or retired as needed to reflect 
the changing needs of the Department and/or the City. Existing position descriptions shall not 
be seen as limiting the authority of the City to design, redesign, or assign work. 
 
All position descriptions will contain, at minimum, the following sections: 
 
• Position Title 
• Department 
• Salary Grade 
• Representation 
• Job Classification 
• Reports To 


• FLSA Exempt Status 
• General Description 
• Essential Job Functions 
• Qualifications 
• Minimum Requirements 


 
Position descriptions will also work in conjunction with documentation of Physical Requirements 
and Working Conditions. 
 
Position titles should be concise, meaningful, and descriptive of the work being performed. 
Essential Job Functions should be regarded as a list of minimum and high priority functions of a 
specific position, and not as prescribing the exact or complete duties of any position. 
Qualifications and Minimum Requirements sections will document the information necessary to 
recruit and select appropriate applicants that will be likely to succeed in the described position. 
 
All position descriptions must be approved by both Human Resources, the applicable 
Department Director, and the City Manager. When new position descriptions are created or 
existing position descriptions are significantly altered or retired, Union or Guild representatives 
may also be notified if necessary under the respective CBA.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 100 of 238







 


CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


 


2.3 Background and Reference Checks 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
2.3 BACKGROUND AND REFERENCE CHECKS  


 
 
The City performs pre-employment checks when hiring for all positions within the City. The 
purpose of these checks is to determine the qualifications and suitability of applicants, ensure 
the safety of other City employees and the public, and to comply with state and federal laws. 
Offers of employment are contingent on all pre-employment checks coming back satisfactory.  
 
The City is committed to ensuring that its pre-employment checking procedures comply with all 
applicable laws, including federal and state equal opportunity laws. The particular pre-
employment check(s) that are run will be determined by the specific position the applicant is 
applying for. Any or all of these checks may also be run on current employees applying for a 
position which requires background or reference checks that have not previously been 
performed.  
 
Reference Checks 
 
In considering a candidate for hire, reference checks may be completed prior to or in 
conjunction with extending a job offer. These are generally telephone calls made by the hiring 
manager to the candidate’s prior employers or other references to verify employment, 
performance, skills, character, etc. Reference checks must be completed before the employee 
begins work. 
 
Background Checks 
 
All positions (including interns and ongoing volunteers) will require a “basic” level background 
check that includes criminal conviction history. Additional checks (such as a credit check or 
verification of education) may be run if applicable to the position the applicant is applying for. 
Applicants for law enforcement positions may also be required to submit to a psychological 
evaluation, polygraph, medical exam, and/or additional background and reference checks. 
 
Prior to any background check, applicants will be advised that the background check is 
required, and applicants will be required to sign appropriate authorizations prior to the City 
performing any background check.   
 
Any information provided by the applicant found to be false or intentionally misleading will be 
grounds for disqualification or termination.  
 
Background Checks – Other 
 
Depending on the nature of an employee’s position, additional background checks may be 
required after hire. For example, Passport Acceptance Agents must have a separate 
background check completed by the Department of State, and a background check including 
fingerprinting is required for unescorted access to the Police Department. While these 
background checks can normally be submitted after a new employee begins work, continued 
employment may be contingent on the results being satisfactory. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 101 of 238







2.3 Background and Reference Checks 2 rev. 07/2018 


 
Disqualification or Termination 
 
All decisions with respect to employment will be based upon the totality of the applicant’s 
qualifications and results of any background or reference checks. Applicants will not be rejected 
based solely on a criminal conviction. The determination will be based on the following factors: 
 
• The nature and gravity of the offense(s) committed 
• The amount of time that has passed since the offense was committed 
• The nature of the job for which the applicant is being considered 
 
If the City determines that the applicant’s criminal record should preclude employment in the 
position sought, the candidate will be notified and afforded an opportunity to demonstrate why 
the criminal record should not preclude employment.  
 
Driving History Checks 
 
Employees that must drive a City vehicle for business purposes must provide a copy of their 
current Driver License and allow the City to check their driving history yearly. Employees must 
self-report incidents that may affect their ability to drive a vehicle in the course of their work for 
the City.  
 
Employees that are unable to lawfully operate a motor vehicle will be, depending on the nature 
of their job duties, temporarily reassigned, sent home until they are able to lawfully operate a 
motor vehicle, or be terminated. This decision must involve Human Resources and the City 
Manager. Additional information can be found in section 7.5 Vehicle Usage. 
 
Confidentiality 
 
The results of all background checks, reference checks, or other pre-employment checks will be 
kept confidential, and information will be shared only with City personnel who have a legitimate 
need to know.  
 
Reference 
 
RCW 43.43.830 – Background checks – Access to children or vulnerable persons – Definitions. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 102 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.43.830





CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


2.4 Trial Period 1 rev. 07/2018 


2.4 TRIAL PERIOD 


Trial Period 


When an employee is newly hired, the initial six (6) months in that job are considered a trial 
period. During the trial period, the City evaluates the job performance, ability and potential of 
new employees, and new employees have the opportunity to evaluate the City as an employer. 
The supervisor will orient the employee to the new job/department, provide training, observe, 
and evaluate the employee’s job performance and ability to successfully perform the job. The 
six (6) month trial period does not apply to employees that have been called back from a lay-off. 


Existing employees who have been transferred or promoted must also successfully complete a 
six (6) month trial period in their new position. Employees who do not successfully complete 
their trail period may be returned to their former position or another position for which they 
qualify, if a vacancy exists. If there is no vacancy, the employee may be discharged.  


Rules governing the trial period may be different for employees covered by a collective 
bargaining agreement. 


Supervisor Responsibilities 


One of the critical objectives of a trial employment period is to determine the new employee’s 
ability to perform a job. It is important that the supervisor clearly communicate the expectations 
for the employee’s job performance and their assessment of how the employee’s performance 
is meeting these expectations. Prior to the end of the trial period, the employee will receive a 
written evaluation that will document whether the employee is successfully meeting the 
performance expectations of the job.  


Extension of the Trial Period 


The department manager may extend the trial period for an additional amount of time, not to 
exceed six (6) additional months, in certain circumstances. This extension must be documented 
in the employee’s personnel file and authorized by the City Manager and Human Resources. 
Some of the reasons for doing this may be:  


• Additional training is required to achieve satisfactory performance in the new job.
• A performance problem has developed which is deemed to be correctable with additional


time, and it is in the interest of the City to do so.
• The department manager determines that there has been an insufficient or inadequate


opportunity to effectively evaluate the employee’s performance.


The supervisor should meet with the employee to discuss the reason for extending the trail 
period. If the extension is due to job-performance deficiencies, a written plan for correcting the 
deficiencies should be developed, documented and signed. (Performance Improvement Plan 
form may be used for documentation).  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 103 of 238







 


CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


 


2.5 Performance Management 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
2.5 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 


 
 
Philosophy 
 
The City of Mill Creek’s performance management program consists of multiple components 
designed to promote high performance and employee engagement. These components provide 
clear expectations for employees and supervisors, consistent methods for discussing individual 
employee performance, and tools for employees and supervisors to utilize when performance 
falls below standard. Each component is designed to work with the others in a constructive way. 
These components include our organizational STAR Values, Position Descriptions, 
Performance Evaluations, development and/or improvement plans, and a Disciplinary Process. 
 
Supervisor Responsibilities 
 
All supervisors are responsible for the following with regards to Performance Management: 
▪ Set clear expectations for employee performance.  
▪ Provide (or arrange for) the appropriate training for employees to meet those expectations. 
▪ Provide employees with the necessary communication, tools, materials, or resources to 


perform their jobs properly.  
▪ Model the City’s STAR values on a daily basis – lead by example. 
▪ Provide timely feedback on employee performance (outside of performance evaluations) 


and document when appropriate.  
▪ Complete performance evaluations in a timely manner and set aside an appropriate amount 


of time for the one on one discussion.  
▪ Take disciplinary action when appropriate.  
 
Employee Responsibilities 
 
All employees are responsible for the following with regards to Performance Management: 
▪ Learn what is expected in your job. Ask clarifying questions when needed.  
▪ Actively participate in all training provided, and request specific training from your supervisor 


when you believe it is necessary.  
▪ Inform your supervisor when there are barriers to completing your work properly. 


Communication is key! 
▪ Model the City’s STAR values on a daily basis – strive to be a leader among your peers. 
▪ Request feedback from your supervisor on your performance if you are unsure how you are 


doing.  
▪ Actively participate in the one on one discussion with your supervisor during your 


performance evaluations.   
 
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 104 of 238







2.5 Performance Management 2 rev. 07/2018 


STAR Values 
 


An important component of the City’s performance management program is the City of Mill 
Creek’s workplace values; known as the “STAR” values. These values were developed to help 
formalize performance expectations and to reinforce the attitudes, behaviors, and contributions 
that the City values in its employees. They support organizational goals and objectives, help 
drive employee engagement and job satisfaction, and provide guidance to employees in making 
the best decisions in the performance of their jobs.  
 
The City’s STAR values are: 
 
▪ Service: Through continuous improvement, innovation, creativity, professional competence 


and hard work, we enthusiastically provide outstanding service to all customers, internal and 
external. 


▪ Teamwork: In order to support our shared goals and successes, we teach, learn from, 
collaborate and cooperate with others, while being flexible, adaptable and inclusive. 


▪ Accountability: We are responsible for our actions and decisions, and always portray 
honesty, integrity, transparency and leadership in our contributions. 


▪ Respect: We take pride in our work and accomplishments, and in the work and 
accomplishments of others. We support an environment that honors the value and dignity of 
all individuals.  


 
Performance Evaluations 
 
Performance evaluations are another important component of the City’s performance 
management program. Employees will receive performance evaluations under the following 
circumstances; upon completion of their probationary period or seasonal / temporary position, 
and yearly on or around their anniversary date to provide continuing feedback. Employees may 
be evaluated more frequently if necessary to facilitate effective communication and feedback 
between the employee and their manager, or if required by their department or position.  
 
All performance evaluations will be completed by the employee’s immediate supervisor at the 
close of their evaluation period. If an employee has worked for multiple supervisors during that 
evaluation period, their immediate supervisor should make an effort to collect feedback from the 
employee’s previous supervisors to ensure the evaluation provides an accurate picture of the 
employee’s performance during that evaluation period.  
 
Employees will be evaluated on their work performance as it relates to their job description, the 
City’s STAR Values, and any performance goals that were assigned during their previous 
evaluation or throughout the evaluation period. Employees will be given an opportunity to 
discuss their past performance and future goals in a one on one meeting with their supervisor. 
Employees that supervise others will also be evaluated on their supervisory skills.  
 
Performance Improvement Plans 
 
If an employee’s overall work performance results in an evaluation that does not meet the 
minimum requirements or expectations of their position, that employee will be placed on a 
Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). The PIP in and of itself shall not be considered 
disciplinary action, but could lead to disciplinary action if an employee does not successfully 
follow or complete the plan. A supervisor may initiate a PIP at any time if they have determined 
that the employee’s performance or behavioral concerns are serious enough to require marked 
improvement in order to achieve a satisfactory performance level.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 105 of 238







2.5 Performance Management 3 rev. 07/2018 


The purpose of the PIP is to outline the performance or behavioral concern(s) that the 
supervisor has identified, clearly define a plan of action for the employee to complete within a 
specified time frame to bring their performance up to expectations, and define what actions the 
employee can expect to see if they fail to successfully follow or complete the plan. A copy of the 
signed PIP will be kept in the employee’s personnel file. At the end of the time period specified 
in the PIP, the employee and their supervisor will meet to discuss the plan’s success, and close 
out, adjust, or extend the plan as appropriate. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 106 of 238







CHAPTER 2 – EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 


2.6 Separation from Employment 1 rev. 07/2018 


2.6 SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT 


Voluntary Termination 


In most cases, separation from employment is initiated voluntarily by the employee. There are 
multiple reasons for this happening, for example; an employee accepts another job, moves out 
of the area, retires, etc. Although an at-will employee may resign at any time, the City expects 
that, as a professional courtesy, the employee give a minimum of two (2) weeks notice, or at 
least two (2) weeks of work at the employee’s regular schedule before the resignation becomes 
effective. The City also requests that an employee provide his/her supervisor or department 
manager a written notification explaining the reason(s) for the resignation and the effective date. 
This can be through a letter written from the employee to the supervisor, or by using the City’s 
Employment Separation form.  


The supervisor is responsible for assuring that separation notification is submitted to Human 
Resources as soon as they become aware, and will also be responsible for collecting City 
property, such as keys, telephones, equipment, etc., and ensuring that access to buildings 
and/or systems is discontinued.  


Employees will typically not be allowed to use paid time off during their notification period. An 
employee who resigns without any notification, or does not work their notification period, may be 
considered ineligible for re-hire with the City.  


Involuntary Termination 


In some instances, separation from employment is initiated by the City and is involuntary for the 
employee. There are multiple reasons for this happening, for example; serious misconduct, 
inability to perform essential job functions, elimination of position (layoff), resignation in lieu of 
termination, etc.  


Depending on the reason for separation, the employee may or may not be given a notice period 
prior to their separation date. Written notification including the terms of the separation will be 
placed in the employee’s personnel file and a copy will be given to the employee prior to the 
separation date.  


Layoff 


On occasion, the City may find it necessary to lay off employees due to lack of work, budgetary 
constraints, or restructuring of the work force. Affected employees will be given as much notice 
as reasonably possible under the circumstances before the layoff occurs and reasonable efforts 
will be made to transfer the affected employees into other positions. Generally, the layoff 
procedure is as follows, although the City retains the discretion to follow some or none of the 
steps below: 


• In most cases, temporary or casual employees performing similar work should be laid off
before regular employees are affected.


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 107 of 238







2.6 Separation from Employment  2 rev. 07/2018 


• Options such as part-time work schedules, job sharing, and voluntary schedule and/or pay 
reductions may be explored if feasible and approved by the City Manager.  


 
Alternative rules may apply to employees covered under a collective bargaining agreement.  
 
Retirement 
 
Retirement is regarded as a voluntary separation, the same notification expectations exist, and 
the same Employment Separation form may be used. To facilitate a smooth transition from work 
to retirement, employees who will be applying for retirement from the Department of Retirement 
Systems (DRS) may want to contact DRS prior to retirement. DRS will be able to answer 
questions and coordinate required paperwork and/or notification. Employees should be aware 
that if they plan to work after retirement, there may be restrictions on the hours they may work, 
or the positions they may work in. Before returning to work after retirement, employees should 
contact any agency they are receiving a benefit from to ensure that those benefits will not be 
affected. 
 
Final Paycheck 
 
The employee’s final paycheck will be paid through direct deposit on the next regular payday 
following the effective date of the separation.  
 
• Upon separation of an employee by resignation, layoff, termination, or death, any accrued 


and unused annual leave and comp time is paid to the employee (or beneficiary) in full on 
the final paycheck at the employee’s pay rate at the time of separation.  


• Unused administrative leave is not paid out upon separation.   
• Unused floating holidays are not paid out upon separation. 
• Unused sick leave is not paid out upon separation, except in the following circumstances: 


Upon voluntary resignation or lay-off, employees in good standing with at least ten 
continuous years of service, or the equivalent of at least fifteen years of non-continuous 
service with the City, will be paid out 25% of their accrued sick leave balance, up to a 
maximum of 200 hours.  


 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 108 of 238







CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


3.1 Personal Appearance and Dress Code 1  rev. 07/2018 


3.1 PERSONAL APPEARANCE AND DRESS CODE 


General Guidelines 


In the interest of the City and the public, it is desirable to maintain a high standard of 
professionalism in the workplace, both in appearance and in conduct. City employees are 
expected to present a neat, clean, professional appearance that is appropriate to the work they 
perform. More specific departmental dress and grooming standards may be defined by 
department managers as required to meet operational and/or safety needs. Standard uniforms 
are required in some departments (i.e. Police, Public Works).  


Employees are encouraged to always use their best judgment with respect to their attire and 
appearance, and to ask their supervisor if they need clarification. 


Personal Appearance 


Personal cleanliness and good hygiene are required of all employees at all times. Clothing 
should be clean, neat and wrinkle free. An individual who reports to work inappropriately 
dressed or poorly groomed may be sent home and asked to return to work with attire or 
grooming standards that meet the requirements of this policy. Heavily scented lotions, 
perfumes, or colognes should be avoided.  


Visible tattoos and body piercings are not prohibited if in good taste and not likely to be 
offensive to co-workers or the public. Tattoos with vulgar or offensive content must be covered 
completely while performing work for the City.  


Appropriate Work Attire 


In general, standard work attire at the City of Mill Creek is “business casual.” Business casual is 
described as “comfortable, while projecting a professional and businesslike image to our 
customers.” Business casual dressing would include neat, clean and wrinkle free clothing that 
would be appropriate to the type of work and/or interactions that are required by the employee’s 
particular position. City logo wear is encouraged, but not required unless otherwise specified by 
the department supervisor. 


Formal business attire, such as a business suit, may be required at certain times depending on 
the specific business activity or work environment.  


Managers will clarify standards of dress within their respective departments, taking into account 
the type of work the department performs. Employees who work in the field, and not primarily in 
direct contact with the public may dress more casually if necessary to do their job, but should 
always be mindful of the City’s public image. For example; casual jeans, sweatshirts and work 
boots may be appropriate dress for Public Works employees, but inappropriate for staff working 
in the office. Casual clothing such as tee shirts, athletic shoes, shorts and/or hats may also be 
acceptable in certain circumstances, such as when engaged in active recreation supervision or 
other similar work activities.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 109 of 238







3.1 Personal Appearance and Dress Code 2   rev. 07/2018 


 
Shoes for all employees should be clean, safe, and job appropriate. Some departments may 
have specific requirements for work shoes or boots.   
 
Inappropriate Work Attire 


 
The following types of clothing are some examples of attire that is inappropriate for the 
workplace and not allowed:  
 
 Immodest or revealing clothing such as very short shorts or skirts.  
 Clothing that is see-through, very tight, ill-fitting, or worn without appropriate undergarments. 
 Very casual shoes such as flip flops.   
 Clothing with words, sayings, or pictures. 
 Any clothing that prevents an employee from wearing required protective equipment. 
 Any clothing or jewelry that is deemed unsafe to wear for the work being performed. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 110 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.2 Attendance 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.2 ATTENDANCE 


 
 
General Guidelines 
 
In order to maintain a safe and productive work environment, the City expects employees to be 
present at their worksite and ready to work during their regularly scheduled hours. Absence 
and/or tardiness can disrupt the workplace and place a burden on other employees and on 
department and City operations. Regular and satisfactory attendance is a requirement of every 
position within the City of Mill Creek. Habitual or excessive attendance issues may be a cause 
for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
Notification Requirements 
 
Note: Notification requirements or procedures may differ within the City departments based on 
the nature of the work being performed and the operational needs of the department. Managers 
are responsible for clarifying specific departmental procedures regarding notification with their 
respective employees. Employees are responsible for knowing and following the attendance 
procedures within their respective department as well as the following guidelines: 
 
• When employees cannot avoid being late to work or are unable to work as scheduled, they 


should notify their supervisor as early as possible in advance of the anticipated tardiness or 
absence. In general, notice should be at least an hour prior to their scheduled start time.  


• Employees are required to notify their supervisor each day of their absence, unless prior 
notification of a specific duration of absence has been provided (such as with an approved 
leave of absence or other approved time off). For clarification on use of sick leave, FMLA 
leave, or other types of leave, see Ch. 5 Time Off and Leaves of Absence.  


• Scheduled time off should be pre-arranged with the employee’s supervisor in advance of the 
need to take time off in order to facilitate departmental planning and work coverage.  


• If an employee needs an extended lunch break or to leave work early, notice must be given 
to the supervisor in advance, and the supervisor must approve of the adjustment to the 
employee’s work hours. 


• Supervisors have the discretion to not approve time off requests or adjustments if doing so 
would be detrimental to department operations. 


 
An employee who is absent without providing notice (no call/no show) may be subject to 
disciplinary action. Absence for three (3) consecutive days/shifts without notification may be 
considered job abandonment and a voluntary resignation. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 111 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.3 Anti-Harassment 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.3 ANTI-HARASSMENT 


 
 
The City of Mill Creek is committed to providing a professional environment where all individuals 
are treated with respect and dignity, and all relationships are free of bias, prejudice, unlawful 
harassment and discrimination. Actions, words, jokes, comments, texts, email or physical 
gestures considered to be harassing or discriminatory will not be allowed. Intolerant, 
disrespectful, denigrating, bullying or intimidating behavior is expressly prohibited by the City, 
and will result in appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of the offender.  
 
What is Harassment? 
 
“Harassment” is any unwelcome conduct, verbal or physical, based upon one’s race, color, 
religion, gender, national origin, age, disability (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender 
identity, marital status, citizenship, genetic information, or any other status or characteristic 
protected by local, state, or federal law which: 
 
• creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment,  
• unreasonably interferes with an individual’s work performance, or 
• otherwise adversely impacts an individual’s work performance or work environment 
 
Harassment can also be sexual in nature, involving comments, suggestions, or touching that is 
unwanted, uninvited, or offensive, or “quid pro quo” harassment, which involves requests for 
sexual favors in exchange for something (such as a promotion, or a positive performance 
evaluation). 
 
Harassment and discrimination in the workplace is prohibited by both law and company policy. 
 
It is important to remember that what is unwelcome or offensive to one person may be different 
from what is unwelcome or offensive to another.  
 
Examples of Harassment 
 
Examples of harassment may include, but are not limited to: 
 
• Offensive pictures, cartoons, stories, or jokes (for example, a racially demeaning joke) 
• Unwelcome requests for sexual favors 
• Touching that is unwelcome or uninvited (can include hugs) 
• Disciplining an employee for refusal to provide sexual favors 
• Unwelcome or uninvited comments that are sexual in nature 
• Showing an inappropriate video at work (such as comedy that is derogatory in nature, or a 


video with inappropriate sexual content) 
 
Note: there may be other topics that are inappropriate for work that do not fall under the 
definition of harassment. Employees should use their best judgement when engaging in non-
work related conversations with their co-workers.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 112 of 238







3.3 Anti-Harassment 2 rev. 07/2018 


Employee Responsibilities 
 
All employees are required to abide by the City’s STAR values and treat each other with respect 
and dignity. Should any form of harassment be witnessed or suspected, employees are strongly 
encouraged to report the incident, either verbally or by written complaint to Human Resources, 
the City Manager, or a department director, and may do so without fear of retaliation. Any 
employee can and should report harassing behavior, even if they do not feel that they are the 
victim of the harassment.  
 
Supervisor Responsibilities 
 
All City management members are responsible for taking immediate and appropriate corrective 
action if they witness inappropriate behavior or receive a complaint. Managers are expected to 
enable channels of communication to allow employees to raise concerns of sexual or other 
harassment without fear of retaliation, to address observed harassment, and to treat 
harassment matters with sensitivity, objectivity and confidentiality. All complaints should be 
relayed to Human Resources, the City Manager, or the City Council (as appropriate for the 
situation) to allow for investigation. 
 
Reporting Harassment 
 
The first step employees should take (if appropriate to the situation) is to notify the offender that 
their behavior is unwelcome and request that it be immediately discontinued. Often, this action 
will resolve the problem.  
 
If the employee does not believe this action to be appropriate, they should notify their 
supervisor, another member of management, Human Resources, or the City Manager as soon 
as possible. Complaints may be made either verbally or in writing. It is helpful if the employee 
documents the incident and what their response was, including dates, times, and witnesses. 
This statement may prove helpful if the harassment continues and an investigation is 
conducted.  
 
Sometimes an employee reporting harassment seeks only to discuss the matter informally and 
does not wish the City to undertake an investigation or to take further steps. Individuals 
reporting harassment should be aware that the City may be required to take action to address 
the harassment, regardless of their preference. 
 
Investigating Harassment 
 
Once reported, all complaints of harassment will be investigated thoroughly. Choice of 
investigator, level of formality, and the procedures used in the investigation may vary depending 
upon the nature of the allegations and circumstances of the situation. The investigation may 
include interviews with the involved parties, with employees or others who may have observed 
the incident, or with employees who may be similarly situated and able to provide pertinent 
information. Confidentiality will be maintained throughout the investigatory process to the extent 
practical and consistent with the City’s needs. The City will make every effort to ensure that 
complaints of harassment or discrimination are resolved promptly, effectively, and as 
confidentially as possible.  
 
If harassing conduct is found to have occurred, the City will take prompt and appropriate 
corrective action. Discipline may include verbal and written reprimands, professional counseling 
and/or training, reassignment, or other appropriate action, up to and including termination.  The 
affected individuals will be informed of the outcome of the investigation. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 113 of 238







3.3 Anti-Harassment 3 rev. 07/2018 


False or malicious complaints of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with 
appropriately, and may warrant disciplinary action.  


There will be no retaliation by the City, its officers, elected officials, supervisors, or other 
employees toward an employee bringing a complaint in good faith, or cooperating with the 
investigation of a harassment complaint, even if the complaint of harassment is ultimately 
unsupported by the investigation. Should the City find evidence of retaliation, immediate and 
appropriate corrective action will be taken. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 114 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.4 Drug Free Workplace 1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.4 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 


 
 
The City of Mill Creek is committed to protecting the safety, health and well-being of our 
employees and visitors, and we strive to maintain a drug and alcohol free workplace. The 
manufacture, possession, distribution, dispensing, consumption/use of marijuana, alcohol, or 
drugs/controlled substances by employees is strictly prohibited in the workplace and may be 
cause for disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 
Employees under the influence of marijuana, alcohol, or drugs/controlled substances may have 
impaired work performance and can pose a serious safety hazard to themselves, co-workers, 
and the public. We encourage employees to voluntarily seek diagnostic, counseling and 
treatment services (such as those provided by the City’s health care plans and Employee 
Assistance Program) if they are concerned that they may have a dependency. 
 
Definitions 
 
The following definitions apply specifically to this section: 
 
• Chemical Dependency. Addiction to alcohol or controlled substances (either of a 


prescription or illegal nature); this definition does not cover those who have successfully 
completed a recognized rehabilitation program and are no longer alcohol or controlled 
substance users. 


• Controlled Substances. Those substances whose distribution is controlled by regulation or 
federal/state law. 


• Drugs. Any substance that, in the opinion of the employee’s supervisor, impairs an 
employee’s ability to perform his/her job or that poses a threat to the safety of others.  This 
definition includes prescription and over-the-counter medications. 


• Impaired Behavior/Under the Influence. Behavior that may limit the employee’s ability to 
perform his/her job duties safely and efficiently or that poses a threat to the safety of the 
employee or others. 


• Workplace. Includes all property owned or leased by the City, City controlled premises, 
vehicles, and workstations. 


 
Employee Responsibilities 
 
To ensure a workplace free from the recognized hazards of marijuana, alcohol, and 
drugs/controlled substances, the following responsibilities lie with employees of the City at every 
level.  
 
• Employees may not report to work if they are impaired by or under the influence of 


marijuana, alcohol, or drugs/controlled substances, even if their use or consumption 
occurred off-duty.  


• Consumption or use of marijuana, alcohol, or drugs/controlled substances during the work 
shift, including on unpaid breaks, is prohibited. Note: Possession and use of prescription 
drugs (excluding medically prescribed marijuana) or over-the-counter drugs is not prohibited 
if taken in standard dosage or according to prescription.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 115 of 238







3.4 Drug Free Workplace 2 rev. 07/2018 


• Employees taking prescription or over-the-counter drugs that would prevent the employee 
from performing their job safely or effectively must inform their supervisor and/or the Human 
Resources Manager. Depending on the nature of the employee’s job and the availability of 
alternative work, they may be temporarily re-assigned or sent home. 


• Employees are required to comply with reasonable suspicion drug/alcohol testing as 
described below. Failure to promptly consent to such tests or testing positive for drugs or 
alcohol may result in discipline up to and including termination.   


• Employees must report criminal convictions for illegal drug activity in the workplace in 
accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. The report must be made in writing 
to their department director or his/her designee within five calendar days of the conviction. 
Failure to do so may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  


• All employees must agree to comply with the responsibilities and procedures described here 
as a condition of employment. Violations may subject the employee to appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 


 
Employer Responsibilities 
 
• Personal information related to drug and alcohol testing or treatment that is shared with 


Human Resources will be kept confidential to the extent permissible by law. Any related 
documentation is maintained separately from the employee’s performance related personnel 
records.  


• The City will provide reasonable accommodation to support employees participating in a 
professional treatment program as long as the accommodation does not impose an undue 
hardship on the City.   


• No employee will be disciplined or discriminated against simply for seeking help and/or 
participating in a treatment program. However, if an incident at work occurs that violates City 
expectations, policies, or guidelines, the City reserves the right to take disciplinary and/or 
corrective action as appropriate, up to and including termination. 


• In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, additional requirements are made 
of any City employees who work in a department or division that receives one or more 
federal contract awards of $25,000 or more, or a federal grant regardless of grant size as 
follows: The City Manager or his/her designee shall notify the federal contracting or granting 
agency of any criminal convictions of employees for illegal drug activity in the workplace 
within ten (10) days of learning about the conviction. 


 
Drug and Alcohol Testing 
 
In cases where the City has reasonable suspicion that an employee may be under the influence 
of marijuana, alcohol, or drugs/controlled substances while on duty, the City may require that 
employee to submit to appropriate tests, including urinalysis or breath tests, to determine the 
presence of marijuana, alcohol, or drugs/controlled substances in the employee’s system.  
 
Reasonable suspicion testing determinations must be supported by written documentation from 
an observer that includes specific, contemporaneous, and articulable observations. 
(Observations may include information about an employee's behavior, appearance, speech or 
body odors associated with alcohol or drug use.) City personnel authorized to make reasonable 
suspicion determinations must be familiar with the signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use. 
Drug and alcohol testing (excluding a preliminary breath test if appropriate) may only be 
conducted by a laboratory certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. An 
employee required to submit to reasonable suspicion testing will be relieved from duty and 
transported by a City representative to a collection site. 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 116 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.5 Non-Smoking Workplace 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.5 NON-SMOKING WORKPLACE 


 
 
In order to maintain a safe and healthy work environment for all employees and the community, 
the City prohibits smoking and the use of tobacco related products (including vaporizers, e-cigs, 
chewing tobacco, etc.) in all City vehicles and facilities, including City owned or leased buildings 
and offices. Smoking and the use of tobacco products is prohibited within twenty-five (25) feet of 
any entrances, exits, windows that open, parking areas and ventilation intakes that serve an 
enclosed area. This applies to any “place of employment” or “work areas,” and any area which 
employees are required to pass through during the course of employment.  
 
Washington law significantly restricts the outdoor areas where individuals may smoke in relation 
to the location of City buildings, City parks, work areas and public places. Because the law 
prohibits any person from smoking at a place of employment, members of work crews are 
prohibited by law from smoking at any worksite locations. When at a worksite, an employee may 
only smoke while on his or her break, and must be at least 25 feet from other working City 
employees, and 25 feet from all entrances, exits, windows that open, parking areas, and 
ventilation intakes that serve an enclosed area where smoking is prohibited. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 117 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.6 Workplace Violence 1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.6 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE 


 
 
What is Workplace Violence? 
 
“Violence” in this section means a verbal or physical action or behavior that may include, but is 
not limited to: 
• Behavior that would be interpreted by a reasonable person as menacing or potentially 


harmful, or would cause a reasonable person to feel unsafe;  
• Physical assault; 
• Intimidating or abusive behavior or language (this may include yelling, screaming, written 


threats, inappropriate use of phones, email, etc.); 
• A communicated or reasonably perceived threat to harm, harass, abuse, or intimidate 


another; 
• Threatening to destroy or destroying property; or 
• Carrying or displaying weapons.  
 
In order to promote a positive, respectful and safe work environment that reduces the potential 
for violence in and around the workplace, the City of Mill Creek will not tolerate acts or threats of 
violence, either implied or actual, from any person, made toward employees, the public, City 
property, or in connection with City business. Even threats made in jest will not be tolerated. 
The City will utilize appropriate means of enforcement or intervention to protect the workplace 
from violence. An employee who exhibits violence as defined above may be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
 
Reporting and Responding to Threats 
 
City employees are responsible for notifying management of any potential threats they have 
witnessed, received, or have been told about. Any employee involved in situations on the job 
where they fear physical violence, or have concern for their own safety or the safety of others, 
should immediately report the situation to their manager, Human Resources, or another 
member of City management who will initiate an investigation. 
 
City employees who witness or are the victim of a threat that creates an existing or imminent 
risk to employees or public safety should contact the police department and/or call 911.  
 
Supervisors who believe that an employee represents a workplace violence concern should 
notify the City Manager or Human Resources immediately. The City has a responsibility to 
investigate and respond to all violent or potentially violent situations. Behavioral problems will be 
addressed through corrective counseling and disciplinary action as appropriate to the 
circumstances, up to and including termination.  
 
In some cases, a criminal charge or investigation may also be applicable. Appropriate discipline 
or discharge of City employees is not contingent on a criminal conviction.  
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 118 of 238







3.6 Workplace Violence 2  rev. 07/2018 


Concerns about Non-Employees 
 
While the City holds a strong commitment to customer service, employees are not expected to 
be subjected to verbal abuse or physical threats from the public (this includes contractors or 
vendors as well). Employees experiencing violent or threatening behavior from a customer, 
contractor, member of the public, etc. should immediately notify their supervisor. 
  
If any altercation constitutes an emergency, the employee or supervisor should CALL 911 (dial 
8-911 when using City phones).  Any threats of harm or violence will be referred to the police 
department. 
 
Safety Concerns and Court Orders 
 
Any employee who is concerned about personal safety at the workplace may request security 
precautions from City management, his or her supervisor, and/or the City police department at 
any time (e.g. an escort to and from his/her vehicle or other appropriate precautions). 
 
If an employee has been served a protection or no-contact order that would restrict his/her 
ability to perform assigned duties or be at a City work location, he/she is required to inform 
his/her manager. The manager, in consultation with Human Resources, will consider possible 
job modifications and the safety interests of other employees and the public when determining 
an appropriate course of action. The City reserves the right to discipline and/or terminate the 
employment of employees who are restricted in their ability to perform their job duties as a result 
of court issued orders.  
 
Assistance with Workplace Violence Concerns 
 
The City offers an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to assist employees and their families 
when experiencing personal or job-related problems. An employee of the City wishing 
confidential assistance can call the EAP office for assessment, referral to treatment, and follow-
up.  
 
The City does not have access to EAP information unless authorized by the employee or in 
situations when information must lawfully be disclosed by the EAP for the protection of others.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 119 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.7 Personal Weapons  1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.7 PERSONAL WEAPONS 


 
 
The City prohibits wearing, transporting, storing, or the presence of firearms or other weapons 
while on City premises or property or performing work for the City off-site except in the case 
where those employees are: 1) employed as commissioned law enforcement officers, or 2) 
legally in possession of a weapon, and the weapon is locked within a personal vehicle and 
concealed from view (RCW 9.41.050.2). Note: Law enforcement officers may have additional or 
alternative policies or procedures that describe the possession or use of personal weapons 
while on duty. Law enforcement personnel should follow their department specific policies or 
procedures relating to personal weapons. 
 
If the City has reasonable suspicion that an employee is in violation of this section and 
represents a threat to other City employees, City property, or the public, the City reserves the 
right to conduct and/or allow a search of City property, or the employee’s personal property 
(including their vehicle) if located on City premises or used in City work. City representatives 
must receive written consent from the employee prior to a search of personal property. Refusal 
to provide consent for a search under these circumstances may result in termination of 
employment. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 120 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.41.050





 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.8 Disciplinary Process 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.8 DISCIPLINARY PROCESS 


 
 
Philosophy 
 
The City relies on each employee’s good judgment, professionalism, and sense of responsibility 
to residents and co-workers as the principal source of guidance in the performance of their 
work. This section is intended to illustrate the parameters of acceptable conduct and provide for 
consistency in actions taken when those parameters are exceeded. Disciplinary actions for 
seasonal, temporary, or probationary employees may be handled summarily instead of 
progressively if appropriate. 
 
Each step of disciplinary action should be constructive, and include an attempt to help the 
employee correct job performance deficiencies or violations of standards of conduct by clearly 
identifying the deficiency or violation and describing how to correct the deficiency or offending 
behavior. 
 
In most situations, when discipline becomes necessary, the steps of disciplinary action 
described on the next page will be applied in progressive, sequential order beginning with the 
least severe action. If, after taking into account the totality of the situation and the severity of the 
infraction, a different course is deemed to be necessary, then the steps in this sequence may be 
omitted, repeated, or rearranged. Any deviation from progressive, sequential order must be 
approved by Human Resources and the City Manager.  
 
Verbal Counseling or Coaching 
 
Verbal counseling or coaching should be used for minor instances of misconduct, to inform an 
employee of a potential performance issue, or to clarify an expectation. In most cases, 
counseling or coaching is not considered disciplinary action and may take the form of an 
informal conversation, be part of a one on one meeting, or occur in conjunction with a 
Performance Improvement Plan.  
 
Pre-Disciplinary Meetings 
 
For any discipline more severe than a written warning, a pre-disciplinary meeting shall be held. 
The employee will be given a written notice of the reason for discipline and a summary of the 
facts. The employee will be given a reasonable length of time, dependent on the situation, to 
respond to the notice, either orally or in writing, and to explain if/why the disciplinary action is 
not warranted. The pre-disciplinary meeting shall not be construed to limit the City at any 
subsequent hearing or proceeding from presenting a more detailed and complete case, 
including the presentation of witnesses and/or documents not previously made known to the 
employee. The disciplinary decision may be made immediately upon conclusion of the pre-
disciplinary meeting or within five (5) days thereof.  
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 121 of 238







3.8 Disciplinary Process 2 rev. 07/2018 


Steps of Disciplinary Action 
 
The following steps of disciplinary action are presented in progressive, sequential order, from 
least to most severe.    
 


• Written Warning 
A written warning is issued to an employee when verbal counseling or coaching has 
failed to correct the offending behavior, or if misconduct or inadequate performance is 
severe enough to require formal written documentation. The intent of the written warning 
is to define the seriousness of the situation so the employee may take immediate 
corrective action. Written warnings will be retained in the employee’s personnel file. 


 
• Disciplinary Probation  


Disciplinary probation may be used if a written warning has failed to correct the offending 
behavior, or if misconduct or inadequate performance is severe enough to require the 
employee to be placed on disciplinary probation. Disciplinary probation is generally 
considered to be a final warning and typically includes specific requirements that must 
be clearly demonstrated within a period of time. Documentation of the circumstances 
related to disciplinary probation will be placed in the employee’s official personnel file, 
and must be signed by the department director and Human Resources. An employee 
who is on disciplinary probation and receives further disciplinary action (related or 
unrelated to the cause of the disciplinary probation) could be immediately terminated.  
 


• Disciplinary Suspension 
Depending upon the seriousness of the employee’s behavior or misconduct, disciplinary 
probation may be accompanied by a disciplinary suspension. A disciplinary suspension 
is a suspension without pay and should not exceed fifteen (15) working days. The City 
Manager must approve all suspension without pay actions. Documentation regarding the 
disciplinary suspension will be placed in the employee’s official personnel file, and must 
be signed by the department director and Human Resources. 
 


• Discharge 
In instances that involve serious insubordination, theft, illegal or destructive acts while on 
the job, or other reasons deemed to be equally serious by the City Manager, an 
employee may be subject to immediate discharge. If repeated offenses of a less serious 
nature have been documented by the supervisor and appropriate behavioral changes 
have not resulted from prior disciplinary action, an employee may be immediately 
discharged. All discharges must first be approved by the City Manager and Human 
Resources. 


At any level of discipline, if it is necessary to investigate a situation to determine what further 
disciplinary action may be justified, or when it is deemed necessary to temporarily remove an 
employee from the work environment, a suspension with pay may be used. A suspension with 
pay should be used only when the appropriate level of discipline has not yet been decided, and 
must be approved by Human Resources and/or the City Manager as the most appropriate 
course of action based on the circumstances. This type of suspension is also referred to as 
“Paid Administrative Leave.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 122 of 238







3.8 Disciplinary Process 3 rev. 07/2018 


Causes for Discipline 


The following list is provided to illustrate examples of actions or behavior that may be 
considered cause for disciplinary action and/or discharge. This list should not be considered as 
exhaustive, and any employee may be disciplined or discharged for reasonable cause.  


Violation of any City ordinance, regulation, directive, policy, rule, or procedure, including but not 
limited to: 


• Violations of safety rules or common safety practices; personal conduct at work which is
dangerous to others; failure to report on-the-job injuries or accidents promptly to employee’s
supervisor.


• Sexual harassment or any other form of harassment towards another person.
• Arriving on the job under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs; or using such substances


on City property or while performing official City duties.
• Unauthorized absence from work; habitual absence or tardiness; abuse of sick leave.
• Unauthorized possession of firearms or other dangerous weapons on City property or while


performing City duties.
• Conviction of a felony or a misdemeanor that could adversely affect the employee’s ability to


perform the duties of his/her position.
• Failing to maintain an acceptable level of work performance.


Dishonesty and/or lack of integrity in the workplace, including but not limited to: 


• Falsification of City records, including time cards, employment applications, employment
records, or financial statements.


• Use of City property, equipment, or time for personal financial gain or personal benefit.
• Unauthorized possession or use of City property, equipment or materials; theft of city


property or property belonging to employees or customers.
• Misuse of City funds, including personal expenses charged to the City.
• Accepting fees, gifts, or other valuable items in the performance of the employee’s official


City duties.
• Failure to maintain confidentiality of information or documents as appropriate.


Conduct unbecoming of a City employee, including but not limited to: 


• Insubordinate behavior or actions such as willfully disobeying a supervisor or Department
Director.


• Negligent or willful damage to the City property; misuse or waste of supplies, vehicles or
equipment.


• Discourteous or disrespectful treatment of the public or other employees.
• Interfering with or disrupting the work of other employees on the job.
• Fighting on the job; engaging in disorderly conduct or horseplay; using insulting, or obscene


language.


Any other action determined by the City to be of detriment to the City’s operations or the City’s 
reputation in the community.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 123 of 238







CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


3.9 Complaint Resolution 1  rev. 07/2018 


3.9 COMPLAINT RESOLUTION 


Complaint vs. Grievance 


For the purposes of this policy, a “grievance” is defined as a claim or dispute by an employee or 
group of employees with respect to a violation of the provisions of their collective bargaining 
agreement. Employees covered by a labor agreement must use the grievance processes 
outlined in their collective bargaining agreements to address these types of concerns. 


Concerns that do not meet the definition of “grievance” may be addressed using the guidelines 
and process below. This also offers employees not covered by a labor contract the means to 
seek resolution for problems or complaints related to the application of City policies.  


Guidelines and Process 


The City encourages honest and open communication in all employment relationships, and 
believes it is in the best interests of the organization and the employee for problems to be 
resolved at the lowest level possible. Employees and supervisors are encouraged to address 
problems and pursue solutions through an informal process of communication and problem 
solving. 


Often times, a complaint is due to a misunderstanding and can be resolved quickly. If 
addressing the complaint informally does not offer a satisfactory resolution, employees should 
document their concerns and forward their complaint to their supervisor, department director, or 
Human Resources.  


Once formally notified of a complaint, an investigation may be conducted to determine an 
appropriate resolution. The employee(s) involved will be informed of the outcome as 
appropriate.  


If the employee is not satisfied with that resolution, they may request that the matter be 
reviewed by the City Manager. There may be additional investigation and review of the situation 
before issuing a final resolution.  


Retaliation 


The City prohibits all forms of retaliation against employees following this process. Filing a 
formal complaint will not prevent the City from administering appropriate action.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 124 of 238







CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


3.10 Personal Relationships 1 rev. 07/2018 


3.10 PERSONAL RELATIONSHIPS 


The purpose of these guidelines is to ensure equal opportunity and effective employment 
practices, and to avoid actual or perceived preferential treatment or actual or potential conflicts 
of interest within the workforce. Employment of individuals who are related or in a dating 
relationship may enable favoritism or the perception of favoritism. 


Employees may not occupy a regularly assigned position that directly reports to a relative, or 
directly supervises a relative. Additionally, individuals may not occupy a regularly assigned 
position that will be working directly for, or directly supervising another employee with whom 
they are involved in a dating relationship. In general, employees who are related or dating 
should not directly report to the same supervisor, in order to avoid management and operational 
conflicts within departments. 


For purposes of this section, a “relative” or “related” person is anyone who is related to the 
employee by blood, is in the employee’s immediate family, is married to the employee, is in a 
dating relationship with the employee, or resides in the same household as the employee. 
Temporary room-mates may be considered as “related” on a case-by-case basis. In the event 
that it is unclear whether or not two people are related, or that their positions may violate the 
spirit of these guidelines, the City Manager shall make the final determination on whether a 
conflict of interest exists.  


Relationships Present at Hire 


Employees may not be hired or placed into positions in which a relative, or a dating partner, is 
able to audit, control, supervise, appoint, remove, discipline or otherwise make employment 
related decisions regarding that employee.  


Relationships that Occur After Hire 


After employment, if two employees begin a dating relationship, marry, or otherwise become 
relatives, the employees are required to disclose the relationship to Human Resources. 
Employees who are related or in a dating relationship will not be assigned to a regular schedule 
in the same work shift or unit if one employee will be required to supervise the other. If 
circumstances require that a supervisor/subordinate relationship exist temporarily, the 
supervisor will make every reasonable effort to defer matters pertaining to the involved 
employee to an uninvolved supervisor.  


If the relationship creates any of the circumstances mentioned above, and employment action is 
required in order to avoid a violation of these guidelines, one of the employees must be 
transferred or reassigned to a department or shift where the reporting, auditing or supervisory 
relationship does not exist. If a transfer cannot be accomplished due to lack of an appropriate 
position, one of the employees must resign. The decision as to which employee will transfer or 
resign should, whenever possible, be recommended by the employees involved. If a suitable 
transfer decision is not made within 30 calendar days, the City Manager will decide who is to be 
transferred or terminated based upon the best interests of the City.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 125 of 238







 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.11 Safety in the Workplace 1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.11 SAFETY IN THE WORKPLACE 


 
 
Safety Program 
 
The City believes that both management and employees share in the responsibility of 
maintaining a safe workplace. The City will develop and maintain a comprehensive safety 
program to guide these efforts. Important components of the City’s Accident Prevention 
Program include: 
• A written plan to help prevent accidents, illnesses, and on the job injuries. The City of Mill 


Creek’s written Accident Prevention Program (APP) outlines the involvement of the other 
program components, as well as providing written safety rules and regulations determined to 
be necessary by the City, or required by law.  


• A Safety Committee, which acts as an advisory group to assist in these activities and to 
facilitate effective communication between employees and management about workplace 
safety and health issues. The Safety Committee is comprised of employer-selected 
members and employee-elected members. Per WAC 296-800-13020, the number of 
employer-selected members shall not exceed the number of employee-elected members. 
(Employees selected by a bargaining representative or union qualify as employee-elected.) 


• A safety orientation for new employees, which is made up of a general description of the 
City’s Accident Prevention Program, an on-the-job orientation, and training within the 
employee’s department. This training will addresses pertinent safety issues such as 
potential exposure to hazards, hazardous materials, safe use of equipment, the use of 
personal protective equipment, etc. 


 
Employee Responsibilities 
 
Employees are responsible for learning and understanding proper safety procedures and 
practices, observing all safety practices governing their work, and immediately reporting unsafe 
working conditions, on-the-job injuries and occupational illnesses to their supervisor or 
department director. In the event that an employee does not understand a safety rule or 
procedure, it is the employee’s responsibility to continue asking questions until they are 
comfortable in performing the task at hand safely.  
 
Employees who violate safety standards, cause hazardous or dangerous situations, fail to report 
or remedy such situations as appropriate, or fail to report on the job injuries or illnesses as 
required, may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
Employer Responsibilities 
 
The City will provide information to employees about workplace safety and health issues 
through regular internal communication channels such as supervisor-employee meetings, 
bulletin board postings, memos, emails, and the City’s employee information portal. Supervisors 
are responsible for providing required safety training to new employees, re-training existing 
employees when the need arises, and requesting the repair of equipment or new equipment 
when necessary to preserve workplace safety.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 126 of 238



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-800-13020





3.11 Safety in the Workplace 2 rev. 07/2018 


Supervisors are also responsible for monitoring the safety conditions of their department, 
addressing safety concerns brought up by employees as appropriate, and relaying safety issues 
to the Department Director or City Manager as needed.  
 
On the Job Injury / Illness or Near Miss 
 
If an employee experiences an on-the-job injury, illness, or near miss, they must report it as 
soon as possible or within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence of the injury, illness, or near 
miss. 
 
Occasionally, additional information will be requested regarding an employee’s report of injury, 
illness, or near miss. Employees must make every effort to assist the City in gathering additional 
information, or participating in a root-cause analysis if appropriate. Additional information may 
be found in the City’s Accident Prevention Program. 
 
Employees found to intentionally make a false report of an on-the-job injury, illness, or near 
miss will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 127 of 238







CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


3.12 Information Technology 1 10/2018 


3.12 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


This section governs the use of all information technology equipment and services owned, 
leased, or maintained by the City and all other information technology equipment and services 
used for City business. This section sets forth information technology restrictions that are 
necessary to reduce potential liability, inappropriate use, and possible adverse perceptions by 
the general public. Failure to comply with the provisions of this section could result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination.  


What is Mill Creek Information Technology? 


Mill Creek Information Technology (MCIT) is any technology application or tool operated by the 
City that includes, but is not limited to, computers, laptops, tablets, cell phones, computer 
peripherals and software, servers, phones, fax machines, copy machines, computer network 
resources, Wi-Fi networks, local and portable electronic storage devices, the Internet, e-mail, 
social media, websites, text messaging, and other forms of electronic communication, electronic 
data retrieval and storage, electronic data transmission, and/or electronic data manipulation. 


City of Mill Creek employees, volunteers, contract employees, and elected and appointed 
officials may be provided with access to MCIT to allow for efficient operation of City business. 
MCIT users are individually responsible for the appropriate use of all MCIT assigned to them 
and are accountable to the City for all use of such resources. MCIT users may only use the 
specific applications or tools for which they have authorization.  


User Guidelines and Responsibilities 


• Within 30 days of account activation, all MCIT users shall complete cyber security
awareness training as assigned by the IT Manager.  Annual training on cyber security
awareness shall also be completed.


• Any MCIT resource provided for use by City employees, contractors, elected and appointed
officials and consultants is City property and all uses of these City resources are a matter of
City record. Therefore, they are subject to internal and/or external review, auditing, and
recall as provided by law. The City reserves the express right to monitor and inspect the
activities of the user while accessing MCIT at any time, and to read, use and disclose
related records.


• MCIT users who are required to use a mobile device will be provided a device to meet such
needs. The needs may be temporary (e.g., attendance at a conference, offsite meeting, or
serving in a designated on-call position) or long term. MCIT users required to use a mobile
device on a temporary basis can check out City-owned equipment for such purpose through
the IT Manager.


• MCIT users should avoid use of a mobile device while driving. If such use is necessary, all
MCIT users must comply with state law and use appropriate hands free devices. Typing
electronic messages or otherwise allowing a device to take one’s attention away from the


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 128 of 238







3.12 Information Technology 2 10/2018 


road is strictly prohibited. Employees operating authorized emergency vehicles are 
exempted. 


 
• MCIT users will not mask their identity. 
 
• Care should be taken to avoid use of MCIT that could bring negative public scrutiny, 


including any perception of misuse of public resources. All communications and electronic 
records should be businesslike, courteous, and civil.  


 
• If MCIT is used for purposes that violate federal or state laws, MCIT users may be held 


legally accountable. MCIT users who learn of any misuse of information technology should 
immediately notify their supervisor or the IT Manager. 


 
• MCIT users should make a reasonable effort to protect their passwords and to secure MCIT 


against unauthorized use or access.  
 


• MCIT users are not required to keep call logs, unless such logs are requested pursuant to a 
public records request, litigation, or are reasonably anticipated to be relevant to potential 
litigation. In such instances, the MCIT user shall not delete or otherwise alter the call logs 
and should instead immediately coordinate for such logs to be transferred to the City Clerk 
or City Attorney.  


 
• When technically capable and practical for use, all MCIT equipment used for City business 


should be password protected subject to password protocols established by the IT Manager.  
 


• City-owned USB storage devices should be used whenever practical. USB devices provided 
by a trusted source for law enforcement evidence purposes are approved for use. All other 
USB devices provided by a third party must be approved by the IT Manager prior to use.  


 
• The City maintains two official websites: www.cityofmillcreek.com and 


http://www.millcreektourism.com. MCIT users shall not create any other official or unofficial 
website for City use.  


 
• MCIT shall not be used by the City Council or other officials in violation of the Open Public 


Meetings Act. Participating in online, electronic or telephonic discussions may constitute a 
meeting under the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30). 


 
Public Records 
 
All records created through the use of MCIT are considered public records. All such records are 
subject to City interception, access, search, retrieval, monitoring, inspection, copying, and/or 
public dissemination for purposes of conducting City business according to the Public Records 
Act (RCW 42.56) and associated Washington State Local Government Common Records 
Retention Schedule (CORE).  
 
No MCIT user may surplus, destroy or otherwise dispose of media containing City business 
records without prior authorization and specific instructions of the IT Manager and/or 
compliance with specific applicable procedures and policies.   
 
Use of Personal Devices to Conduct City Business 
 
Use of non-City devices to perform City business should be limited to the following 
circumstances: 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 129 of 238



http://www.cityofmillcreek.com/

http://www.millcreektourism.com/





3.12 Information Technology 3 10/2018 


• Use of a non-City phone to occasionally make or receive phone calls while away from an 
assigned office phone. MCIT users should be aware that although the City does not retain or 
track call logs on non-City owned devices (e.g. to monitor appropriate use), such records 
could become the subject of a public records request or City related litigation.  


 
• Approved use of a non-City device to sync a City email account and/or calendar using the 


City’s Exchange Active Sync server. Before being approved to sync email and/or calendars 
to a non-City device, MCIT users must sign an acknowledgement or agreement approved by 
the IT Manager that outlines the expectations and limitations of such use, including 
password requirements, risk of exposure of the device to public records requests, and other 
security precautions. The internal storage on such devices may not be used to create or 
modify email attachments or other documents.  


 
• Authorized access through an internet browser to email and/or a calendar at 


https://webmail.cityofmillcreek.com. The internal storage on such devices may not be used 
to create or modify email attachments or other documents. 


 
MCIT users who choose to use a personal device to conduct City business may have 
diminished expectation of privacy in all of the information stored on such devices.  
 
Public record disclosure and retention laws cannot be avoided by using personal devices to 
conduct City business. Records created by MCIT users in the conduct of the performance of 
City work on personal devices are public records that must be retained and made available for 
public disclosure. If MCIT users use personal devices to conduct public business, the City may 
be required to search those devices to recover and produce public records.  
 
Any search of an IT user’s personal devices shall comply with all applicable laws. The City will 
not intentionally produce clearly private/non-business related records to the public. However, 
the City, its consultants, its attorneys, judges, and/or the attorneys of those who seek public 
records may be required to review non-City business records to ensure all business-related 
records are produced and retained in accordance with state law.  
 
Integrity and Security 
 
The MCIT infrastructure contains sensitive financial, personal, law enforcement and other 
sensitive information. The integrity of all City records must be protected. Networked computer 
systems can easily spread computer viruses, and it is every MCIT user’s responsibility to 
exercise due caution to minimize the risk of viruses. Since email attachments are a common 
source of viruses, only those received from expected and known business sources shall be 
opened. No external computer files may be downloaded without being properly scanned for 
viruses. 
 
Mobile computers and devices, in particular, are subject to damage, theft, or loss when removed 
from City offices. MCIT users are therefore responsible for taking measures to prevent damage, 
theft, or loss of City equipment.  
 
MCIT users’ access to data on the City’s servers, voicemail system, archives and other storage 
mechanisms is limited to job-related access for authorized business purposes only. MCIT users 
shall not access, intercept, copy, or reproduce the City’s business records for personal use or 
gain, or in any way that harms the City’s interests.  If an IT user wishes to access City business 
records for personal purposes, the IT user should make a public records request for such 
records. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 130 of 238



https://webmail.cityofmillcreek.com/





3.12 Information Technology 4 10/2018 


If a MCIT user wishes to make hardware changes (including, but not limited to: keyboards, 
mice, monitors), install software, or make any other changes to MCIT, he/she shall notify in 
advance the IT Manager, who shall make the final decision regarding the appropriateness of 
such changes. At a minimum, the criteria for determining the appropriateness of a change to a 
computer system shall include: 
 
• Software and hardware shall be compatible to the City’s computer network and have a 


legitimate business use. 
 
• Downloading and/or uploading of all software and files must be virus free. MCIT users are 


required to follow the appropriate virus scan protocol before downloading/uploading 
software or other electronic information to the City’s computer system. 


 
• Software shall be properly licensed for use by the MCIT user. 
 
• The change shall not affect the overall integrity of the City’s computer systems. 


 
Personal, sensitive, or confidential information shall not be stored on unsecured and unattended 
mobile devices or portable storage devices (e.g., USB memory sticks, USB external hard drives, 
CD/DVD Drives). If storage of such information on mobile devices is necessary, access to such 
information must be secured by a device-level password or PIN and any other procedures 
established by the IT Manager that meet industry standards for security.  
 
If storage of personal information on unattended portable storage devices is necessary, the files 
or device shall be encrypted in accordance with procedures established by the IT Manager that 
meet industry standards for security. 
 
Such a portable storage device may be used to copy personal information from one location 
(e.g., a secondary workstation) to another location (e.g., a primary workstation) without 
encryption as long as the personal information is securely wiped/erased from the portable 
storage device prior to being left unattended. 
 
Personal Use of Mill Creek Information Technology 
 
City owned and maintained information technology is intended for official City business 
purposes. However, the City allows de minimis personal use by MCIT users (e.g., checking 
cloud-based personal email accounts, making or receiving toll-free personal phone calls, or 
using the internet for non-business related purposes) so long as such use is infrequent and non-
disruptive, appropriate in the workplace, is not detrimental to the conduct of City business or 
negatively impacts other MCIT users, does not cause the City to incur costs or charges, does 
not cause public perception that City resources are being used inappropriately, and does not 
cause any security threat to or increased burden on the MCIT infrastructure.  
 
Personal use of MCIT is limited to the authorized IT user only and may not be shared with any 
unauthorized user (e.g., family members). 
 
Personal use by employees shall not distract or disrupt any employees from their duties, and 
shall be limited in frequency, location and duration. Personal use of MCIT by employees who 
are paid on an hourly basis should be limited to unpaid time and the employee’s authorized paid 
breaks unless such use does not interfere with the employees work. 
 
Employee use of personal devices or MCIT for City business while off duty or from a remote 
location is limited to FLSA exempt employees and employees with express authorization from 
his/her supervisor to work from a remote location during those applicable times.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 131 of 238







3.12 Information Technology 5 10/2018 


 
Non-exempt employees should not check City email accounts from home or otherwise outside 
of their scheduled working hours unless it is a de minimis or personal use (e.g., an employee 
checking his/her work schedule to coordinate his/her personal time, such as scheduling 
personal appointments or vacations). Non-exempt employees performing any substantive work 
while off duty (including checking and responding to business emails) shall record that time as 
time worked and promptly report the time worked to his/her supervisor. Non-exempt employees 
performing unauthorized off duty work will be paid for all time worked, but if such time was not 
authorized or approved, the employee may be subject to discipline and/or required to flex 
his/her schedule during the same pay period to avoid the off-duty work from causing the City to 
pay unauthorized overtime.  
 
The City retains the right to revoke the privilege of allowing limited personal use of the City’s 
information technology. 
 
Internet Usage 
 
Internet access on the City server by default is provided to every MCIT user with a City login 
and may be restricted upon request by a supervisor. Internet use may be logged and monitored 
for compliance with the City’s policies.  
 
Resources of any kind for which there is a fee, including all Internet sites, shall not be accessed 
or downloaded without prior approval of department directors.  
 
Because the City must be able to access, retain, and retrieve all public records, use of an online 
storage service is prohibited unless authorized by the IT Manager. The IT Manager may adopt 
and implement procedures for utilizing such services. 
 
Streaming media should be limited so as not to interfere with network and internet performance. 
If attending a webinar, MCIT users should coordinate to share a single stream from a single 
computer when practical.  
 
Instant Messages  
 
MCIT users should avoid sending or receiving text messages (SMS, MMS) and all other forms 
of instant messages related to City business via personal devices. If instant messages are sent 
or received, the MCIT user shall notify the IT Manager as soon as possible to coordinate 
appropriate retention of the records required by law.   
 
Due to the difficulty of retaining and producing instant messages, sending and receiving of text 
or instant messages from City owned devices should be limited to circumstances when other 
forms of communication are not suitable. 
 
All MCIT users sending and receiving text or instant messages via MCIT shall retain the 
messages in a manner authorized by the IT Manager and in compliance with applicable state 
retention schedules. MCIT users shall not delete any instant messages on MCIT or City 
business related instant messages on PIT without preauthorization by the IT Manager, who will 
consult with others as necessary to determine appropriate retention requirements.  
 
Virtual Private Network 
 
Only MCIT may be used as a client to access MCIT through an authorized virtual private 
network connection.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 132 of 238







3.12 Information Technology 6 10/2018 


If an MCIT user has a need to create or edit a document while using a non-City device, such 
records shall be saved directly to MCIT owned or maintained storage – not personally owned 
storage. The type of pre-approved storage is subject to change based upon the type of device 
used and availability. When such connection is unavailable, the IT Manager may arrange for 
City maintained cloud services or portable storage devices to be used to save documents. MCIT 
users with such need should seek assistance and guidance from the IT Manager.  
 
Prohibited Uses 
 
MCIT shall not be used for illegal, prohibited, harassing, libelous, or obscene purposes, or in a 
way that violates any City policy, procedure, rule, or local or state law/regulation. The following 
uses of MCIT by any MCIT user are specifically prohibited with regards to personal and 
business use unless for authorized job related purposes: 
 
• Commercial use for an MCIT user’s personal business. 
 
• Solicitations that promote monetary gain for an MCIT user or an MCIT user’s charity unless 


otherwise authorized by the City Manager, separate policy, or in conjunction with a City 
sponsored event.  


 
• Political use, including partisan campaigning or sending political messages. 
 
• Any type of harassment or discrimination – including transmission of obscene or harassing 


messages to any individual or group because of their sex, race, creed, religion, national 
origin, sexual orientation or other protected class status. 


 
• Accessing of pornographic, sexually explicit or indecent materials and any other materials 


that are otherwise unreasonably offensive and not appropriate in the workplace. 
 
• Any activity that could adversely affect the City of Mill Creek’s image or reputation. 
 
• Gambling or gaming (including loading or playing computer games). 
 
• Anything that unreasonably hampers City network or other information technology.  
 
• Peer to peer file sharing. 
 
• Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material or anything that violates software license 


agreements. 
 
• Downloading or installing software that is not pre-authorized by the IT Manager. 
 
• Use of an assumed name with intent to obscure the origin of a communication. 
 
• Transmitting City records for personal or other use without City authorization. 
 
• Transmitting information to unauthorized persons or organizations. 
 
• Malicious use of the system, including but not limited to hacking, denial of service, and 


unauthorized access, so as to deprive others of system use or resources. 
 
• Personal use of MCIT while connected to the City’s network for streaming media unless 


approved by a supervisor or director. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 133 of 238







3.12 Information Technology 7 10/2018 


 
• Personal uses that cause the City to incur charges or costs. An exemption to this rule is that 


employees are allowed to make infrequent and de minimis use of City printers and/or copy 
machines for limited personal use. 


 
References 
 
• CM 200-01: Social Media Policy 
• Driving Under the Influence of Electronics Act 
• RCW 40.14: Preservation and Destruction of Public Records 
• RCW 42.30: Open Public Meetings Act 
• RCW 42.52.160: Use of Persons, Money, or Property for Private Gain 
• RCW 42.52.180: Use of Resources for Political Campaigns 
• RCW 42.56: Public Records Act 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 134 of 238



http://www.cityofmillcreek.com/smpolicy

http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2017-18/Pdf/Bills/Senate%20Passed%20Legislature/5289-S.PL.pdf#page=1

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=40.14

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.52.160

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.52.180

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.56





 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.13 Email Communications 1 10/2018 


 
 
3.13 EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS 


 
 
Email is an essential means of communication in support of the City’s daily public service and 
administrative functions. The City encourages using email to improve communications, share 
information, transact City business and exchange ideas. However, email should not take the 
place of a face-to-face conversation, nor should it be used to share information that individuals 
would not want to be part of a public record, such as personal information. Failure to comply 
with the provisions of this section may result in discipline up to and including discharge. 
 
Access to and Use of Email 
 
Access to City email is provided to Mill Creek Information Technology (MCIT) users to allow for 
efficient operation of City business. All uses of City email are a matter of City record and are 
subject to internal and/or external review, auditing, and recall as provided by law. Use of City 
email is subject to conformance with this section and any and all other restrictions imposed by 
the City Manager, department heads, and/or the City’s Information Systems and Technology 
Manager. 
 
User Guidelines and Responsibilities 
 
• All email accounts used for City business must be password protected. The IT Manager is 


responsible for establishing password protocols designed to protect the City’s information 
technology, and for updating protocols as necessary. 
 


• City email users shall use the City’s email signature that identifies the MCIT user’s affiliation 
with the City, provides contact information, and demonstrates professionalism. 


 
• MCIT users do not have a right to privacy when using City email. The City reserves the 


express right to monitor and inspect the activities of the employee while accessing City 
email at any time, and to read, use and disclose related records. 


 
• Care should be taken to avoid use of City email that could bring negative public scrutiny, 


including any perception of misuse of public resources. All email communications should be 
businesslike, courteous, and civil.  


 
• If email is used for purposes that violate federal or state laws, MCIT users may be held 


legally accountable. MCIT users who learn of any misuse of information technology should 
immediately notify their supervisor or the IT Manager. 


 
• MCIT users shall exercise due caution when sending confidential or sensitive information 


electronically. Protected, confidential, or other sensitive data (e.g., HIPAA, CJIS, PCI) shall 
not be sent via unencrypted email, as unencrypted messages may be intercepted, viewed, 
and used for non-approved purposes. Contact the IT Manager for assistance with 
transmitting such messages.  


 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 135 of 238







3.13 Email Communications 2 10/2018 


• An MCIT user forwarding a message that originates from someone else shall not make 
changes to that message that would be misleading or deceitful.  


 
• If an electronic mail message comes to an MCIT user by mistake, the MCIT user shall stop 


reading it as soon as they realize the message was not meant for them, delete it, and notify 
the sender immediately. 


 
• MCIT users should delete emails from their email folders when they are no longer needed 


for City business. All messages sent to and from City email accounts are archived as they 
are sent and received.  


 
• Email messages sent to or from attorneys acting on behalf of the City, its officers or 


employees may be privileged communications and are therefore confidential. These 
messages shall not be forwarded outside of the City without the prior approval of the 
involved attorney or City Attorney. Likewise, such messages shall not be forwarded or 
copied to internal City recipients without approval of the City Attorney unless any and all 
such recipients have a legitimate business need to be aware of the advice/ information 
provided within the message. 


 
• Attachments are limited to 20 MB in size and all use of attachments should be limited. The 


preferred option is to use a link to a document stored on a City file server for internal 
messages, and a link to a shared document on a City managed and authorized externally 
available storage location for external messages. MCIT users should contact the IT 
Manager for assistance with transmitting large documents that exceed the attachment size 
limitation. 


 
• MCIT users who do not have a need to review another MCIT user’s email in order to 


maintain or operate the email systems, respond to a public records requests, or investigate 
violations, legal claims or legal defenses, shall not retrieve or read such email unless 
authorized by the person to whom the email belongs or the City Manager.  


 
• City email shall not be used by the City Council or other officials in violation of the Open 


Public Meetings Act. Participating in email discussions may constitute a meeting under the 
Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30). 


 
Personal Use of City Email 
 
MCIT users should avoid using City email accounts for sending or receiving personal emails. 
City owned and maintained information technology is intended for official City business 
purposes. 
 
• The City allows de minimis personal use by MCIT users so long as such use is infrequent 


and non-disruptive, appropriate in the workplace, is not detrimental to the conduct of City 
business, does not negatively impacts other MCIT users, does not cause the City to incur 
costs or charges, does not cause public perception that City resources are being used 
inappropriately, and does not cause any security threat to or increased burden on the MCIT 
infrastructure.  


 
• The emails exchanged during infrequent use of a City email account for personal purposes 


(e.g., use for coordinating/scheduling child care pickups, or other time-sensitive matters for 
which the MCIT user is more likely to see on City email during the day than a personal 
account) are subject to City inspection and possible public disclosure. 


 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 136 of 238







3.13 Email Communications 3 10/2018 


• De minimis personal use of City email is limited to the authorized MCIT user only and may 
not be shared with any unauthorized user (e.g., family members). 


 
The City retains the right to revoke the privilege of allowing limited personal use of the City’s 
information technology. 
 
Use of City Email while Off Duty 
 
Employee use of City email for City business while off duty or from a remote location is limited 
to FLSA exempt employees and employees with express authorization from his/her supervisor 
to work from a remote location during those applicable times.  
 
Non-exempt employees should not check City email accounts from home or otherwise outside 
of their scheduled working hours unless it is a de minimis or personal use (e.g., an employee 
checking his/her work schedule to coordinate his/her personal time, such as scheduling 
personal appointments or vacations). Non-exempt employees performing any substantive work 
while off duty (including checking and responding to business emails) shall record that time as 
time worked and promptly report the time worked to his/her supervisor.  
 
Non-City email accounts (e.g., Gmail, AOL, MSN, Hotmail, Outlook, Yahoo) should not be used 
to conduct City business unless approved in advance by the City Manager and an approved 
records retention system is put in place to archive all email to and from these accounts. 
 
Mass Communication – Internal Audiences 
 
MCIT users shall not distribute emails to all City employees, with or without the use of a 
distribution group or listserv, without direct authorization from the City Manager or the Director 
of Communications and Marketing. Such emails that receive approval must be business-
oriented, including City announcements, news or events. The use of all-employee emails is 
restricted to those messages that meet one of more of the following tests: 
 
• The message is essential to the proper execution of daily business. 


 
• It notifies employees of significant events or changes in governance, policy, and practice. 


 
• It alerts employees to situations around health and safety (e.g., crime alerts, snow closings 


and flu vaccinations). 
 
• It keeps segments of employees informed of their business (e.g., in the case of official 


committees, the messages could contain minutes, updates, and announcements).  
 
Announcements that do not meet these requirements of urgency and/or critical information 
should be relayed through other methods, such as ADP or the Monday Minute. 
 
Mass Communication – External Audiences 
 
MCIT users shall not use email for mass communications to external audiences without direct 
authorization from the Director of Communications and Marketing or the City Manager. 
  
• In the event that mass communications are approved, the email addresses to which the 


email will be sent must be listed in the Bcc (blind carbon copy) field to prevent unnecessary 
disclosure of email addresses and reduce vulnerability to junk email.  


 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 137 of 238







3.13 Email Communications 4 10/2018 


• The City’s general email server shall not be used for mass communications. Rather, external 
email services shall be utilized. 


 
Prohibited Uses 
 
City email shall not to be used for illegal, prohibited, harassing, libelous, or obscene purposes, 
or in a way that violates any City policy, procedure, rule, or local or state law/regulation. The 
following uses of City email by any MCIT user are specifically prohibited with regards to 
personal and business use unless for authorized job related purposes: 
 
• Commercial use for an MCIT user’s personal business. 
 
• Solicitations that promote monetary gain for an MCIT user or an MCIT user’s charity unless 


otherwise authorized by the City Manager, separate policy, or in conjunction with a City 
sponsored event.  


 
• Political use, including partisan campaigning or sending political messages. 
 
• Any type of harassment or discrimination – including transmission of obscene or harassing 


messages to any individual or group because of their sex, race, creed, religion, national 
origin, sexual orientation or other protected class status. 


 
• Accessing of pornographic, sexually explicit or indecent materials and any other materials 


that are otherwise unreasonably offensive and not appropriate in the workplace. 
 
• Any activity that could adversely affect the City of Mill Creek’s image or reputation. 
 
• Anything that unreasonably hampers City network or other information technology.  
 
• Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material or anything that violates software license 


agreements. 
 
• Use of an assumed name with intent to obscure the origin of a communication. 
 
• Transmitting City records for personal or other use without City authorization. 
 
• Transmitting information to unauthorized persons or organizations. 
 
• Malicious use of the system, including but not limited to hacking, denial of service, and 


unauthorized access, so as to deprive others of system use or resources.  
  
References 
 
• RCW 40.14: Preservation and Destruction of Public Records 
• RCW 42.30: Open Public Meetings Act 
• RCW 42.52.160: Use of Persons, Money, or Property for Private Gain 
• RCW 42.52.180: Use of Resources for Political Campaigns 
• RCW 42.56: Public Records Act 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 138 of 238



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=40.14

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.52.160

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.52.180

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.56





 


CHAPTER 3 – CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS 


 


3.14 Personal Electronics 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
3.14 PERSONAL ELECTRONICS 


 
 
Mill Creek Information Technology 
 
Section 3.12 Information Technology covers appropriate business and personal use of City 
owned technology (such as a City-issued tablet). It also covers the use of personal electronic 
devices (such as cell phones) for business-related purposes. For questions and information 
related to those situations, refer to 3.12 Information Technology or address questions to the 
Information Systems and Technology Manager. 
 
Personal Electronic Devices for a Non-Business Related Purpose 
 
Not covered in the section referenced above is the use of personal electronic devices for 
personal use during working hours. An example of this may be a personal phone call made on a 
personal cell phone. In general, employees are allowed to have personal electronic devices with 
them during working hours as long as their personal use of these devices is limited to breaks 
and lunch periods, emergency situations, or such use is minimal and does not interfere with the 
employee’s job duties or the safety of the employee or others.  
 
Examples of approved uses of personal devices would be a personal phone call during the 
employee’s break period, or playing music/radio (that is appropriate to the workplace and is kept 
at a reasonable volume) in the employee’s work space. Examples of inappropriate uses of 
personal devices would be excessive personal phone calls or texting during work hours, music 
that is played at a volume that is distracting to others near the employee’s work space, or 
wearing headphones that interfere with required protective equipment.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 139 of 238







CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


4.1 Employment Status 1 rev. 07/2018 


4.1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS 


Employment Status Definitions 


All employees have a designated employment status. This status, along with the FLSA 
classification noted in their position description, is used to determine pay, benefits, and other 
eligibility. All employees fall under one of the following four employment statuses. If an 
employee is unsure of which status they are in, they should speak with Human Resources.  


• Full Time Regular. Also referred to as simply “Full Time,” this status is for a position
established for an indefinite period of time. Full time employees are regularly scheduled to
work at least forty (40) hours per week, which represents 1.0 FTE. These employees are
eligible for benefits and paid time off as outlined in this manual.


• Part Time Regular. Also referred to as simply “Part Time,” this status is also for a position
established for an indefinite period of time. Part-time employees are regularly scheduled to
work at least twenty (20) hours per week (.5 FTE) and fewer than forty (40) hours per week.
Part-time employees are eligible for pro-rated benefits and paid time off accruals based on
their FTE as outlined in this manual.


• Casual: Casual employees are hired to work on an intermittent or as-needed basis, or are
regularly scheduled to work less than twenty (20) hours per week. Casual employees are
not eligible for benefits other than those required by state or federal law (for example, sick
leave).


• Temporary: Temporary employees fill a position that is temporary in nature as a result of
emergency, peak workloads, or coverage/substitution for other employees. The length of
employment will generally not exceed six (6) months, unless an extension is allowed and
granted by the City Manager. Temporary employees are not eligible for benefits other than
those required by state or federal law (for example, sick leave).


FLSA Classification 


In addition to the employment status, all employees have an FLSA classification that is based 
on the position they are employed in. The FLSA classification of the position determines 
whether an employee is exempt or non-exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  


• Exempt. Employees in positions classified as exempt are not subject to the overtime
provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, and the overtime and callback provisions of the
collective bargaining agreements. To be classified as exempt, an employee’s position must
meet exemption criteria as outlined in the FLSA.


• Non-Exempt. Employees in positions classified as nonexempt are covered by the overtime
provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Employees in these positions are entitled to pay
on an hourly basis for all hours worked regardless of their scheduled FTE.


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 140 of 238



https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/hrg.htm





 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.2 SALARY ADMINISTRATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 
 
In order to attract and maintain a qualified workforce, the City strives to be equitable and 
consistent in the administration of employee salaries, while allowing the flexibility necessary to 
meet compensation needs unique to particular departments and/or positions. To help maintain 
pay equity within the workforce, the City has developed standard salary administration 
guidelines, pay practices, and a salary plan. Human Resources will work in consultation with 
managers to insure that pay practices are consistent within the organization.  
 
Salary Plan 
 
The City’s established salary plan consists of position classifications that correspond to salary 
grades (also referred to as ranges), and may have interim steps assigned within each grade.  
 
Position classifications are assigned based on several factors which may include: 
• The duties, responsibilities and required qualifications of the position; 
• Comparison to similar work performed in other internal positions; 
• Compensation for similar work performed in the external market; 
• Financial position and policies of the City; and 
• Other relevant factors (could include the cost of turnover or the cost of recruitment for that 


particular position) 
 
Most position classifications correspond to a single salary grade, though there may be some 
classifications where multiple grades are appropriate. All employees will receive a salary that is 
not less than the minimum and not more than the maximum of the salary grade to which their 
position is assigned (exclusive of incentives such as longevity). Exceptions to this rule are 
defined in 400-01 City of Mill Creek Personnel Policies. Monthly rates in the salary plan are 
calculated on the basis of full-time service in full-time positions (2080 hours per year). Hourly 
rates of pay are derived from these full-time salary rates. For any position that requires less than 
full-time service, salary will be prorated based on FTE (full time equivalent). 
 
Annual Increases 
 
Employees may be eligible for a step increase on their anniversary date each year. Annual step 
increases are contingent on an employee's satisfactory job performance and will be applied only 
after the employee’s evaluation has been completed. The annual increase will bring the 
employee to the next step in the grade, unless the employee is currently in the top step of the 
assigned pay grade. If the evaluation indicates satisfactory job performance, and the evaluation 
is submitted after the anniversary date, then retro pay will be applied back to the employee’s 
anniversary date. 
 
Salary Determination at Time of Hire 
 
New employees who closely meet the minimum qualifications required of a position are 
generally hired into step one (1) of the grade that the position is assigned to. In consultation with 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 141 of 238







4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices 2 rev. 07/2018 


Human Resources, the hiring manager may authorize a starting salary up to step four (4) of the 
appropriate grade based on the following reasons: 


• The applicant possesses experience, education or demonstrated skills and abilities that 
are significantly above the minimum requirements of the position. 


• Marketplace factors require paying the salary level to attract a qualified candidate (job is 
considered “hard to fill”). 


 
Any starting salary above step 4 must be authorized by the City Manager.   
 
Promotions 
 
Promotional increases are granted in recognition of a change in assignment to a position in a 
higher salary grade. Salary increases granted in recognition of promotion should put the 
employee into an appropriate step which provides the employee with an increase of at least 4% 
above their current salary. A promotional increase should coincide with the first day of 
employment in the new assignment, and the beginning of a pay period whenever possible. The 
beginning date of the employee's promotion becomes his/her new anniversary date for annual 
pay review purposes. 
 
Demotions 
 
The assignment or reassignment of an employee to a position in a lower salary grade is 
considered a demotion. Demotions may be the result of poor performance, a re-organization, or 
an employee request. Salary decreases as a result of demotion should put the employee into an 
appropriate step which should not exceed the top of the salary grade of their new position. An 
appropriate step for a performance based demotion, or demotion at the employee’s request, 
should not be higher than the affected employee’s current salary. Any demotion should coincide 
with the first day of employment in the new assignment, and the beginning of a pay period 
whenever possible. The beginning date of the employee's demotion becomes his/her new 
anniversary date for annual pay review purposes. 
 
Transfers 
 
A transfer is defined as a change into a different position within the same salary grade as the 
employee’s current position.  A transfer does not generally warrant an increase in salary or a 
change in the anniversary date. 
 
Reclassification 
 
A reclassification is the reassignment of a position to a higher or lower salary grade within the 
pay and classification plan due to a reevaluation of position responsibilities and/or significant 
change in the going rate for comparable positions in the external market. Reclassifications do 
not change an employee’s anniversary date.  
 


Reclassification Requests 
 


A reclassification request must include sufficient information to demonstrate a significant 
change in the position’s responsibilities. Reclassification should not be undertaken for the 
purpose of changing salary based on an employee's job performance in a job that is 
classified appropriately.  
• Requests for reclassification, along with an updated job description, should be submitted 


by the supervisor to Human Resources during the budget development period (by 
August 1st) for consideration and potential inclusion in the budget. Requests must also 
be signed off by the appropriate chain of command. (Reclassification of positions 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 142 of 238







4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices 3 rev. 07/2018 


covered by labor agreements may also be proposed through union representatives and 
are considered at the time of contract negotiation).   


• Human Resources will evaluate the position’s current scope of responsibilities, changes
to the job, and consider other positions within the City's pay and classification plan. 
Human Resources will make a recommendation to the City Manager, who will have the 
final authority to decide the merits of the reclassification request.  


• Reclassification must be approved by the City Council. The City Manager retains the
authority to assign employees to appropriate job classifications. 


Pay Changes Due to Reclassification 


If a reclassification results in the employee being assigned to a higher grade than their 
current grade, the employee will be assigned to the appropriate step in the new grade which 
is closest to their current salary and provides equivalent or higher pay.  


If a reclassification results in the employee being assigned to a job classification that has a 
lower salary range than their current job classification, the employee's salary will remain at 
its current level, unless that salary is above the maximum of the salary range for the new 
classification, in which case, the employee's salary will be decreased to the maximum 
amount in the new salary range.  


Unless another date is approved, the effective date of a salary increase/decrease due to 
reclassification will be January 1 of the calendar year following the year in which the 
reclassification was approved.  


Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) 


Cost of living adjustments are across the board increases to the pay and classification plan (and 
all salaries on that plan) designed to bring pay in line with increases in the general cost of living 
as determined by looking at the Consumer Price Index, cost of wages, comparable cities, and 
other factors. Cost of living adjustments are approved by the City Council and are typically 
effective January 1st of each year.   


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 143 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.3 Re-Hires and Bridging Service Gaps 1    rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.3 RE-HIRES AND BRIDGING SERVICE GAPS 


 
 
Re-Hires 
 
Employees who are separated, and then return to work for the City, are considered re-hires. It is 
important have a set of rules governing gaps in service so that all employees are treated fairly 
with regards to their wages, step increases, and any longevity based premium pays. All 
employees will have an original hire date, which is the date that they first begin working for the 
City. If an employee is separated for any length of time and then returns to City employment, 
they will be given a re-hire date. Even if that employee is returning to the same or similar job to 
the one that they left, the re-hire date will serve as that re-hired employee’s new anniversary 
date.  
 
Bridging Service Gaps 
 
For the purposes of determining longevity, the following rules shall apply to bridging service 
gaps for re-hires: 
 
• For employees that do not have service gaps, longevity is counted back to the employee’s 


original hire date. This is true regardless of whether the employee is full time, part time, 
casual, or temporary. For example: an employee hired on January 1st, 2018 works until 
January 1st, 2019. Regardless of their hours worked, this constitutes one year of 
employment.  


• For employees that have service gaps of 6 months or less, longevity is counted back to the 
employee’s original hire date, less the amount of time that the employee was separated 
from the City. For example: an employee hired on January 1st, 2018 works until December 
1st, 2018 and then resigns and is re-hired on January 1st, 2019. This person has longevity of 
11 months.  


• For employees that have service gaps of more than 6 months, longevity is calculated only 
back to that employee’s re-hire date. For example: an employee is hired on January 1st, 
2018 and works until March 1st, 2018, resigns, and is re-hired on January 1st, 2019. This 
person’s past employment with the City does not count towards their longevity going 
forward. 


 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 144 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.4 Work Hours and Pay Period 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.4 WORK HOURS AND PAY PERIOD 


 
 
Standard Work Period  
 
The regular work period consists of forty hours of work in a seven day period, beginning 
Monday at 12:01 a.m. and ending at 12:00 midnight on Sunday. The standard work day for full-
time employees is eight hours in a day with a one hour unpaid lunch break.  
 
Meal Breaks 
 
The typical meal break for City employees working an eight hour day is a one hour unpaid lunch 
break. By law, employees who work over five hours in a workday are entitled to a meal period of 
at least thirty minutes, which should be taken within five hours of the start of their shift. Meal 
periods are unpaid, unless the employee is required to remain on duty. 
 
If an employee works more than three consecutive hours longer than a normal work day, they 
will be allowed an additional unpaid thirty-minute meal period prior to or during the overtime 
period. 
 
Breaks 
 
Employees are entitled to a fifteen minute paid break for each four hours worked. An additional 
ten minute paid break is allowed for employees who are scheduled to work ten hours in a day. 
Employees who work more than three hours but less than eight hours may take a single twenty 
minute break provided it takes place no more than four hours after their start time. Breaks may 
not be used to start or end a work day. 
 
If an employee’s job allows them to take intermittent breaks during the course of the day, breaks 
need not be rigidly scheduled and may be taken at the discretion of the employee. The timing of 
the rest breaks should not disrupt City operations or service to the public. 
 
Alternative Work Schedules 
 
Alternative work periods and flexible work schedules may be approved at the discretion of the 
department director and City Manager depending on the operational needs of the department 
and the service needs of City residents.  
 
Such alternative schedules may include: 
 
• A 4/40 schedule – four, ten hour work shifts within the standard Monday through Sunday 


work period. 
  
• A 9/80 schedule – eight, nine hour work shifts and one, eight hour work shift within a two 


week time period. This schedule requires an alternative work period beginning Friday at 
12:01 p.m. and ending at 12:00 noon on the following Friday.  


  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 145 of 238







4.4 Work Hours and Pay Period 2 rev. 07/2018 


• A part-time schedule – not less than 20 hours per week for regular employees within the 
standard Monday through Sunday work period. 


 
Alternative work schedules or work periods may be revoked or changed at any time. 
Documentation of alternative schedules should be signed by the employee and their supervisor, 
and kept in the employee’s personnel file.  
 
Employees who use an alternative work schedule must account for a full regular workday 
whenever they are scheduled off. For example: if an employee is working four ten hour shifts, 
and they are off on a City paid holiday, they are required to document eight holiday hours, and 
two additional hours of paid time off on their timecard for that day. This will account for their 
regularly scheduled hours.  
 
Pay Period 
 
The regular pay period is designated as the 1st day of the month through the 15th, and the 16th of 
the month through the last day of the month. Employees are paid twice monthly by direct 
deposit into their bank account. 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 146 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time 1      rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.5 OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY TIME 


 
 
When is Overtime Paid? 
 
Non-exempt employees are eligible for overtime pay at 1½ times their regular hourly rate for all 
hours worked over 40 in a workweek. Hours paid but not worked (non-productive time) such as 
sick leave, annual leave, compensatory time off, holiday time, etc. do not count for purposes of 
computing overtime. (Note: employees covered under a collective bargaining agreement may 
have different rules for calculating overtime.) 
 
Part-time non-exempt employees will be compensated at their straight time rate of pay up to 
forty (40) hours per week. All hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week fall under the 
same provisions for overtime and compensatory time off for full time non-exempt employees, as 
described above.  
 
Exempt employees are paid a fixed salary for all hours of work performed within a pay period, 
and are not eligible to receive overtime compensation.  An exempt employee’s salary is based 
on their scheduled hours and FTE, and is not dependent on the actual number of hours worked 
in a day or week. Exempt employees are expected to work an assigned schedule, but may 
sometimes work more than their FTE in order to fulfill their job responsibilities (without additional 
pay).  
 
Required vs Requested Overtime 
 
As a condition of employment, employees may be required to work overtime hours. The need to 
assign overtime will be determined by the employee’s supervisor based on staffing and 
operational needs of the City or the department.  
 
Occasionally an employee will request to work additional hours either to complete a project or to 
make up for time missed. All overtime work must be authorized by the supervisor before the 
employee works overtime. In general, supervisors should not approve a request to make-up for 
time missed if the make-up time would result in overtime. 
 
Compensatory Time 
 
In lieu of overtime pay, an employee may choose to earn compensatory time off (comp time) at 
the rate of 1½ hours off for each hour of overtime earned. Compensatory time off (in lieu of 
overtime) must also be approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor. Employees are 
encouraged to use their compensatory time off within ninety (90) days of the date it is earned 
unless City operations would be unduly disrupted by the employee's absence. No more than 
sixty (60) hours of compensatory time off may be accumulated. Unused compensatory time off 
may be carried over from year to year. 
  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 147 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.6 Callback Pay 1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.6 CALLBACK PAY 


 
 
Callback Time 
 
Employees may occasionally be called back to work outside of their regular working hours 
without prior notification. Callback time starts when the employee reports to the workplace, and 
does not include an extension of a shift (hours worked either before or after a regularly 
scheduled shift). 
 
For example: If a supervisor asks an employee to stay an extra hour after their shift would 
normally end, this is not considered callback time. If an employee has left the worksite after 
completing their shift and the supervisor calls the employee back to work, this is considered 
callback time. If an employee is called in early prior to their shift beginning, this is not 
considered callback time unless they must then leave the worksite after the time period they 
were called in for, and return later for their normal work hours.  
 
Callback Pay 
 
In instances where non-exempt employees work callback time, they will be paid for actual time 
worked, or for two hours, whichever is greater. The pay rate for the first 2 hours worked will be 
at 1 ½ times their hourly rate and any additional hours will be paid at the applicable rate. The 
applicable rate will be determined by the overtime rules that apply to that employee. If the 
overtime rate applies for any callback time after two (2) hours, employees may be permitted to 
take this time as compensatory time off.  
 
In instances where exempt employees work callback time, no additional pay applies. 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 148 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.7 Incentives and Premiums 1  rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.7 INCENTIVES AND PREMIUMS 


 
 
Longevity Premiums – Non-Represented 
 
Non-represented employees attaining seven, ten, fifteen, and twenty years of service are 
eligible to receive longevity pay premiums, per the table below. The employee must be in good 
standing and performing satisfactorily to receive the longevity premium.  
 


 
Premiums are applied automatically on the applicable anniversaries of the employee’s hire date. 
If the employee is not in good standing or not performing satisfactorily, the premium will not 
apply or will be taken away. “Not in good standing” means that the employee is currently on a 
suspension or pending other disciplinary action. In this case, the premium may be applied 
beginning the pay period following the resolution of the disciplinary action and no retro-pay will 
be initiated. “Not performing satisfactorily” means that the employee is currently on a 
Performance Improvement Plan. In this case, the premium may be applied beginning the pay 
period following the successful completion of the performance improvement plan and no retro-
pay will be initiated.  
 
Premium Pays and Incentives – Represented  
 
Longevity and other premium or incentive pays may apply to employees that are members of a 
bargaining unit. These employees should refer to their contractual bargaining agreements to 
find out which premiums or incentives apply to them. 
 


Years of Service % increase (from base pay) 
7 2% 


10 3% 
15 4% 
20 5% 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 149 of 238







 


CHAPTER 4 – COMPENSATION AND PAY PRACTICES 


 


4.8 Recording Time and Timecards 1             rev. 07/2018 


 
 
4.8 RECORDING TIME AND TIMECARDS 


 
 
Timecards 
 
Official timecards are kept in the ADP system and represent legal documents that are used to 
accurately document and record working time. As with other personnel records, time cards are 
the property of the City. Employees are required to complete their own timecard and submit it to 
their supervisor for review and approval in a timely manner. Supervisors are responsible for 
ensuring that time cards are reviewed for accuracy, approved, and submitted to payroll in a 
timely manner. Falsification of time cards or unauthorized alteration of a time card will be 
grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 
 
Non-Exempt Employees 
 
Employees designated as FLSA “non-exempt” may be paid on an hourly basis or a salaried 
basis. Both hourly and salaried non-exempt employees are responsible for keeping accurate 
daily records of all hours worked using appropriate pay codes, and accounting for all regularly 
scheduled hours. If available, applicable paid leave must be taken before using unpaid leave.  
 
Non-exempt employees should not work outside of their regular schedule, or work remotely, 
unless they get prior authorization from their supervisor. This includes checking City email 
accounts while away from work (unless it is de minimis or for personal reasons, such as 
checking his/her work schedule to coordinate personal time, confirm calendar items, schedule 
personal appointments or vacations, etc.).   
 
Non-exempt employees are eligible for overtime pay for all hours worked over 40 hours in their 
work period (generally Monday through Sunday unless an alternative 7 day work period has 
been defined). If a non-exempt employee performs any substantive work while off duty, they 
must record that time on their timecard, and inform their supervisor. If the time worked was not 
authorized or approved, the employee may be subject to disciplinary action, and/or be required 
to flex his/her schedule during the same work period to avoid the off-duty work causing the City 
to pay unauthorized overtime.  
 
Exempt Employees 
 
Employees designated as FLSA “exempt” are paid on a salaried basis and are not 
compensated for the exact number of hours worked each day or week. They will receive the 
same salary each pay period although their actual work hours may fluctuate based on the needs 
of the department and the City. In order for the City to maintain an efficient and productive 
workplace, exempt employees are assigned a regular work schedule and FTE based on the 
responsibilities of their job, and are expected to fulfill the requirements of their assigned 
schedule. Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in a work period. 
 
Because of this, exempt employees are not required to track their hours worked on a daily basis 
except in circumstances where there is an exception to their regular schedule that amounts to 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 150 of 238







4.8 Recording Time and Timecards 2             rev. 07/2018 


four (4) hours or more. An example may be if an exempt employee misses 4.5 hours of their 
shift due to a medical appointment. They should record 4.5 hours sick time on their timecard for 
that day. If an exempt employee misses less than 4 hours of their normal work day, they are not 
required to document the time away from work on their timecard, and will typically flex their 
schedule as necessary during the pay period in order to meet their job and schedule 
requirements. Exempt employees must submit time off requests in the same manner as non-
exempt employees, so that their timecards accurately reflect any paid time off.  
 
Exempt employees may flex their hours or days in order to accommodate their job 
responsibilities (i.e. an employee whose regular schedule is Monday through Friday may need 
to work on a Saturday, so may arrange to take another weekday off during the same pay 
period). Schedule fluctuations should be communicated to the employee’s supervisor and to 
others whose jobs may be affected by the schedule change, but will not need to be recorded on 
the exempt employee’s timecard.  
 
Employee Responsibilities 
 
Employees are responsible for accurately recording their time worked as required by their 
employment status (exempt or non-exempt) and to ensure that any paid time off taken is also 
accurately reflected on their timecard. Employees are responsible for approving their ADP 
timecard at the end of each pay period. An employee’s approval indicates that all time recorded 
on the ADP timecard (both time worked and paid time off taken) accurately reflects what they 
did that pay period, and when during the pay period it occurred. An employee may not record 
time worked on a day or during a time other than the day and time the work was actually 
performed. For example: an employee may not work hours on a Sunday, and record the hours 
as being worked on a Monday in their timecard. 
 
Supervisor Responsibilities 
 
Supervisors are responsible for reviewing the timecards for their direct reports at the end of 
each pay period to verify that the time recorded on their employees’ ADP timecards accurately 
reflects what that employee worked during that pay period. Supervisors should not approve an 
employee’s timecard if the employee has not first approved it, or if the time recorded on the 
timecard appears to be inaccurate. In either case, the supervisor should contact the employee 
to resolve that issue before approving their employee’s timecard.  
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 151 of 238







 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.1 Holidays 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.1 HOLIDAYS 


 
 
Holidays Observed 
 
The City formally observes the following holidays: 


  
New Year's Day      
Martin Luther King Jr. Day    
Presidents' Day      
Memorial Day      
Independence Day      
Labor Day       


 Thanksgiving Day 
 Native American Heritage Day (Friday After Thanksgiving) 
 Christmas Eve Day 
 Christmas Day 
 Floating Holiday(s) 
 
If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. If a holiday falls on 
a Saturday, it shall be observed on the preceding Friday.  


 
If a holiday is observed on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off, and the employee is 
otherwise eligible for holiday pay as outlined below, that employee shall be allowed to take 
another day off during the pay period that the holiday is observed. 
 
Floating Holidays 
 
Employees accrue a number of floating holidays based on years of service as shown in the 
table below: 
 


 
Floating holidays are awarded on January 1st each year, and must be taken by the end of the 
calendar year. New employees whose hire date is October 1st or later do not accrue a floating 
holiday for that calendar year. Floating holidays may be taken at any time during the calendar 
year with prior approval of the supervisor or department manager. Floating holidays not taken 
during the calendar year will not be carried over into the next year, and are not eligible for cash-
out upon separation. 
 
 
 
 


Years of Service Floating Holidays Awarded 
Less than 10 1.0 
10 to less than 15 2.0 
15 to less than 20 2.5 
20 and above 3.0 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 152 of 238







5.1 Holidays 2 rev. 07/2018 


Holiday Pay 


The following rules will govern holiday pay for employees: 


• To be eligible for holiday pay, employees must be in a paid status the scheduled work day
immediately preceding and the work day immediately following the observed holiday.


• Employees in an un-paid status (for example, on un-paid Leave) the scheduled work day
immediately preceding and/or the work day immediately following the observed holiday will
not be eligible to receive holiday pay.


• All eligible full time employees shall receive holiday pay at their regular rate based on an
eight (8) hour work day and regular part time employees will receive pro-rated holiday pay at
their regular rate based on their assigned FTE.


• Employees designated as Casual or Temporary are not eligible to receive pay for holidays.


If an employee is required to work on a holiday, and the employee is otherwise eligible to 
receive pay for the holiday, the employee shall be allowed to take another day off during the pay 
period that the holiday is observed. 


Unpaid Holidays 


Employees are entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for a reason of faith or 
conscience or an organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, 
church, or religious organization.  


An employee may select the day(s) they desire to take the unpaid holiday(s) after consultation 
with their supervisor, and will be allowed to take them on the day(s) selected unless their 
absence on those days would impose an undue hardship on the City, or the employee’s 
presence at work is necessary to maintain public safety.  


Partial days off will count as a full day toward the annual entitlement of two unpaid holidays. The 
two unpaid holidays allowed by this section must be taken during the calendar year, if at all; 
they do not carry over from one year to the next. 


Reference 


RCW 1.16.050 – "Legal holidays" and "legislatively recognized days"—Unpaid holidays for 
employees with appointments or contracts of less than twelve consecutive months. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 153 of 238



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=1.16.050





 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.2 Annual Leave 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.2 ANNUAL LEAVE 


 
 
Accrual of Annual Leave 
 
Paid annual leave will be accrued by regular, full time employees at the end of each pay period 
based on the schedules below. Accruals are prorated based on assigned FTE for part-time 
employees. Employees in an un-paid status for a full pay period will accrue no annual leave in 
that pay period. Employees in an un-paid status for a partial pay period will accrue prorated annual 
leave in the same manner as part-time employees.  
 
Department Directors 


 
All Other Employees 


Length of Continuous Service Annual Accrual 
(Hours) 


Annual Accrual 
(Days) 


Zero to less than 5 years 96 12 
5 years to less than 10 years 128 16 
10 years to less than 13 years 152 19 
13 years to less than 16 years 160 20 
16 years to less than 20 years 168 21 
20 years and above 176 22 


  
 
Carry-Over of Annual Leave 
 
The maximum number of annual leave hours that may be carried over from December 31st of 
one year to January 1st of the next year is two hundred (200) hours.  Under certain 
circumstances and with the approval of the City Manager, employees may be permitted to carry 
over more than two hundred (200) hours of annual leave. Annual leave generally may not be 
cashed out without taking time off. The City Manager may authorize a payout under specific 
circumstances.  
 
Use of Annual Leave 
 
Annual leave should be scheduled at times that are mutually agreeable to the employee and 
supervisor/manager.  Employees are responsible to plan and submit annual leave requests to 
their supervisor well in advance of the time requested.  If requests are received at the same 
time from multiple employees, the department manager will make the final determination of who 
may take the leave, after considering the operational needs of the department, seniority of the 
employees and prior requests for leave.  
 
 


Length of Continuous Service Annual Accrual 
(Hours) 


Annual Accrual 
(Days) 


All years of service 176 22 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 154 of 238







5.2 Annual Leave 2 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
Donation of Annual Leave (replaces Resolution 91-135) 
 
The purpose of shared leave is to permit City employees, at no additional cost to the City other than the 
administrative costs of the program, to come to the aid of a fellow City employee who is suffering from, or 
has an immediate family member suffering from, a serious health condition which has caused or is likely 
to cause the employee to take leave without pay or to terminate his/her employment with the City. 
 
The City Manager shall determine the amount of donated annual leave, if any, which an employee may 
receive. An employee shall not receive more hours in donated leave than the difference between 1,040 
hours and the number of leave hours already used by the affected employee in this extraordinary 
situation. 
 
ELIGIBILITY OF RECIPIENT OF SHARED LEAVE 
 
The City Manager may permit an employee to receive donated annual leave if: 
 
• The employee is on an approved leave of absence for their own serious health condition, or to take 


care of a family member (as defined in Chapter 5.4 Sick Leave) suffering from a serious health 
condition; and 


• The employee has depleted or will shortly deplete his/her total of accrued annual leave, 
compensatory time, sick leave, holiday leave, and/or other paid leave; and 


• The employee has made use of, or attempted to make use of, paid benefits through Washington’s 
Paid Family Leave program (beginning January 1, 2020), and any short or long term disability 
benefits or worker’s compensation benefits they may be eligible for; and 


• The employee has provided appropriate medical justification and documentation regarding the 
necessity for the leave and the time which the employee can reasonably be expected to be absent 
due to the condition, including periodic updates if requested by the City.  


 
ELIGIBILITY OF DONOR OF SHARED LEAVE 
 
The City Manager may permit an employee to donate annual leave as long as the donating employee 
retains at least forty (40) hours of annual leave after their donation. This forty (40) hour minimum shall not 
take into consideration accrued sick leave, comp. time, holidays, or admin leave.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF SHARED LEAVE 
 
• All donations of shared leave shall be voluntary. 
• To the extent possible, shared leave should be used on a consecutive day basis. 
• Transfers of donated leave shall be in increments of four (4) hours, and shall be on an hour-for-hour 


basis regardless of the salary difference between the employee donating the shared leave and the 
employee receiving the shared leave.  


• The receiving employee's salary or wage shall not changes as a result of being on shared leave, nor 
under any circumstances, shall the total of the employee's salary and other benefits, including but not 
limited to state industrial insurance or any other benefit received as a result of payments by the City 
to an insurer, health care provider, or pension system, exceed the total of salary and benefits which 
the employee would have received had he/she been in a regular pay status. 


• Donations of shared leave may be made between any two employees except if prohibited for certain 
represented employees in their collective bargaining agreement.   


• While an employee is using donated annual leave, he/she shall continue to receive and accrue all 
benefits as he/she would normally receive if using other accrued paid leave. 


• When available, an employee must use accrued sick leave in the place of annual leave. 
• Any leave transferred which remains unused shall be returned to the employee who donated it in full 


hour increments only. In the event that multiple employees have donated leave, the most recent 
donation(s) shall be returned first.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 155 of 238







 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.3 Exempt Leave 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.3 EXEMPT LEAVE 


 
 
Employees designated "exempt" under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) are not eligible for 
overtime compensation for hours worked over 40 in a workweek. Exempt employees are paid a 
set salary for their assigned schedule and FTE regardless of the number of hours worked during 
the week. Exempt leave is not meant to compensate employees on an hour-for-hour basis, but 
to recognize that exempt employees may frequently be required to work additional hours or 
attend meetings outside of their regular workday in order to successfully perform their job. 
 
All exempt positions are awarded 40 hours of exempt leave annually. Exempt leave is granted 
as a bank of hours at the beginning of each calendar year, or upon hire/promotion into an 
eligible position.  
 
This bank of hours is pro-rated for part-time employees, or employees who are appointed, hired, 
or promoted to an eligible position who will not work in that position for a full year.  
 
 
Using Exempt Leave 
 
Exempt leave may be taken any time during the calendar year, and should be requested and 
scheduled in the same manner as annual leave. Exempt leave should be taken in the year 
accrued, as the hours do not carry over to the next year. Exempt leave is not paid out upon 
employee separation. 
 
This type of leave should not be confused with administrative leave (paid or unpaid) that an 
employee may be placed on during a period of investigation or as part of disciplinary action. 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 156 of 238







 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.4 Sick Leave 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.4 SICK LEAVE 


 
 
Accrual of Paid Sick Leave 
 
Paid sick leave is accrued differently depending on employment status as shown in the table 
below. There is no cap on paid sick leave accruals, but employees may roll over a maximum of 
1,040 hours from December 31st of one year to January 1st of the next year. Employees in an 
un-paid status for a full pay period will accrue no sick leave in that pay period. Employees in an 
un-paid status for a partial pay period will accrue prorated sick leave in the same manner as 
part-time regular employees. 
 


 
Qualifying Reasons  
 
Sick leave is provided to help minimize the economic hardship that may result from an illness or 
injury that necessitates an employee to miss work. There is no waiting period for new hires to 
use this benefit; once accrued, sick leave may be used immediately for any of the qualifying 
reasons below.  
 
An employee may use accrued sick leave for the following reasons: 
• Absence resulting from an employee's mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition.  
• To accommodate the employee's need for medical diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental 


or physical illness, injury, or health condition.  
• To accommodate an employee's need for preventive medical care. 
• To allow the employee to provide care for a family member with a mental or physical illness, 


injury, or health condition. 
• To allow the employee to assist a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or 


treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition. 
• To care for a family member who needs preventive medical care. 
• When the employee's place of business has been closed by order of a public official for any 


health-related reason, or when an employee's child's school or place of care has been 
closed for such a reason. 


• For absences that qualify for leave under the Domestic Violence Leave Act. 
 
For the purposes of this section, “family member” is defined to include: 
• A child, including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the 


employee stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent, regardless of 
age or dependency status; 


• A biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an 
employee or of the employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who 
stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; 


Employment Status Sick Leave Accrual Rate 
Full-Time Regular 4 hours per pay period 
Part-Time Regular (20 hours or more/week) (4 * FTE rate) hours per pay period 
Casual or Temporary 1 hour per every 40 hours worked 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 157 of 238







5.4 Sick Leave 2 rev. 07/2018 


• A spouse; 
• A registered domestic partner; 
• A grandparent; 
• A grandchild; or 
• A sibling. 
 
Payroll Application and Benefit Continuation 
 
Employees may use sick leave only for the Qualifying Reasons above. For employees who miss 
a full work shift, an equivalent number of sick leave hours will be deducted from the employee’s 
accrued hours. For employees who miss less than a full work shift, sick leave hours will be used 
to complete the balance of the employee’s work day. Only accrued hours may be used; 
employees may not use paid sick leave in advance of accruing the hours. 
 
Example: An employee working a twelve (12) hour shift would use twelve (12) hours of paid 
sick leave if the entire shift was missed. An employee missing two (2) hours of their work shift 
for a doctor’s appointment would use two (2) hours of paid sick leave.  


 
For all time missed that is covered by paid sick leave, all other time-based benefits, such as 
vacation accruals and covered healthcare premiums, will continue. 
 
Notification and Documentation Requirements 
 
Employees are required to give reasonable notice of an absence from work. In general, two 
weeks notice is requested for planned absences, such as a pre-planned surgery, unless such 
notice is not practical due to the nature of the planned absence.  


 
For un-planned absences, an employee is required to notify his/her supervisor or department 
director prior to the start of their work shift on each day they will be absent from work, unless 
they have previously provided documentation of the amount of time off needed. Specific 
instructions for notification to the employee’s supervisor will be clarified within respective 
departments.   


 
An employee who is absent from their job without notification or prior approval may be subject to 
disciplinary action depending on the circumstances of the absence.  An employee who is absent 
for three (3) consecutive days/shifts without notification may be considered to have voluntarily 
abandoned and resigned from his/her job. 


 
For absences lasting longer than three (3) days, an employee may be required to obtain 
documentation from a licensed health care provider confirming sick leave was taken for a 
Qualifying Reason and submit the documentation to Human Resources. In situations where 
obtaining documentation creates an unreasonable burden or expense to an employee that 
cannot be mitigated by the City, the employee will be subject to alternative means of verification.  
Employees asserting an unreasonable burden or expense shall contact Human Resources. In 
addition, consistent with state and federal law, prior to returning to work, an employee may be 
required to obtain a written release from the employee's health care provider attesting to the 
employee's ability to return to work. Failure to give proper notice or to provide required 
documentation may be cause for denial of paid sick leave for the period of absence.   
 
Paid Sick Leave for On-the-Job Injury/Illness 
 
On-the-job injuries or illness will be administered in accordance with Washington State 
Department of Labor & Industries regulations. An employee experiencing time loss due to a 
work related injury/illness may find that they simultaneously received workers' compensation 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 158 of 238







5.4 Sick Leave 3 rev. 07/2018 


time loss benefits and sick leave benefits. Employees in this situation must reimburse the City a 
dollar amount equal to the worker’s compensation time-loss benefits received, and the 
corresponding number of paid sick leave hours will be returned to their accrual banks. This 
reimbursement does not apply if the employee is being paid through only worker’s 
compensation time loss. 
 
Reference 
 
RCW 49.46.200 – Paid sick leave 
RCW 49.46.210 – Paid sick leave – Authorized purposes – Limitations – “Family member” 
defined 
WAC 296-128 – Minimum Wages 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 159 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46&full=true#49.46.200

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46&full=true#49.46.210

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-128





 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.5 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) 


 
 
Leave Entitlements 
 
Eligible employees who work for a covered employer can take up to twelve (12) weeks of 
unpaid, job-protected leave in a twelve (12) month period for the following reasons: 
 
• The birth of a child or placement of a child for adoption or foster care; 
• To bond with a child (leave must be taken within one year of the child’s birth or placement); 
• To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a qualifying serious health 


condition; 
• For the employee’s own qualifying serious health condition that makes the employee unable 


to perform the employee’s job; 
• For qualifying exigencies related to the foreign deployment of a military member who is the 


employee’s spouse, child, or parent. 
• If the City employs both you and your spouse, you are together entitled to a combined total 


of twelve (12) weeks for any leave taken for the birth of a child, placement of an adoption or 
a foster child, or to care for a child or parent (but not parent “in-law”) with a serious health 
condition. 


 
When it is medically necessary or otherwise permitted, employees may take leave intermittently 
or on a reduced schedule. 
 
Military Family Leave Entitlements 
 
An eligible employee who is a covered servicemember’s spouse, child, parent, or next of kin 
may also take up to twenty-six (26) weeks of FMLA leave in a single twelve (12) month period to 
care for the servicemember with a serious injury or illness.  
 
Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or called to active 
duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation may use 
their 12 week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies 
may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing 
certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending 
post-deployment reintegration briefings. 
 
Rolling Time Period 
 
FMLA leave works in conjunction with the City's other applicable allowed leave and generally 
provides job protection and benefits continuation for up to twelve (12) weeks during a rolling 
twelve (12) month time period measured backward from the first day of the new leave period an 
employee is requesting.  
 
Employees must use all available paid leave concurrently with their FMLA leave. If an employee 
substitutes accrued paid leave for FMLA leave, the employee must comply with the City’s 
normal paid leave policies. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 160 of 238







5.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 2 rev. 07/2018 


Benefits and Protection 


While on FMLA leave, employees must use any and all paid leave time, such as sick leave or 
annual leave, concurrently with their FMLA leave until their paid leave time is exhausted. While 
employees are on FMLA leave, their health insurance coverage is continued (regardless of their 
paid status) as if the employees were not on leave. Upon return from FMLA leave, employees 
will be restored to the same job or an equivalent comparable position with comparable pay, 
benefits, and other working conditions. 


The City will not interfere with an individual’s FMLA rights or retaliate against someone for using 
or trying to use FMLA leave, opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA, or being 
involved in any proceeding under or related to the FMLA. 


Eligibility Requirements 


An employee who works for a covered employer must meet three criteria in order to be eligible 
for FMLA leave. The employee must: 
• Have worked for the employer for at least 12 months;
• Have at least 1,250 hours of service in the 12 months before taking leave; and
• Work at a location where the employer has at least 50 employees within 75 miles of the


employee’s worksite.


Requesting Leave 


Generally, employees must give 30-days’ advance notice of the need for FMLA leave. If it is not 
possible to give 30-days’ notice, an employee must notify their supervisor and HR as soon as 
possible and, generally, follow the usual procedures for requesting leave. Employees must 
make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly 
disrupt the employer’s operations. 


Employees who request FMLA leave based on their own serious health condition or to care for 
a family member who has a serious health condition must provide medical certification from a 
health care provider supporting the need for the leave within fifteen (15) days of requesting such 
leave. Employees do not have to share a medical diagnosis, but must provide enough 
information so the City can determine if the leave qualifies for FMLA protection, and inform the 
City if the need for leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. 
The City may require the employee to obtain a medical recertification and/or second and third 
opinions as needed. Employees will be notified in writing if the certification is incomplete, and 
will be provided a notice indicating what additional information is required. 


City Responsibilities 


Once the City becomes aware that an employee’s need for leave is for a reason that may 
qualify under the FMLA, the employee will be notified if he or she is eligible for FMLA leave. If 
eligible, the employee will be provided with a notice of rights and responsibilities under the 
FMLA. If the employee is not eligible, the City will provide a reason for ineligibility. If approved 
for FMLA leave, employees will receive a designation notice to show how much leave will be 
designated as FMLA leave. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 161 of 238







5.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 3 rev. 07/2018 


Benefit Continuation 


During FMLA leave, the City will continue to pay its portion of contributions for health insurance 
benefits. Employees are responsible for their normal contributions to their health insurance 
benefits, due to the City by the 25th day of each calendar month. Failure to make this payment 
within thirty (30) days after it is due will result in cancellation of employee's health insurance 
benefits after appropriate notice has been provided to the employee.  


Employees may choose not to retain their health insurance coverage during their FMLA leave 
and are entitled to reinstatement of these benefits upon returning to work. If an employee 
chooses not to continue coverage while on leave, the employee may be subject to waiting 
periods due to a break in coverage. The City may recover the health insurance premium 
payments made on behalf of the employee if the employee fails to return to work after the FMLA 
leave is exhausted (return to work is defined as returning for at least thirty (30) days), barring 
circumstances beyond the employee's control, such as employee’s continuing serious health 
condition. 


After the employee returns to work, all benefits will resume in the same manner and at the same 
level as were provided when the leave began, subject to changes generally made to employee 
benefits during the time which the employee was on FMLA leave. Benefit accruals for sick and 
annual leave will continue during the time the employee is on paid FMLA leave, but accruals are 
prorated or not made during unpaid FMLA leave. 


Return to Work from FMLA Leave 


When the leave is taken as a result of the employee’s medical condition, a fitness for duty 
certification may be required before the employee will be reinstated. While an employee is 
absent from work on an FMLA leave, the City may require the employee to report periodically to 
his/her supervisor on his/her status and intent to return to work. Failure to provide certifications 
may result in the denial of leave until the requirements are satisfied, denial of continuation of the 
leave, and/or denial of reinstatement.  


Whenever possible, an employee who takes an FMLA leave will be reinstated to the same 
position the employee held when leave commenced or equivalent comparable position with 
comparable pay, benefits, and other working conditions. Employees returning from an FMLA 
leave have no greater rights to reinstatement or other benefits and conditions of employment 
than if they had not taken FMLA leave. For example, if their position was affected by a lay-off or 
reorganization or elimination, they may not be eligible for reinstatement. Temporary and casual 
employees have no reinstatement rights if the project for which they were hired has ended and 
the City would not have continued to employ them in the absence of their taking an FMLA leave. 


Enforcement 


Employees may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, or 
may bring a private lawsuit against an employer. The FMLA does not affect any federal or state 
law prohibiting discrimination or supersede any state or local law or collective bargaining 
agreement that provides greater family or medical leave rights. 


Reference 


Family and Medical Leave Act – Enacted by the federal government in 1993 and revised in 
January of 2009. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 162 of 238



https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/fmla.htm





 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.6 Jury / Court Duty 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.6 JURY / COURT DUTY 


 
 
Employees who receive a summons for jury duty shall notify their supervisor as soon as 
practical. If, after responding to the jury duty summons, an employee is required to report to the 
courthouse on a day they are scheduled to work, they must notify their supervisor as far in 
advance as possible that they will not be at work that day.  
 
Employees will receive full pay for their regularly scheduled workday when required to miss 
work due to jury service. Employees will not receive pay for work days missed if not required to 
report for jury service. 
 
On any day that an employee is released from jury duty, or as a witness in a public sector 
related employment matter, and four or more hours of the employee's scheduled work day 
remain, the employee must report to work. 
 
Employees subpoenaed for judicial proceedings in an employment-related matter will receive 
pay for their regularly scheduled workday at straight time for time spent up to eight hours per 
day, or equivalent to their regularly scheduled workday or shift. Non-exempt employees will then 
be paid one and one-half (1 ½ ) times their regular rate of pay for any additional time spent that 
day. 
 
Reference 
 
RCW 2.36 - Juries 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 163 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=2.36





 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.7 Bereavement Leave 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.7 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 


 
 
Bereavement leave is paid time off that is not accrued, but is granted on a situational basis. 
Upon the death of a member of the employee's family, and with the approval of the department 
director or his/her designee, an employee may take off up to three (3) regularly scheduled work 
days or shifts and replace those hours with bereavement leave instead of using accumulated 
compensatory time off or annual leave.  
 
For the purposes of this section, family is defined as: the employee’s spouse or domestic 
partner, child, parent, sibling, guardian or grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, or any of the 
above relations of the employee’s spouse or domestic partner; or any other person residing with 
or legally dependent upon the employee.  
 
In the event the employee needs to travel out of state to attend a funeral, leave may be allowed 
up to five (5) days with prior approval of their Department Director.  
 
The City will allow up to one (1) regularly scheduled work day or shift of bereavement leave to 
attend services for the death of a co-worker.   
 
Unusual circumstances may receive individual consideration by the City Manager. Employees 
may take additional time off for bereavement by using accumulated compensatory time off or 
annual leave time, provided that their request for additional time does not pose an undue 
hardship to the City. 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 164 of 238







 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.8 Other Types of Leave 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.8 OTHER TYPES OF LEAVE 


 
 
Military Leave and Military Family Leave Act 
 
Any employee of the City who is a member of the Washington National Guard or Federal 
Reserve Military Unit shall be entitled to be absent from his/her duties with the City with full pay 
for up to twenty-one (21) days during each calendar year beginning October 1st and ending the 
following September 30th, while engaging in the performance of officially ordered military duty 
and while going to or returning from such duty.  Such leaves shall be in addition to any other 
leaves or annual leave benefits.  During the period of military leave, the employee shall continue 
to accrue all leave benefits and to receive his/her normal rate of pay. 
 
Employees who are called or volunteer for services with the Armed Forces of the United States 
or the Washington National Guard shall be entitled to be considered for reinstatement in 
accordance with the provisions of the laws of the state of Washington and the Uniformed 
Services Employment Rights and Reemployment Act ("USERRA"). 
 
An employee promoted to fill a vacancy created by a person serving in the armed forces will 
hold the position subject to the return of the veteran.  The employee affected by the return 
should be restored to the position he/she held previously or another equivalent position to the 
extent possible. 
 
If an employee works at least twenty (20) hours per week and their spouse or registered 
domestic partner is called into active duty for the Armed Forces or will be, or is, deployed during 
a period of military conflict, the employee may be eligible to take up to fifteen (15) days of 
unpaid leave. This leave is available before the deployment or when your spouse or domestic 
partner is on leave from the deployment, and is available for each new deployment.  If you wish 
to take advantage of this leave of absence, inform Human Resources within five (5) business 
days after you receive the official call or order to active duty or of your spouse’s/domestic 
partner’s leave from his or her deployment. 
 
Washington Family Leave Act (FLA) and Washington Law Against Discrimination (WLAD) 
 
Eligible employees are entitled to up to 12 weeks of unpaid FLA leave in a 12 month time period 
for the birth or placement of a child, for an employee’s serious health condition, or for an 
employee’s family member’s serious health condition. This leave will run concurrently with 
FMLA except in the case of pregnancy disability described below, and the same eligibility 
requirements for FMLA apply. The entitlement to leave for the birth or placement of a child 
expires at the end of the twelve-month period beginning on the date of such birth or placement. 
 
If an employee is temporarily disabled because of pregnancy or childbirth, they will be eligible 
for unpaid leave for the period of time during which they are actually disabled. The City may 
require that a licensed health care provider certify the actual period of disability. This time is 
covered under the Washington Law Against Discrimination (WLAD) and WLAD leave will run 
concurrently with FMLA leave, but not with FLA leave. In this case, the employee may receive 
up to an additional twelve (12) weeks of parental leave covered by the FLA after their 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 165 of 238







5.8 Other Types of Leave 2 rev. 07/2018 


Pregnancy or Childbirth-Related Disability Leave ends. Again, part, or all of this time may also 
be covered under the FMLA.  
 
For situations where the City employs both the employee and their spouse, they are together 
entitled to a combined total of twelve (12) weeks for any leave taken for the birth or placement 
of a child, or to care for a child or parent with a serious health condition under the FLA.  
 
The City will continue health benefits for employees while they are on a paid status during 
approved FLA leave. If the employee is in an un-paid status on approved FLA leave, their 
benefits will continue until the first of the month following the start date of un-paid status.  After 
that time, they may continue their health benefits through COBRA at their own expense. Please 
note that if an employee is also approved for leave under the FMLA, and their FMLA leave is 
running concurrently, then the employee is only responsible for their own premiums for 
healthcare insurance until their FMLA leave expires. 
 
Washington Domestic Violence/Sexual Assault Leave 
 
The City grants unpaid leaves of absence to employees who (a) are victims of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking; or (b) have a family member who is a victim of these 
crimes.  A “family member” for the purposes of this paragraph includes “a child, spouse, 
domestic partner, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent or person with whom the employee is 
dating”. In general, this time away from work is available so the employee can take care of legal, 
medical, or safety issues related to these situations. The City may require verification to support 
the need for the leave, and employees must give their supervisor or HR notice of the need for 
this leave no later than the end of the first day the employee takes the leave, or as required by 
state law.  
 
Washington Paid Family Leave 
 
The Washington State Family and Medical Leave Program (RCW 50A.04) provides paid 
benefits for employees who need to take unpaid leave when they welcome a new child into their 
family, are struck by a serious illness or injury, need to take care of an ill or ailing relative and for 
certain military connected events. Although self-insurance is an option to fund benefits, the City 
is choosing to participate in the program administered by the Employment Security Department 
using the statutory default payroll deductions beginning January 1, 2018. Benefits from this 
program become effective January 1, 2020, and employees seeking to apply for paid family and 
medical leave will apply through the Employment Security Department. 
 
Extended Illness or Injury 
 
Employees wishing to extend their approved leave of absence for an injury or illness (that is not 
work related) beyond what is provided for in the law and these policies must participate in an 
interactive process with the City to determine if the additional amount of time requested is 
reasonable for the City to accommodate. The City may grant up to a maximum of six (6) 
consecutive months of leave time for an employee through this process (including leave time 
already taken). Unless otherwise protected by law or City policies, leave time in addition to six 
(6) consecutive months will be considered unreasonable, and the employee must either return 
to work to their current job, accept an alternative assignment to return to work (if available), or 
voluntarily resign. 
 
Personal Leave (Leave Without Pay) 
 
Requested leaves of absence that do not qualify under FMLA, any other type of Regulatory 
Leave, or any other type of leave addressed in this section, may be granted to employees 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 166 of 238



http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=50a.04&full=true





5.8 Other Types of Leave 3 rev. 07/2018 


without pay and must be approved by the City Manager. Impact on the department will be taken 
into consideration prior to approval of this type of leave and the employee will be expected to 
maintain regular communication with their manager regarding status and continued need for 
leave. 
 
To be eligible for Personal Leave, any accrued paid leave (floating holiday, annual leave, 
compensatory time off, etc.) must be used prior to taking leave without pay. If the leave is for 
medical reasons, accrued sick leave must also be exhausted before taking leave without pay. At 
any time during the leave of absence, the department manager may require the employee to 
return to work (also with City Manager approval) if the leave begins to negatively impact 
departmental operations.  
 
An employee on an approved leave of absence without pay may continue his/her health 
insurance benefits through COBRA by paying the full premium cost to the City in advance for 
each calendar month that he/she is absent. 
 
 


i. Reference 
 
RCW 38.40.060 – Military Leave for Public Employees 
RCW 73.16 – Employment and Reemployment 
RCW 49.77 – Military Family Leave Act 
RCW 49.78 – Family Leave 
RCW 49.76 – Domestic Violence Leave 
Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 167 of 238



https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=38.40.060

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=73.16

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.77

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.78

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.76

https://paidleave.wa.gov/





 


CHAPTER 5 – TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


5.9 Temporary Accommodations 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
5.9 TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATIONS 


 
 
Like many other aspects of leave administration, this process should be seen as interactive and 
the City will make every effort to work with employees returning from leave who may need or 
want to request temporary accommodations. Requested accommodations could include a 
modified work schedule, modified job duties, or another request depending on the employee’s 
work restrictions.  
 
It will be the employee’s responsibility to communicate any accommodation request to their 
immediate supervisor and Human Resources. The employee should attempt to be as specific as 
possible with their request, including their exact restrictions, documentation to support that the 
restrictions are necessary, and the length of time that the accommodation (such as a modified 
schedule) is being requested for.  
 
Employees will be required to submit this request as soon as practical, and prior to the 
requested start of the accommodation.  
 
These accommodation requests may be approved on a temporary basis (not to exceed one 
week) as necessary by the employee’s direct supervisor until a formal decision can be made 
regarding the request by Human Resources and/or the City Manager, depending on the level of 
accommodation requested.   
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 168 of 238







 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.1 Flexible Benefit Plan 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.1 FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN 


 
 
The City provides employees with a Flexible Benefit Plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 
125. This plan allows employees to pay for qualified expenses from pre-tax payroll deductions 
from their own earnings or from premium dollars (as described in section 6.2 Health and 
Welfare Plans). Employees may elect to reduce their salary or direct premium dollars into the 
plan to pay for the following: 
 
• Health Flexible Spending Account for reimbursement of health related expenses. 
• Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account for reimbursement of employment related 


dependent care expenses. 
• Insurance Premium Payment Plan for reimbursement of health insurance premiums. 
 
All Section 125 plan provisions are established by the City through agreement with the Plan 
Administrator (Benefits Administration Company). The administrative costs of the Flexible 
Benefit Plan are paid by the City. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 169 of 238







 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.2 Health and Welfare Plans 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.2 HEALTH AND WELFARE PLANS 


 
 
Eligibility an Waiting Periods 
 
New employees are eligible for coverage on the first calendar day of the month following date of 
hire. If the employee’s hire date is the first calendar day of the month, insurance coverage 
begins on the employee’s hire date.  
 
Regular employees who work full time (40 hours/week) or part time (20 - 39 hours/week), are 
eligible for medical, dental, and vision insurance as outlined below. Employees who are 
classified as “Casual” or “Temporary” are not eligible for the benefits outlined in this section.  
 
Insurance Coverage 
 
The City strives to provide comprehensive health coverage, along with flexibility for employees 
to choose the type or combination of plans and providers that work best for them. Health 
insurance for the City is provided through the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) 
Employee Benefit Trust. The City believes that membership in the Trust enables us to provide 
an excellent benefit package to our employees at reasonable cost. The benefit program may 
change from year to year depending on the plans and networks available through AWC. More 
detailed plan information is available both on AWC’s website, and the City’s employee 
information portal.  
 
The City offers the following options for coverage provided through AWC: 
 
• Medical: Employees may choose between a PPO medical plan and an HMO plan. Cost for 


coverage and provider networks depend upon the plan chosen.   
• Dental: The City offers an incentive level dental plan through Delta Dental of Washington. 
• Vision: The City offers vision coverage through VSP (Vision Service Plan). 
• Employee Assistance Program: This program is available to provide various types of 


confidential assistance to employees and their family members. 
 
The City also provides employees the option to extend health care coverage to their eligible 
dependents. Eligible dependents are the employee’s legal spouse, registered domestic partner 
and; The employee’s (or employees spouse or registered domestic partner's) natural child, 
adopted child, or step-child, less than age 26, or over age 26 if they are incapable of self-
support due to developmental disability or physical handicap (proof of incapacity is required).  
 
Employee and City Contributions 
 
City contribution to coverage cost is based on an employee’s FTE and will be pro-rated for part-
time regular employees as shown in the charts below. Employees who regularly work at least 20 
hours per week, but less than 40 hours per week will pay for benefits at the 0.75 FTE rate.  
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 170 of 238







6.2 Health and Welfare Plans 2 rev. 07/2018 


Medical Premiums: 


Dental Premiums: 


Vision Premiums: Vision premiums are paid for 100% by the City, regardless of FTE. 


The benefits, terms and conditions of the City’s health and welfare plans, including costs owed 
by eligible employees are further explained in the enrollment materials and plan documents.  


Other Insured Benefits 


Premiums for these plans are paid from the City’s contribution to MEBT. 


• Life insurance/accidental death and disability (AD&D).
• Long term disability (LTD), and survivor life insurance.


Premium Dollars 


The City sponsors a program designed to share benefit cost savings with eligible employees. An 
employee who chooses not to purchase health insurance benefits for themselves and/or their 
eligible dependents may receive payment of 50% of the amount that the City would have 
contributed towards the coverage. These “premium dollars” may be directed toward qualified 
Section 125 expenses, reducing the employee’s own contributions towards their medical / 
dental / and vision coverage, or deferred compensation contributions. 


Voluntary Benefits 


The City offers the following optional plans for interested employees: 


• WA DRS Deferred Compensation Plan
• ICMA Deferred Compensation Plan (457 Plan)
• AFLAC (short term disability, accident, cancer, and hospital-ICU)


All premiums or contributions to these voluntary plans are paid for entirely by the employee 
through payroll deduction. Each plan may have their own eligibility requirements and restrictions 
on use (such as federal rules and regulations governing tax liability and restrictions on 
withdrawals). To learn more about these plans, employees should contact the benefits 
representative for the plan directly. Additional information may be found on the City’s employee 
information portal.   


FTE Equivalent Weekly Hours % Paid by Employee % Paid by City 
1.0 40 10% 90% 
0.9 36 10% 90% 
0.8 32 20% 80% 
0.75 30 25% 75% 


FTE Equivalent Weekly Hours % Paid by Employee % Paid by City 
1.0 40 0% 100% 
0.9 36 10% 90% 
0.8 32 20% 80% 
0.75 30 25% 75% 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 171 of 238







CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


6.3 Municipal Employee Benefit Trust 1 rev. 07/2018 


6.3 MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST 


Municipal Employee Benefit Trust (MEBT) Overview 


The City of Mill Creek does not participate in the federal Social Security system and, in lieu of 
Social Security, provides an employee benefit trust for the exclusive benefit of participating 
employees, their beneficiaries, and dependents. The MEBT program is generally designed to 
mirror and provide a substitute for Social Security benefits. 


Administration and Eligibility 


Life and disability insurance are a component of the MEBT plan. An oversight committee of 
employees is appointed per directives of the plan document. A Summary Plan Description is 
available upon request or online at www.mebt.org. Participation in MEBT is mandatory for all 
employees and City Councilmembers.  


The City sponsors two different plans; MEBT I and MEBT II. The main distinctions between 
MEBT I and MEBT II are differences in City/employee contribution amounts, and vesting. All 
regular full-time and part-time employees and Councilmembers participate in MEBT I. 
Temporary and casual employees participate in MEBT II. 


Contributions to MEBT 


All of the employees' mandatory contributions are made via payroll deduction and are pre-tax 
deductions. The City's contributions to participant accounts are also made in pre-tax dollars. 


For MEBT I participants, the City contributes to the plan an amount equal to the employee's 
contribution of 6.2%.  A portion of the City's contribution is used to pay the costs of the 
premiums for the insurance components; life/AD&D, LTD, and survivor life; and to pay 
administrative expenses of the plan. The remaining City contribution is then allocated to 
employees' individual accounts of the MEBT plan. MEBT I participants have the option of 
making extra voluntary after-tax contributions provided they do not exceed IRS limits. It is the 
employee’s responsibility to monitor that they are within the Internal Revenue Code limits. 


Vesting of City contributions to MEBT I accounts: 


Time of Continuous Participation Percentage Vested 
Less than 12 months 0% 
12 months 10% 
Each additional month 1.25% 
84 months or longer 100% 


MEBT II participants contribute 7.5% to their plan account. MEBT II participants do not have the 
option of making extra contributions. The City does not make any employer contributions to 
MEBT II plan accounts, and employees are fully vested immediately.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 172 of 238



http://www.mebt.org/





 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.4 Retirement Plans 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.4 RETIREMENT PLANS 


 
 
City employees classified as Full Time Regular or Part Time Regular are eligible to participate in 
a Washington State retirement system plan. Employees classified as Casual or Temporary are 
not eligible for participation.  
 
Non-law enforcement employees may choose to participate in the PERS Plan 2 or the PERS 
Plan 3. Law enforcement employees will participate in the LEOFF plan. All plans are 
administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS). Employees 
must pay any required amounts towards the contribution costs by payroll deduction. More 
information on these two plans is available at http://www.drs.wa.gov and through the City’s 
employee portal. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 173 of 238



http://www.drs.wa.gov/





 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.5 Extended Health Benefits (COBRA) 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.5 EXTENDED HEALTH BENEFITS (COBRA) 


 
 
The City offers continuing health care coverage (as required through COBRA regulations) on a 
self-pay basis to employees and their dependents who lose their medical coverage as a result 
of a qualifying event. Qualifying events include: voluntary or involuntary termination of 
employment, a reduction in hours resulting in loss of health insurance coverage, retirement, or 
death. 
 
COBRA is administered for the City through AWC (Association of Washington Cities) and all 
employees eligible for COBRA will be sent an enrollment packet from AWC or their partner 
Northwest Administrators.  
 
Insurance coverage is always provided and paid for in increments of one full month. When an 
employee is separated from employment with the City, the City will pay its portion of the 
premium cost through the end of the month of separation regardless of the employee’s last day 
of work. To continue health care coverage beyond that time frame, employees must enroll in 
COBRA. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 174 of 238







 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.6 Wellness Program 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.6 WELLNESS PROGRAM 


 
 
The City of Mill Creek maintains a Wellness Program to educate, promote and encourage health 
awareness and healthful lifestyle choices by City employees. We believe that contributing 
toward maintaining good physical and mental health will have a positive impact on productivity 
and morale of the City’s workforce.   
 
The purpose of the Wellness Program is to: 
 
• Encourage employees to maintain good physical and mental health 
• Reduce healthcare expenses by earning a discount on plan premiums 
• Increase productivity of our workforce 
• Reduce absenteeism 
 
Wellness Committee 
 
A Wellness Committee is appointed by the City Manager and consists of employees 
representing the various City departments. The Committee will develop, maintain and 
administer the Wellness Committee operating policies and procedures in order to effectively 
manage the program, with oversight from the City Manager/Executive Department. 
 
Employee Participation 
 
Participation in the City of Mill Creek Wellness Program (with the exception of the Wellness Day 
Off) is open to all employees. All wellness activities are voluntary. Some wellness activities will 
take place during work hours and employees will be allowed to participate during the workday. 
 
Wellness Day Off Program 
 
Participation in the Wellness Day Off program is limited to regular full-time or regular part-time 
(benefits eligible) employees. Temporary or Casual employees are not eligible for the wellness 
day off award. The wellness day off is defined as eight hours. One wellness day off may be 
earned per calendar year, and must be taken within that calendar year at a time approved by 
the employee's supervisor. An unused wellness day off will not be cashed out upon separation.  
 
The wellness day off is earned by participating in Wellness Program events and exercising on 
the employee’s own time throughout the year and tracking points earned as outlined below: 
 
• Participants qualify for a wellness day off by earning a total of 500 points. At least 400 points 


must be earned by exercising on the employee’s own time.  
• Activities and exercise are tracked by the employee on the annual Wellness Program 


Calendar. 
• Exercise is defined as any activity dedicated to increasing your heart rate and/or building 


strength and sustained for 30 minutes. One 30 minute activity earns 5 points. A maximum of 
5 points per day may be earned.  


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 175 of 238







6.6 Wellness Program 2 rev. 07/2018 


• Up to 100 points can be earned by participating in various wellness events sponsored by the 
City (to be determined by the Wellness Committee with approval of the City Manager). 
Participation in a minimum of three wellness events is required to be eligible for the wellness 
day off. 


• After the employee has earned 500 qualifying points, the employee must provide verification 
to the Finance Department (Payroll) in order to earn their wellness day off award. 


 
Other Wellness Incentives 
 
To support health and wellness in the workplace, employees who exercise for at least forty-five 
minutes during their lunch hour may arrange with their supervisor to take a one hour and twenty 
minute meal break, of which twenty minutes is considered a paid rest period. 
 
 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 176 of 238







 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.7 Recognition and Appreciation 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.7 RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION 


 
 
The City’s recognition and appreciation program is designed to encourage employee recognition 
and appreciation at all levels of the organization. The City also believes that there is no “one-
size-fits-all” approach to recognition and appreciation, and so has created both monetary and 
non-monetary rewards to recognize and appreciate employees. Some of these components 
may be covered in more detail in other City policies or procedures and additional rewards or 
premiums may apply to members of a bargaining unit as provided for in their CBA. 
 
Longevity Based Rewards 
 
In order to recognize employee dedication and service, and to promote employee engagement 
and retention, the City of Mill Creek wishes to distinguish employees who achieve longevity 
milestones in their careers with the City. The following rewards are offered to employees based 
on their length of service with the City. Some of these rewards may be found in other sections of 
this manual as indicated below.  
  
• Longevity-Based Premiums. A percentage of an employee’s base pay added to their 


paychecks each pay period for employees that meet certain length of service requirements.  
(4.7 Incentives and Premiums) 


• Additional Floating Holiday. An additional floating holiday per year for employees that meet 
certain length of service requirements. (5.1 Holidays) 


• Additional Annual Leave. Additional annual leave (vacation time) is given to employees who 
meet certain length of service requirements. (5.2 Annual Leave) 


• Milestone Anniversaries. An employee’s 5th, 10th, 15th, 20th, (and every 5 years after) 
anniversary of their hire date is considered a “Milestone” anniversary. On these milestone 
anniversaries, employees shall receive a certificate of appreciation and a commemorative 
token (such as a pen).  


• Once per year, the City Manager will hold an employee recognition event for all city 
employees. The main purpose of this event shall be to recognize employees that have 
achieved milestone anniversaries. Funding for recognition events and awards is described 
in 300-01 Business Expense Policy. 


 
Retirement Celebrations 
 
To honor the employees that have chosen to work for the City until retirement, the City will 
authorize a celebration on or around any retiring employee’s last work day. Employees who are 
separated for reasons other than retirement (such as leaving for another job) are not eligible for 
a retirement celebration. 
 
The employee’s department (in conjunction with Human Resources) is responsible for 
organizing an appropriate celebration, and the City’s contribution will include a card and a small 
gift such as a photo album, flower arrangement, or gift basket. The total amount of the City’s 
contribution shall be limited to $100 per retirement. Additional gifts, food, or decorations are 
generally not provided by the City.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 177 of 238



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreekPolicies/MillCreekPolicies30001.html





6.7 Recognition and Appreciation 2 rev. 07/2018 


Employee to Employee Appreciation 
 


All employees are responsible for maintaining a culture that supports the City’s STAR values of 
Service, Teamwork, Accountability, and Respect. In alignment with the City’s values, all 
employees are highly encouraged to show their appreciation for their co-workers, supervisors, 
subordinates, and other City staff. The City offers many avenues to do this, including: 
 
• The Monday Minute – with approval from the Director of Communications and Marketing 
• The ADP Homepage – with approval from Human Resources 
• “You’re a STAR” cards 
• Simply saying “Thank-you!” 
 
Recognition Committee  
 
The Recognition Committee is formed of existing employees to organize events and activities 
that encourage positive workplace morale. For example, employees may be encouraged to 
participate in certain activities or themes, such as Take Your Dog to Work Day or Blue Fridays, 
provided that participation in these activities or themes does not create an unreasonable 
distraction or decrease in productivity. The Recognition Committee also assists City 
management in organizing recognition events, such as for milestone anniversaries. 
 
Employees are encouraged to bring forward any ideas or suggestions that they have on events, 
holidays, or celebrations that they would like the City to participate in. The City Manager will 
have the final say on whether something is unreasonably distracting or unreasonably decreases 
productivity. 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 178 of 238







 


CHAPTER 6 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


 


6.8 Training and Tuition Reimbursement 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
6.8 TRAINING AND TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 


 
 
Training 
 
The City recognizes the importance of employee development and training in improving 
individual job performance, enhancing knowledge, skills and abilities directly related to an 
employee’s position, and broadening the skill level within our workforce. The City will provide job 
related training opportunities to employees as needed and as financial resources to do so are 
available.  
 
The City may reimburse or pay expenses for employees to attend job-related seminars, 
webinars, conferences, and business meetings. Authorization for payment or reimbursement 
must be obtained in advance of the event. Training expenses for courses or certifications that 
are required by the City will be paid for by the City (except in cases where the license or 
certification is a pre-employment requirement), including travel expenses, registration, and 
employee wages.  
 
All payments or reimbursements for training, including other expenses such as airfare or lodging 
for out of town trainings, must follow 300-01 Business Expense Policy. 
 
Tuition Reimbursement 
 
In order to encourage employee development beyond what is required for their position, the City 
provides tuition reimbursement for employees pursuing college courses that are related to the 
employee’s current position or future career goals with the City. To qualify for this 
reimbursement, the employee’s supervisor must concur that the course is job-related. 
 
Tuition reimbursement for college courses caps at $500 per year, per employee, and is 
dependent on the employee’s completion of the course with a passing grade. If the employee 
fails to furnish the City with evidence of successful completion of the course, the City will not 
provide reimbursement for that course. 
 
Tuition reimbursement will apply to college courses only, and not courses taken through another 
organization or business. If an employee is not sure whether the course they are planning to 
take qualifies for tuition reimbursement, they should speak with their supervisor, Human 
Resources, or the Director of Finance.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 179 of 238



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreekPolicies/MillCreekPolicies30001.html





 


CHAPTER 7 – OTHER PROVISIONS 


 


7.1 Employment Records 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
7.1 EMPLOYMENT RECORDS 


 
 
Personnel Files 
 
Official personnel files are maintained for all City employees by the Human Resources 
department. These records are the property of the City and are kept confidential to the 
maximum extent allowed by law. Personnel records may include, but are not limited to, an 
employee’s offer letter, personnel action forms, performance evaluations, disciplinary actions, 
training confirmations, and such other records as may be deemed necessary.  
 
The employee(s) that have access to information in personnel files may vary depending on how 
confidential the information is. Aside from Human Resources, the employee’s supervisor or 
department director, and the City Manager may access personnel records if necessary and as 
appropriate. Employees may review their own personnel file upon formal request and in the 
presence of HR staff. Employees or former employees will not be allowed to remove or alter any 
information maintained in the personnel file, but if an employee disagrees with anything in the 
file, a statement of disagreement may be added to the file. Employees are responsible for 
ensuring that their personal information on file with the City is kept current (e.g., address, 
phone, dependents, beneficiaries, etc.).  
 
Other Employee Files 
 
Some personal information related to an employee may be filed separately from the personnel 
file due to specific retention schedules or security requirements that may differ from what is 
required for personnel files. Examples of the information or documents kept separately include; 
medical information including leave paperwork, information related to background checks, 
payroll and benefits forms and information, I-9 forms, and worker’s compensation related 
documents. 
 
Supervisors may also keep temporary files with information regarding an employee’s 
performance for use during performance evaluations. When completed, supervisors should turn 
all supporting documents in to HR along with the employee’s performance evaluation.  
 
Release and Destruction of Personnel Records 
 
Confidential personnel records will only be released with the written consent of the employee, or 
in response to court orders, subpoenas, public records or government requests if approved by 
the City Attorney.  
 
Archival and destruction of personnel files and records will be managed based primarily on the 
Common Records Retention Schedule (CORE) guidelines issued by the Washington State 
Archives, Office of the Secretary of State. 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 180 of 238







7.1 Employment Records 2 rev. 07/2018 


Employment Verification and References 


Finance/payroll and/or Human Resources department staff is authorized to respond to requests 
for verification of employment for current and former employees.  


Only the following information will be given, unless the employee has provided the City with a 
written release to provide specific additional information: 


• Dates of employment
• Current job title, or job title at date of termination
• Department and division employed
• Current or final salary


Official responses to requests for employment references, which typically deal with employee 
performance, should come from the employee’s supervisor. Supervisors may not respond to a 
reference inquiry without coordinating the response with Human Resources to ensure 
compliance with legal procedures. Copies of official reference documents should be kept in the 
employee’s personnel file. 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 181 of 238







 


CHAPTER 7 – OTHER PROVISIONS 


 


7.2 Release of Confidential Information 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
7.2 RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 


 
 
All City employees are expected to maintain appropriate confidentiality of work related issues, 
including but not limited to customer, employee and City information and records.  As part of 
their official duties with the City, employees may have access to information and official records, 
most of which are public, but some of which are confidential. Public information that is not 
considered to be confidential may be given out in the daily course of City operations as 
necessary to accomplish City business. Employees shall not disclose confidential City 
information to any unauthorized person, nor shall employees use such information for their 
personal gain or benefit. If an employee receives a request and is unsure if the information is 
confidential information, they should refer the requestor to the City Clerk’s Office to facilitate a 
Public Records Act request. All requests for employee or personnel information should also be 
forwarded to the Human Resources department. 
 
Examples of information that would be considered confidential includes, but is not limited to, the 
following:  
 
• Personnel files of City employees  
• Home addresses and telephone numbers of City employees 
• Employee social security numbers 
• Test questions, scoring keys and other examination data used to administer employment 


examinations 
• Lists of individuals requested for commercial purposes 
• Employee doctor’s notes or medical information  
 
If an employee releases confidential information wrongfully, or is careless in the security of 
confidential information (including careless use or treatment of software or devices containing 
confidential information), they may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 
termination.  
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 182 of 238







 


CHAPTER 7 – OTHER PROVISIONS 


 


7.3 Inclement Weather 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
7.3 INCLEMENT WEATHER OR EMERGENCY CLOSURE 


 
 
If City Hall is Closed 
 
In the event that conditions are so severe that the safety of City employees would be 
jeopardized by reporting to or remaining at work, the City Manager may allow non-essential 
personnel to leave early or arrive late. The City Manager may also determine at that time if it is 
necessary to close City Hall to the public.  
 
Employees who normally would have worked during the impacts to City Hall, who are not 
permitted to work due to the nature of the weather or other event (and are not authorized to 
work from home), shall not have paid time off deducted for hours missed due to the closure. 
Employees who are authorized to work from home should do so if they are able.  
 
Employees who must report to work during inclement weather, emergency, or City Hall closure 
due to the responsibilities of their position are considered “essential” employees. Different 
positions may be considered “essential” depending on the nature of the event (Police are 
generally always considered to be “essential”). 
 
Essential employees who are unable to report to work as scheduled must cover any missed 
hours by: 
 
• Using available annual leave 
• Using compensatory time off 
• Using an available floating holiday 
• Taking the time as unpaid leave (if approved) 
• Making up the time missed within the same work period (if approved) 
 
Employees (essential or non-essential) who were already scheduled to be off work (due to a 
leave, vacation, “flex” day, or otherwise) will be paid as normal.  
 
If City Hall is Not Closed 
 
In the event of inclement weather or other circumstance where City Hall operations can 
generally continue as normal, but where an employee may choose to stay home (for example; 
due to road conditions in that employee’s neighborhood), the employee must cover any missed 
hours by: 
 
• Using available annual leave 
• Using compensatory time off 
• Using an available floating holiday 
• Taking the time as unpaid leave (if approved) 
• Making up the time missed within the same work period (if approved) 
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 183 of 238







 


CHAPTER 7 – OTHER PROVISIONS 


 


7.4 Volunteer and Intern Programs 1 rev. 07/2018 


 
 
7.4 VOLUNTEER AND INTERN PROGRAMS 


 
 
Volunteers 
 
The City of Mill Creek values volunteers who offer their time and their talents to help make Mill 
Creek a better place to live, work, and visit. Volunteer opportunities offer community members 
the chance to partner with their local government to provide services to the community and 
implement the mission and programs of the City. This can also serve to fulfill community service 
requirements that a citizen may have. 
 
Volunteers are unpaid workers who elect to perform a service for the city either on a one-time 
basis or an ongoing basis. The City defines which opportunities and projects are open for 
volunteers, and volunteers must apply for and complete the pre-volunteering requirements for 
any opportunities as set forth in the Volunteer Program Guidelines prior to providing a service to 
the City. This is to ensure the safety of volunteers, City workers, and the public, as well as to 
ensure compliance with all collective bargaining agreements. Volunteer work is not to be used 
to displace work that should normally be performed by paid City employees.  
 
The City’s volunteer program will be coordinated and facilitated by the Communications and 
Marketing Department, Human Resources, and the department with whom the volunteer is 
working to provide a service.  
 
Interns 
 
The City of Mill Creek offers internships periodically to provide an opportunity for career 
exploration, development, and growth. While interns should provide a service to the City, similar 
to volunteers, the focus of an internship should be on the educational aspects of the intern’s 
work, and the career development opportunities that the City can provide.  
 
Interns are defined as non-employee workers who elect to perform a service for the City in 
exchange for school credit, educational growth, or career advancement. Interns may be paid or 
unpaid. Internship opportunities should be provided for as set forth in the Intern Program 
Guidelines. Potential interns should apply for and complete the pre-internship requirements for 
the internship program they are interested in. This is to ensure the safety of interns, City 
workers, and the public, as well as to ensure compliance with all collective bargaining 
agreements. Internship opportunities may be focused on a single project, a single department or 
multiple departments, and a start date and end date should be defined prior to the start of the 
internship. 
 
The City’s internship program will be coordinated and facilitated by Human Resources, and will 
be limited in scope by the time and resources available in the department(s) the intern is 
working in.  
 
 
 


DRAFT


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 184 of 238







E
CITY OF MILLCREEK PERSONNEL POLICIES


Mi11Creek
l.\‘»\!:Hll\I(;T0.\‘


Subject Index: Human Resources
PERSONNEL POLICIES Number: 400-01


Effective Date: Supersedes: Staff Contact: Clerk ID Number: Approved By and
December 11, CCP 97-005 Human Date:
2018 February 11, Resources


1997
CCP 08-002
June 10, 2008
CCP 09-001
January 1, 2009
CCP 12-002
January 1, 2013


Repeals and
Replaces:
Res. 2003-325
March 11, 2003
Res. 91-135
December 17,
1991


1.0 PURPOSE:


1.1 Adoption of Personnel Policies. In accordance with the City of Mill Creek’s
Municipal Code, Chapter 1.24, the City Manager has determined, based on the
authority of the City Council to approve the City's budget and define financial
priorities, that the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01 City of Mill
Creek Personnel Policies) related to wages and benefits should be presented to
and approved by the City Council.


In the event that the City Manager determines that changes to these Personnel
Policies are appropriate, the City Manager will so advise the City Council and
present proposed revisions for Council consideration and approval. In the event
immediate changes are necessary to respond to State or Federal law, the City
Manager may implement the required changes immediately and advise the Council
of the changes made.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 185 of 238







1.2


1.3


Personnel Administration Manual. The City Manager is authorized to, based on the
direction provided by the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01 City of
MillCreek Personnel Policies), approve administrative procedures and guidelines
as required for the good governance and human resource management of the City
and as may othen/vise be required by State or Federal law. Any time this policy
(400-O1) is updated, the City Manager shall also provide to the City Council the
updated section(s) of the Personnel Administration Manual as a reference
document. At no time shall the Personnel Administration Manual be inconsistent
with the policy statements contained in this policy (400-01).


Collective Bargaining Agreements. The City Council may authorize policies or
procedures which are inconsistent with this policy (400-01) for positions in a
bargaining unit through the collective bargaining process. These alternative
policies or procedures willbe documented in the applicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA). In the event of any inconsistency between this policy and a
CBA, the CBA will supersede the policy statement for represented employees
covered under that CBA.


2.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:


All City departments/divisions.


3.0 EMPLOYMENT STATUS:


3.1


3.2


3.3


3.4


3.5


All employees have a designated employment status which is used to determine
pay, benefits, and other eligibility. The following four employment statuses are
referred to throughout this policy.


Casual. An employee hired to work on an intermittent or as-needed basis, or is
regularly scheduled to work less thantwenty (20) hours per week.


Full-Time Regular. An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of time
and regularly scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours per week.


Part—TimeRegular. An employee hired into a position for an indefinite period of
time and regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week and less
than forty (40) hours per week.


Temporagg. An employee hired to filla position with a defined end date. The length
of a temporary position willgenerally not exceed six (6) months.


4.0 PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN:


4.1 All employee positions are subject to available funding. The City Council shall
establish, through approval of the City’s biennial budget, salary grades,
corresponding pay range assignments, and authorized full-time equivalent (FTE)
count for all positions within the City. This shall include approval of any cost of


2


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 186 of 238







4.2


4.3


4.4


4.5


4.6


4.7


4.8


livingincreases to be applied on January 15*of each year not previously approved,
such as during union contract negotiations.


Each salary grade in the current salary plan shall be placed at 5% above the grade
below it. Each step within a salary grade shall be placed at 4% above the step
below it.


Annually the City Council shall consider adjustments to position classi?cations
and/or the assignment of salary grades to positions to be effective January 15‘of
each year based on the recommendation of the City Manager.


The City Manager in conjunction with Human Resources shall determine the
appropriate placement of personnel within those salary ranges as well as the
progression within a certain salary range or grade. For represented employees,
the City Manager’s decision shall be in line with all applicable clauses of that
employee’s contractual bargaining agreement. No employee shall be placed in-
between steps in their assigned grade.


If it becomes necessary to reclassify a position mid-year, the City Council may,
with the City Manager's recommendation, approve a mid-year adjustment to a
position’s salary grade. Mid-year adjustments to a position’s assigned salary grade
must be supported in the biennial budget.


No employee shall earn less than the bottom step of the approved salary grade for
their position (excluding incentives and premiums). Employees earning less than
the bottom of their current salary grade shall have their wages adjusted to no less
than the bottom of the salary range. This may occur in situations such as
promotions or position reclassifications.


No employee shall earn more than the top step of the approved salary grade for
their position (excluding incentives and premiums). Employees earning more than
the top step of their current salary grade shall have their wages adjusted to fall
within the range of their position’s salary grade. This may occur in situations such
as demotions or position reclassifications.


In cases where a reclassi?cation, demotion, or other action causes an employee’s
pay to fall above the approved salary grade for their position, excluding incentives
and premiums, the City Manager may approve freezing that employee’s salary at
its current rate above the approved salary grade subject to the City's approved
budget. In this case, the employee willnot be eligible for any annual increase or
cost of living increase until their current salary falls within the approved salary
grade for their position.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 187 of 238







5.0 INCENTIVES AND PREMIUMS:


5.1


5.2


5.3


As a retention strategy, and to acknowledge long term employees for their years
of service to the City, the City Council authorizes longevity premiums awarded to
employees commencing on the seventh ("it")anniversary of their hire date, and at
certain other milestone anniversary dates, provided that their work performance
maintains an acceptable level, according to the schedule below:


Longevity Premium
rovided erformance maintains accetable level


All longevity premiums are calculated on the employee’s base pay and are not
cumulative, and must be supported in the City's budget. The City Manager shall
approve, through the Personnel Administration Manual, the appropriate
performance measures and a process by which to calculate an employee’s years
of service when there are breaks in service.


An employee’s base pay is their base wage or salary absent all applicable premium
or incentive pays. Normally, an employee's base pay corresponds to a step in their
position’s assigned salary grade.


6.0 LEAVE AND PAID TIME OFF:


6.1


6.2


Observed Holidays. The City formally observes the following holidays:
New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Presidents‘ Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Native American Heritage Day (Friday after Thanksgiving)
Christmas Eve Day
Christmas Day


Ifa holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. Ifa
holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be observed on the preceding Friday.
Holidays shall be considered as 8 hour days for regular full time employees, and
prorated based on FTE for regular part time employees.


Floating Holidays. Employees shall accrue a number of floating holidays based on
years of service as shown in the table below. Floating holidays are awarded on
January 1 of each year, and expire if unused on December 31 of each year.


4


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 188 of 238







6.3


6.4


6.5


Holidays shall be considered as 8 hour days for regular full time employees, and
prorated based on FTE for regular part time employees.


....:\ -W


Annual Leave. Annual Leave is also referred to as “Vacation.” Regular full time
employees shall accrue annual leave (vacation) hours per pay period based on
their years of service as shown in the tables below. Regular part time employees
shall accrue annual leave pro-rated based on their assigned FTE. Temporary and
Casual employees are not eligible for annual leave.


1» :4.
1; .«..


Department Directors
7';-:5.-1:5. ,;- .._


-9_-1
.._... _.... v—- 5%


_.....


. .


A maximum of 200 hours of annual leave may be carried over from December 31
of one year to January 1 of the next year.


Donation of Annual Leave. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to
approve the donation of annual leave from one employee to another for the
purposes of aiding a fellow City employee who is suffering from, or has an
immediate family member suffering from, an extraordinary or severe illness, injury,
impairment, or physical or mental condition which has caused or is likelyto cause
the employee to take leave without pay or to terminate his/her employment with
the City.


Any and all donations of annual leave shall be voluntary, and no other type of leave
(ex: sick leave) shall be donated in any circumstance.


Exempt Leave. To acknowledge that exempt employees willregularly be required
to work overtime hours without additional compensation, exempt leave is provided
to FLSA exempt employees as a bank of 40 hours on January 1 of each year.
These hours expire if unused on December 31 of each year.


5


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 189 of 238







6.6


6.7


6.8


6.9


6.10


Sick Leave. Employees shall accrue sick leave hours each pay period depending
on their employment status as shown in he table below:


Employment Status Annual Accrual (Hours)
Full-Time Regular 96
Part-Time Regular (96 * assigned FTE)
Casual or Temporary 1 hour per every 40 hours worked


A maximum of 1040 hours of sick leave may be carried over from December 31 of
one year to January 1 of the next year.


Employment Offers. In some cases it may be necessary to offer paid time off in
addition to what this policy provides to new hires for the purposes of filling a hard
to fill position. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to approve additional
annual leave or exempt leave to be offered to a candidate at the time of hire at
his/her discretion, provided that the new hires leave accruals stay consistent with
this policy. For example, the City Manager may authorize a candidate to start their
employment with 40 hours of annual leave pre-loaded into their bank.


Pay-out upon Separation. Upon separation, some or all of an emp|oyee’s accrued
but unused paid time off balance(s) may be paid out based on criteria approved by
the City Manager in the Personnel Administration Manual.


Paid Family Leave. The Washington State Family and Medical Leave Program
(RCW 5OA.O4) provides paid benefits for employees who need to take unpaid
leave when they welcome a new child into their family, are struck by a serious
illness or injury, need to take care of an illor ailing relative and for certain military
connected events. Although self-insurance is an option to fund benefits, the City is
choosing to participate in the program administered by the Employment Security
Department using the statutory default payroll deductions beginning January 1,
2018. Benefits from this program become effective January 1, 2020, and
employees seeking to apply for paid family and medical leave will apply through
the Employment Security Department.


Bereavement Leave. Employees may request bereavement leave for up to three
regularly scheduled work days or shifts upon the death of a member of the
employees family. In the event the employee needs to travel out of state to attend
a funeral or make other arrangements related to theirfamily member’s death, leave
may be allowed up to five days.


Up to one day or shift of leave may be allowed to attend services related to the
death of a co-worker.


7.0 BENEFITS:


7.1 Eligibility for Benefits. Benefits eligibility is determined by an emp|oyee’s
employment status. All regular ful|—time and regular part-time employees are


6


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 190 of 238







7.2


7.3


7.4


eligible for healthcare benefits coverage for themselves and for their eligible
dependents. Casual and Temporary employees are not benefits eligible.


Section 125 Plan. The City of MillCreek maintains a Section 125 plan that allows
for any premium payments made in accordance with that plan to be made on a
pre-tax basis. The City Manager is authorized to update health plan and elective
options to ensure compliance with the Section 125 Plan, and to update the Plan
when necessary.


Flexible Benefit Dollars. The City sponsors a program designed to share bene?t
cost savings with eligible employees. Employees hired on or before August 15*,
2017 who decline health insurance coverage through City sponsored health plans
for themselves and/or their eligible dependents may receive a credit of 50% of the
amount that the City would have contributed towards the coverage. To be eligible,
employees must provide evidence of alternative coverage. These “flexible bene?t
dollars” may only be used for purposes defined in the City's Section 125 Plan
document and Personnel Administration Manual. The “flexible bene?t dollars” may
not be taken as cash.


Health Insurance. The City provides medical, dental, and vision insurance
coverage options for benefits eligible employees and their dependents.


7.4.1 Medical Premiums. Insurance premiums for medical insurance (ifan eligible
employee selects medical coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are shared between the employee and the City based on the
employee's FTE status as shown in the chart below:


7.4.2 Dental Premiums. Insurance premiums for dental insurance (if an eligible
employee selects dental coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are shared between the employee and the City based on the
emp|oyee’s FTE status as shown in the chart below:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 191 of 238







7.5


7.6


7.7


7.8


7.4.3 Vision Premiums. insurance premiums for vision insurance (if an eligible
employee selects vision coverage) for employees and their eligible
dependents are paid for 100% by the City.


Health Savings Account. Employees enrolled in a High Deductible Health Plan
(HDHP) are also eligible to enroll in a Health Savings Account. The City sponsors
a program designed to share the cost savings of a HDHP with the employee. The
City willcontribute 50% of the cost savings between the HDHP and the City’s other
medical plan offering(s) to the enrolled employee’s Health Savings Account each
pay period. This cost savings may not be taken as cash or used for any other
purpose.


Life, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Long Term Disability, and Survivor.
The City provides Life, AD&D, LTD, and Survivor insurance to all regular full time
and regular part time employees at no cost to the employee, deducted from the
employer portion of MEBT (Social Security replacement) contributions.


Employee Assistance Program. The City provides an Employee Assistance
Program to all regular full time and regular part time employees at no cost to the
employee, deducted from the employer portion of MEBT (Social Security
replacement) contributions.


Optional Health, Wellness, and Retirement Plans. The City facilitates enrollment
in other optional health, wellness, and retirement plans (such as Flexible Spending
Accounts or AFLAC insurance) for benefits eligible employees. All voluntary plans
or accounts are funded entirely at the employee's own cost. Enrollment is
dependent on the eligibility requirements specified in the individual plan or
accounts documents.


8.0 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND


8.1


RECOGNlT|ON


Performance Management Prggram. The purpose of an effective performance
manaqement program is for employees to have a clear understanding of the work
expected from them, to receive ongoing feedback reqardinq how they are
performing relative to expectations, to identity development opportunities, and to
address performance that does not meet expectations. A comprehensive


performance management program empowers employees to have qreater input to
their personal career progression and will enable managers to provide more
meaninqful feedback based upon an aqreed set of performance criteria.


The City strives to provide an environment where all employaees understand the
impact their contributions have on the achievement of City goals and are provided
the opportunity for onqginq personal growth. To accomplish this objective, the City
will develop and maintain a strong_performance based review program that
culminates in an annual performance review of employees.


8


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 192 of 238







8.24


8.32


8.43


Wellness Program. The City maintains a Wellness Program to educate, promote,
and encourage health awareness and healthy lifestyle choices by City employees.
Participation in this program may earn the City discounts on the cost of health
benefits.


The City Council authorizes, through the biennial budget, the funds necessary to
allow the Wellness Committee to effectively operate and promote participation in
this program. Additionally, the City Council supports one “wellness day off’ per
employee per year if earned through program participation as defined in the
Personnel Administration Manual.


Employee and Volunteer Recoqnition. To promote employee and volunteer
engagement and to recognize employees and volunteers for their service,
significant achievements, and modeling the City's STAR Values, the City Council
authorizes funds for recognition through the biennial budget to be used in a manner
consistent with the Business Expense Policy; sections 8.11 and 8.12.


Tuition Reimbursement. To support employee growth and development, as well as
incentivize continued education that benefits the City, the City Council authorizes
tuition reimbursement for college courses up to $500 per year per employee as
described in the Personnel Administration Manual Chapter 6.8.


9.0 SAFETY


9.1


9.2


The intent ofthe City is to provide a safe working environment and keep injuries to
the absolute minimum, thus protecting its most valuable asset — its employees.
The City Council will support the City's Accident Prevention Program and the
operation ofa Safety Committee as described in WAC 296-80-130 and ensure that
adequate resources such as employee time, funds for safety equipment and
training, and commitment to the program from management are available.


The City Council shall authorize, through the approval of the biennial budget, at
least $10 per employee (per year) to be used for safety projects, activities, and
awards/prizes related to the City’s safety program.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Adoption of Personnel Policies (Laura Orlando, Director of Human Resourc... Page 193 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 194 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 195 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 196 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 197 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 198 of 238







AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 199 of 238







Robert S. Stowe 
City of Mill Creek 
November 26, 2018 
Page 1 


 


{SXM1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }  


 
 
 
 


Scott M. Missall 
 smissall@omwlaw.com 
VIA U.S. MAIL 
 
November 26, 2018 
 
Robert S. Stowe 
Interim City Manager 
City of Mill Creek 
15728 Main Street 
Mill Creek, WA 98012 
 
Re: Proposal for City Attorney Services 2019-2020   
 
Dear Bob: 
 
Thank you for engaging our firm to continue representing the City of Mill Creek as its City Attorney.  We 
have a long history of serving the City in that capacity, and are proud and pleased to continue performing 
this service.  We hold the City, its staff and its elected officials in the highest regard, and appreciate the 
opportunity to continue our professional relationship.   
 
Pursuant to our discussions, this proposal extends our services for the next two years – 2019 and 2020.  
There is no substantive change from our current contract, except that we have updated the rates for 
attorneys.      
 
 Terms of Engagement 
 
We think it is critical that we both share the same understanding of our attorney-client relationship.  As you 
know from our long personal association, I personally strive to represent the City to the highest standards, 
facilitate the City’s goals within the bounds of the law, and practice preventive law to minimize unnecessary 
legal expenses and distractions from the City’s public business.  Other aspects of our relationship and the 
scope of our work are described herein.   
 
I have enclosed the firm’s Standard Terms of Engagement, which describe more particularly our procedures 
and how we will serve the City.  This engagement letter and the Standard Terms of Engagement set forth 
our agreement with the City for the work we will perform.  Please review them and let me know if you have 
any questions.  If you agree to both documents, please sign the enclosed copy of this letter where indicated 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 200 of 238







Robert S. Stowe 
City of Mill Creek 
November 26, 2018 
Page 2 


 


{SXM1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }  


and return it to us.  Please let me know at any time if you have questions or comments regarding our 
relationship – we value the City as our client and want to ensure the City is receiving the services it expects.   
 Legal Team and Rates 
 
I will continue to serve as City Attorney.  The coverage team I have assembled for Mill Creek includes two 
talented attorneys.  My partner Athan Tramontanas will serve as Asst. City Attorney.  Athan has 20+ years 
of experience working with special purpose districts and municipalities, primarily in the areas of public 
works, construction law, and related contracts and litigation.  He has worked closely with Gina Hortillosa on 
numerous matters and recast most of the City’s public works contracts and forms over the last few years.  
Emily Miner is the principal associate working with me for municipal clients.  Emily can efficiently handle 
many municipal tasks and projects, particularly land use, development and permitting, Public Records Act 
issues, wireless issues, and municipal finance matters.   
 
In addition to this designated team, the firm has many other attorneys who are highly experienced in all 
phases of municipal law and litigation so that, whatever might happen, we can serve the City’s needs.  More 
information about our attorneys and practices can be found on the firm’s website, www.omwlaw.com.   
 
As we have always done, we will bill the City for our services using discounted hourly rates.1  We propose an 
approximate 3% rounded increase in the current rates to reflect the 3.1% CPI increase (August 2017 to 
August 2018) for the Seattle area.  Team members (who will be performing most of the City’s work) will be 
billed at the new discounted rates set forth below.  Other lawyers if needed will be billed at their firm 
discounted rate, which can range from $215 to $435.    
 


Scott Missall (City Attorney)     $335/hour  
Athan Tramontanas (Public Works and Contracts)  $330 
Emily Miner (Municipal Issues)     $230 


 
I will review the firm’s monthly statements before they are sent to ensure they are appropriate.  We will 
send them to you via U.S. mail and/or email unless you request otherwise.  Please let me know if you have 
questions or would like to discuss this.  If the foregoing is acceptable, the listed rates will be implemented 
January 1, 2019 for all subsequent work.  I will confer with you to discuss any future changes in these rates.    
 


Advance Fees and Costs  
 
Based on our longstanding relationship with the City, we are waiving our customary advance fee 
deposit.  In the event any specific matter (e.g., significant litigation) would arise for which advance fees 
or costs might be appropriate, I will discuss that with you in advance.  We charge for some costs and will 
include those on our invoices.     
 


                                            
1 For comparison, my current non-municipal rate is $440/hour.   
 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 201 of 238







Robert S. Stowe 
City of Mill Creek 
November 26, 2018 
Page 3 


 


{SXM1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }  


 Supervising Attorney and Assistance 
 
I will act as principal contact for the City and as supervising attorney for other attorneys in the firm.  I will be 
responsible for seeing that the City’s work is carried out in a timely, efficient and economical manner, and 
will be assisted by other attorneys and legal assistants in our office.  The usual individuals who act in that 
capacity are listed above, but Ogden Murphy is a large municipal firm and has attorneys with many and 
varied capabilities.    
 


Scope of Services 
 
With the help of my partners and associates, we will be the City’s Office of the City Attorney and attend to 
the City’s legal needs as they are assigned or requested, including attendance at Council and other City 
meetings, advising on the range of public law and municipal legal matters, handling day-to-day needs of the 
City, as well as administrative hearings and judicial litigation, etc.  We practice in accordance with the Rules 
of Professional Conduct for Washington lawyers, and will advise you if we discern a conflict in the course of 
our work for the City.   
 
We appreciate your expression of confidence in Ogden Murphy Wallace, P.L.L.C. and assure you that we will 
do our best to provide you and the City with high quality legal services.  If you have any questions or 
concerns during the course of our relationship, please contact me or our managing member, Don Black.  If 
you agree with the provisions of this engagement letter and the attached Terms and Conditions, please sign 
where indicated below and return to us.  We look forward to working with you. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE, P.L.L.C. 
 
  
Scott M. Missall, member  
 
SMM/lfs 
Enclosures 
 
 
 
THE CITY OF MILL CREEK HEREBY ACCEPTS AND AGREES TO the foregoing letter and the attached 
Standard Terms of Engagement this ______ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
City of Mill Creek 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 Robert S. Stowe  
 Interim City Manager 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 202 of 238







 


 
{DWB1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }


 OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE, P.L.L.C. 
 
 STANDARD TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT 
 
 
 General Rates 
 
The usual basis for determining our fees is the time expended by attorneys, paralegals and legal assistants 
of the firm.  The rates for our services may change from time to time without notice, usually in September.  
Our current rate schedule is always available upon request.  Whenever it is appropriate, we will use 
associate attorneys, law clerks or legal assistants in our office to keep your costs as low as possible. 
 
 Other Factors in Rates 
 
Although time expended and costs incurred are usually the sole basis for determining our fees, by mutual 
agreement billings to you for legal services may, in some instances, be based on a more comprehensive 
evaluation of the reasonable value of the firm's services.  The firm is committed to charging reasonable fees 
for its services.  In certain situations, factors other than the amount of time required will have a significant 
bearing on the reasonable value of the services performed.  Such factors include: the novelty and 
complexity of the questions involved; the skill required to provide proper legal representation; familiarity 
with the specific areas of law involved; the preclusion of other engagements caused by your work; the 
magnitude of the matter; the results achieved; customary fees for similar legal services; time limitations 
imposed by you or by circumstances; and the extent to which office forms and procedures have produced a 
high quality product efficiently.   
 
In circumstances where our fees will be based on or include factors other than our normal hourly charges 
and costs, we will notify you promptly and prior to proceeding.  Any basic document fee that we may 
charge in your business matters has been and will be set in light of these various factors. 
 
 Billing Fees and Costs 
 
We will bill you on a regular basis, normally each month, for all the time spent on your project and for other 
costs incurred relating to our work or on your behalf.  The activities for which our time will be billed will 
include:  conference time, whether in person or on the telephone; document preparation and revision; 
negotiations; correspondence; staff or attorney supervision; factual and legal research and analysis; travel 
on your behalf; and other matters directly pertinent to and related to your business and/or litigation 
matters handled by our firm.  Typical costs for which you may be billed would be:  filing fees; delivery fees; 
computer assisted legal research; copying; imaging; long distance telephone charges; charges of outside 
experts and consultants; and travel.   
 
 Payment; Interest 
 
You agree to make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of our monthly statement.  Outstanding 
balances that are not paid when due will accrue interest at the rate of one percent compounded monthly 
from the date of invoice until paid. 
 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 203 of 238







 


 
{DWB1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }


 Advance Fee Deposit 
 
New clients are usually requested to provide an advance fee deposit to the firm.  The advance fee deposit is 
placed in a trust account as described below, and fees and expenses for legal services are then charged 
against the account.  Paying an advance fee deposit does not relieve the client's obligation to pay monthly 
invoices.  If an invoice remains unpaid after ten (10) days, the firm reserves the right to apply the advance 
fee deposit to the unpaid balance and require an additional advance fee deposit before commencing 
further work.  At the conclusion of our legal representation or at such time as the deposit is unnecessary, 
the remaining balance or an appropriate part of it will be returned to you. 
 
 Trust Deposits 
 
All trust deposits from you will be held in a client trust account.  By court rule in Washington, funds 
deposited to a trust account are subject to IOLTA (Interest on Lawyers Trust Account) participation in a 
pooled trust account.  The exception is when the deposit is large enough to earn interest in excess of bank 
and administrative costs, and you request that it be held in a separate account, in which case the interest 
earned will be added to the deposit for your benefit and will be taxable income to you.  IOLTA funds are 
used to support law-related charitable and educational activities. 
 
 Termination 
 
You may terminate our representation at any time, with or without cause, by notifying us.  Upon such 
action, all fees and expenses incurred before the termination are due to the firm.  If such termination 
occurs, your original papers will be returned to you promptly upon receipt of payment for outstanding fees 
and costs.  If you wish to have a paper or electronic copy of your file at the conclusion of our representation, 
we will provide it to you at the current copy rate per page then in effect at this firm.   
 
 Estimates 
 
You may, from time to time, ask us for estimates of our fees and expenses either in whole or in part.  We 
are hesitant to give estimates because of their potential inaccuracy.  However, if you require it, and if we do 
provide you with such estimates, they will be based upon our professional judgment, but always with a 
clear understanding that it is not a maximum or fixed fee quotation.  We cannot guarantee that the actual 
fees and expenses will be at or below the estimates because of factors outside the control of the firm. 
 


 Confidentiality and Electronic Communications 
 


We owe a duty of confidentiality to all of our clients.  Accordingly, you acknowledge that we will not be 
required to disclose to you, or to use on your behalf, any information in our possession with respect to 
which we owe a duty of confidentiality to another current or former client.  As part of our work for you, 
we may transmit information by email, cellular telephones, voice over Internet and electronic 
data/document web sites and other means of electronic communication.  If you need to have any 
information relating to our work for you encrypted prior to transmission, let us know prior to any 
electronic communications.  In the absence of a specific request for encryption, we do not regularly 
encrypt our communications.  By agreeing to engage us as your attorneys, you consent to the use of 
these communication methods. 


 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 204 of 238







 


 
{DWB1748900.DOC;3/05739.000004/ }


Dispute Resolution 
 


If you disagree with the amount of our fee, please take up the question with your principal attorney 
contact or with the firm's managing member.  Typically such disagreements are resolved to the 
satisfaction of both sides with little inconvenience or formality.  Any disputes relating to these Standard 
Terms of Engagement or the accompanying engagement letter (collectively this "agreement") or the 
amount of legal fees related thereto, will be submitted to arbitration through the American Arbitration 
Association (the “AAA”) in Seattle, Washington, according to its then-effective rules, and Ogden Murphy 
Wallace, P.L.L.C. and you agree to be bound by the results of such arbitration.  Please be aware that by 
agreeing to arbitration, you are waiving the right to a trial by jury and your right to appeal, that the 
arbitrator will be bound by the AAA rules and not by state or federal law, and that discovery will be 
limited to what is allowed under the AAA rules.  Arbitration fees and expenses shall be borne equally by 
the parties. In the event of non-payment such that we have to pursue collection of your account, you 
agree to pay the costs of collecting the debt, including court costs and fees, and a reasonable attorney's 
fee.  
 
 Withdrawal 
 
We reserve the right to withdraw from representing you if, for any reason, our fees are not timely paid in 
accordance with this agreement, or for any other appropriate reason, as determined by the firm in 
accordance with applicable law and the Rules of Professional Conduct. 
 
 Disclaimer 
 
You acknowledge that we have made no guarantees regarding the disposition, outcome, or results of your 
legal or business matters, and all expressions we have made relevant thereto are only our opinions as 
lawyers based upon the information available to us at the time.  Our beginning work on your behalf will 
constitute your acceptance of this agreement unless we receive a written objection from you within ten (10) 
days of the date of the accompanying engagement letter. 
 


Independent Advice 
 


Since the Engagement Agreement is legally binding and affects your legal rights, you may wish to seek the 
advice of independent counsel prior to executing it. 
 
 Conclusion 
 
Thank you for retaining our firm.  We look forward to working with you. 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


Agreement for Professional Legal Services (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manag... Page 205 of 238







)
cny or /-:3:/__ _


Agenda Item 15%
WA 5 H I N G T O N Meeting Date: December 11, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: STUDY SESSION: HISTORICAL PRESERVATION PROJECT


PROPOSED MOTION:


No action required. Information provided for Council review and discussion.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


Earlier this year, the Art and Beauti?cation Board began discussing art projects to enhance the
City’s culture. One idea was to develop an artistic timeline of the City’s history, with the ?nal
product to include a mix oftext and images. A panel concept would allow for other panels to be
added as the City’s story continues to unfold. This project would serve a dual purpose of
providing artistic value while educating the public about Mill Creek’s history.


In July 2018, Snohomish County Councilmember Terry Ryan contacted the City about potential
funding available for a historical preservation project. Staff worked with Art and Beauti?cation
Board to ensure the timeline project was one they would like to pursue; it received unanimous
support. The City applied for and received a $12,500 grant from the Snohomish County Historic
Preservation Commission Community Heritage Program. The funds are designated for work in
2018, including reimbursement of costs for a designer (Christopher Baldwin Design), a project


intern to research and compile information (Melissa Duque), and staff time to direct / administer
the project. The outcome ofthe project in 2018 is the design ofthe historical panels.


The initial concept was to create set of vertical panels, including a founding history panel and an


additional panel for each decade ofMill Creel<’shistory. However, as the project progressed, the
vision became more of telling a story about the City versus identifying hard dates and events by
decade. The Art and Beauti?cation Board’s vision is for the panels to hang within the frame of
the bridge in Mill Creek Town Center, just north of 153'“Street.


The City promoted the project on social media, in the November issue of City Connection, and
through focus groups and stakeholder meetings. Information was gathered from several sources:


Sno—IsleLibraries, newspaper clippings and the intemet; outreach to the Garhart family, Tulalip
Tribes, and Mill Creek Community Association; review ofCity documents; and first-person
conversations with a number of residents who have historical knowledge of Mill Creek.


Through regular and special Art and Beauti?cation Board meetings from August through
November, the Board has carefully considered content and images to include in the panels. The
panels will be presented at the December 11 Council meeting.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 206 of 238







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


Next Steps
Building on the work this fall, the Art and Beauti?cation Board will continue the historical
preservation project in the next biennium.


The work includes:
0 Soliciting community feedback on the information included in the panels;
0 Finalizing design;
- Securing funding assistance for production of the panels;
0 Production and installation of the panels; and
0 Developing a website to complement and expand upon the information in the panels.


Funding for Production of the Panels
This project is included within the 2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan, with the Municipal
Arts Fund identified as one of the funding sources. However, in alignment with the City’s fiscal
responsibility goal, altemative funding will be sought for the project. The Garhart family, which
originally acquired the land that is now Mill Creek, previously reached out to the City about
partnering on such a project. It appears there is some funding that may be available to help with
such a project. Other civic organizations, including the Mill Creek Women’s Club, the Rotary,
the Lions and the Kiwanis, have expressed interest in helping fund a project like this in exchange
for having their logo on the ?nished work.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:
N/A


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: Historical Preservation Project Panels
- Attachment B: Project Location and Size Mockup


nterim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 207 of 238







as THE HISTORY or MILL CREEK -»k l
)


L‘LI VI
l;


r Indigenous tribes are the l
1 ‘ earliest known inhabitants of ‘i


'


_ present-day Snohomish _,‘
County and modern-day Mill
Creek.In 1855 underthe
Treaty of Point Elliott, local
tribes relocated to TulalipBay
and formed the TulalipTribes.


-' .-if E.—..,— .. _. .;;:L-. or. _‘ ;: . . .


During the late 19th century, early
homesteaders settled in what is now the Mill
Creek area and began farming. One ofthe


‘


earliest homesteaders includes an ancestorof


H"Microsoftfounder BillGates.


WHAT USED TO BE c_,y -. .


HERE ;
-


W‘
-.'~53-_:'%‘


'


'


LAKE DELL FARM
From I931 lo law, the Garhzrt rarnilycultivated Lake Dell


Falm and learned newto live off the land. Originally H
acres, the iarrn raised livestock and grew a variety or


vegetables and lruit. Bymel96£Is. Lake DellFarm had
grown to 900 a<rns.Thisrand eventually became ilre heart
oi MillCreek. A plague on rile northeast edrner oi ream


Street and Bothell-EverettHwy. behind Ill: brick Mill
Creek Community /issdeiaxidn sign. honors Ute patrlarchs


or[he lamily:


.‘ cums.. There were cabins and larmhouses lnrougnoul lire
area. including an: al what is now the BI?! [cc of ‘


—


'


in. MillCreek Country Clubgollzollrse.
g


'5 :4‘lg..
l


DYNAMITE PLANT
Residents in the mid-19005 would get dynamite la


clear land rlearthe current rite dime Millcreek
Library.


GENERAL STORE
A general store sat atvnnlermutes corner. now [he


intersection 0' 164th Street and SR527.


DAIRY FARM
Fam'I|ieslr1ltlel93Ds purchased dairy prddum from


the Vndder’sraniily DairyFarm close to where
Central Market is located.


WETERWAYS
“Wee rnain waterwayx in meCily include Penny
Creek.Norlh Creek and [under this very bridge) l


MillCreek.


Ir


IMPORTANT DATES


1861 - Snohomish County established
I862 -The Homestead Act enacted


1889 -Washington became the 42"‘ state


1937 - SR527 established as a state road


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 208 of 238







FromFarms to a PLANNED
COMMUNITY


Bythe 19605,the Garhart familywas ready to
sellLake DellFarm. Due to the farm's
signi?cant size, developers showed interest in
building a planned community.The land was
sold to Seattle developer ElmerKerns. Initial
plans included a residentialcommunity with
three golf courses. The project also had
various names including Olympus and
Klahanie(a Chinookjargon term for outside
or outdoors),


In 1972, theTokyu LandDevelopment
Corporation bought the land and the
Japanese United Development Corporation
(UDC) took over the planning.They gave the
community the name MillCreek UDC
developed 1,073 acres of thick forest into a
golf course and 4,600 large homes, along
with multiple parksand trails. In 1974, UDC


.'~—
MILL CREEK COUNRTY ;


l


C LUB
E _


Thisexquisite <|ub featured a lush golfcourse designed by 7
renowned course anhilecl red Robinson.lniiialadvertisements ;.___,


llxused an mesocialenvironment ol the :Jub.The laciliiies
conlinueto be popular (or weddings and events.


formed the MillCreek Community
Association (MCCA).


FIRST RESIDENTS
MCCAattracted people In its upscaleneighborhoods.


largehomesand paisnne lanaseapes ltwas known as a
bedroom community for residents commuting In work
eithev north to Evevenarsaulhlcl Seattle or Eellevue.


J MAN
Duringme19705 and W805.
Donald Farber, mehead or


grounds maintenance for Mccll.
created dlalnsaw carvings al owls
lommse in mecommunity and


surrounding areas Some owls can
slillbe found iluauglioui Mill


Creekincluding in from urine Mill
CreekUbrary.


CELEBRATING NATURE
MillCreek's robust ecosystem has attracted a variety olw?dlilexo emdy


grass lands and wetlands, induding a bultalo herd,beave1si bladr seals
and belxais Numeroustrails and parks were built as a Community asset


I0 highlight meregion's naturalbeauty.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 209 of 238







we -—_
v_


t . ...i_.¢.—-,-_—~ara-2. .
.._... e_. ._ — —-17‘ .-znt=*z4g—-.-


-——-" THE HISTORY OE‘ MILL CREE


TWDECISIO
As MCCAcontinued to grow, residents realizedthere was E
a need for expanded services in regards to safety and a
more equitable tax structure. AroundPuget Sound,
similarcommunities were annexed by neighboring cities.
MCCAresidents felt there was an opportunity to retain
the uniqueness of their community through
incorporation as a city.


I{ o»——


THE VOTE
On $epL 20.1983, 453 Snohamish


residents vcted to incorporate MinCreek.
with 324 voting against. At the time.Mill


Creekconsisted of H60 azres (2 sq. miles).


MillCreek decides
_


_it’stime to become f
it fgll-?edgedcity


9 'gu7'1'nFC:‘mtit_
ANNEXATION
By2019. the City had annexed I 7
neighboring arns furatulal or _


2,994 acres (4.55 sq. miles) and a /


population ormore than moan.


4 tr,


vn-C in «IA: -gum bur-nu
. n-my.-.» Ivnud


up \IN luv—l


FIRST SERVICES
the inejerityorcitysewites lnlliallywereccnlratted


except rot the police roite.


COUNCIL-MANAGER FORM
OF GOVERNMENT


The CityCaundl zansisls orseven councilmembers elected at large to


rouiayeai lerms. Every two years, the Councilelects a Mayor and 3


MayorProTem ham its members. The countii appoints a city Manager
to serve as the City‘: Chief Exetutne oiiitei.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 210 of 238







7."~ ’.e
A


F .\ ,,._,,.g. ,e_ —~4&,«":.'_~r__ . .-Y’


1' e‘ '1"HE HISTORY OF MILL CREEK "4


l A Pl6lC€Called LI
ll r.
l. Following incorporation, MillCreek I


‘ came of age as schools, shopping
‘


', areas and a librarywere added to
' the community. With input from ._
‘ the residents in 1992.the Cityof


" MillCreek designated a new
Ll18-acre, mixed-usecenter as the
,1 MillCreekTown Center.The
l. award-winning Town Center design
ll focused on being a pedestrian


r friendly area to encourage


J shopping and gathering.
Development started in 2002.The
?rst building, ParkPlaceCenter.
opened in 2004, followed soon
after by other restaurants and
retailers.


TI-IINKIN G BIG
Themy assembled a sleeving eornrnrueemd aslrera


members In idenlily{he vision for MIIICreekTawn Cenltr.
Architect skeichesfrom the vlslonlng eveni depicted
lzmllles walking,slltlng. playlng and dining logelhef.


12:’ :.~=-r,- :... .-


‘.
HENRY M. IACKSON, HIGH SCHOOL


NamedIflerHeriryM.'Scocp'Jac|<son,<hel:leU.S.Semmr
y lrom Everemlhehigh schoolIS pan ofEveren srnppi


G nisuiei. Byzais. Ihe student body surged to uoo.
‘ r


q A“*‘““ """ ‘ ' " M"


r: 11 FIELD OF OUR


h OWN
The CiIy‘s was Comprehensive Plan designated a pull along me
SR 527corridor. The City purdlased five acres rorsuch a pzlk in


February 2aa2.1'ne MillCreekSports Park design includes a
iiexiue ?eld Iayoulto unie League baseball, soflballInd yourn


saeeenine puk opened March 5. mm.


MILL CREEK TOWN CENTER
nreMiiiCreekTown cenrerdesign Iepresenls .sharp aeparrureirarn


(onvenllorul shnpplnq reruerdesign. Fulults Includeshoprllnedsueers, aerrees
overlooking public plans, 2 pedeslrlan-orientedslreuscape and a unique
toxmopolitandiaratlenllalsolncludc-1 severaleonseruaiinn rensernents


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 211 of 238







COMMUNITY
BeyondOur Boundaries


986
MillCreek's in?uence extends beyond City
limitsas the Seattle metro area rapidly expands.
MillCreek's diverse community comprises
residents and nearby neighbors who come to
shop, dine and enjoy activities in the City.This
includes holiday celebrations, summer art
walks, parades and festivals, garden tours,
summer concerts and recreational programs.


People also enjoy the City's numerous parks and
trails,which underscores MillCreek as an active.
interactive and pet—friendlycommunity.


MILL CREEK FESTIVAL
Millcreett Fstival begin and soon became a tcnterpiece


community event it draws many visitors iromwrvoundirtg
areas to enjoy entertainment, food, Irls and cnfls booths.


and a cniiateri: activity area.


A VIBRANT BUSINESS
COMMUNITY


ntc Mrllcreek Bu?nesx Axmoaiiavl launched in 1997 to connect meCiryk
bllslnds community. In mi 9, it transitioned to tire Millcreek Chambevol


cornrnercewait an added roctricl lndudlng businessesnirmundlng the city.


RUN OF THE MILL
Vl?lhils iruugural race In I986, tne Run0! the Null


iaecamc a tornmunlly tizdillnn. Hundreds oi raters make
lhe trek tirrougitthe heart oi MillCreekanti aiong the


North creek Tull.


HOOPS
Hundreds is!children from kindergarten Ihrwgh


eighth grade participate in the annualvoutn
iiasitettraiiLeague.The city program Inches tnc


fundamentalsorbasketbzllwiiiicnciraingklds have
runznd ticyciopteamwork sk?l;


SBLUTING OUR VETERANS
Millcrccit honus veteririsloi Ihtli x?vke. in mm.the (ity builta vetetrrrs
Monument or utxary Pzik.where torrtrrtemotatnre ceremonies take place on
Memorialoaryand Veterans nay,Community parades celebrate their aenicc


AMVEYSP0“ ]ClIa.!o1rnedln Mill(neck in 2ClI8,l$ (he onyyAMVETSpox! nail?!
oiraconta in Western Wishlnglotl.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Historical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications &... Page 212 of 238







Z
O


.H
U


Z
_T


_m
<


>
)


vH
®


m
uU SE


2
m


_om
\o<


O
_


V
7»


>
335


»2m
_>


_w
u/in


Z
0_m


m
_o<


zo_m
m


>
_+


<
.E


w
_am


w
+


z_
:_<


U
_.n_O


.rxU
;_I


xw
w


m
u


17:2
n_O


>
:o


m
._:uu:.zm


m
.c:_


_uw
_u_u<


m
._:uu:.:m


m
¢:_


\
u%


u<


/


m
w


<
zo_m


m
>


_+
<


w
.uE


am
m


+
z_


vm
w


m
u j__>


_no
>


:o


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #J.


H
istorical Preservation Project (Joni Kirk, D


irector of C
om


m
unications &...


Page 213 of 238







)
Agenda Item #L


W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: December 11, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: CITY COUNCIL APPOINTMENT PROCESS


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


Mill Creek City Council Position No.2 is anticipated to be vacated with the future resignation of
Councilmember Jared Mead. In preparation for such a vacancy, attached are the recruitment
materials that were used during the most recent Council appointment process. Dates have been
changed to re?ect the current situation and may be modi?ed further based on Council discussion.
Additionally, attached is the interview process that was used previously for Council
consideration.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


City Council direction regarding the anticipated Council candidate recruitment and interview
process.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 City Council Candidate Recruitment Brochure
0 City Council Candidate Interview Process


/
bertS. St/owe


Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 214 of 238







CITY COUNCIL INTERVIEW PROCESS


1. Applicants will be interviewed in alphabeticalorder. The City Council respectfully
requests that all applicants remain outside the council chambers until each applicant is
called for his/her specific interview. After completion of their interview,applicants are
invited to attend the remainder of the public meeting.


2. The initial interview round will be 10 minutes per applicant, including the applicant’s
opening statement.


a. Each applicant will be given 2 minutes to make an opening statement. Only the
applicant may speak on his or her behalf. The Acting City Clerk shall alert the
Council when 2 minutes has expired.


b. After the applicant’sopening statement, the Council will interview the applicant.
The Acting City Clerk shall alert the Council when 10 minutes has expired.
Due to the number of applicants, the 10 minute interview time frame will be
strictly enforced.


P-.0


3. After completion of applicant interviews, pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council
shall adjourn to the Council’s Executive Session Chambers to discuss the quali?cations
of the candidates.


The following process is proposed to be utilized by the Council for the selection of
applicants to advance to the finalist round:


1. After executive session, the Council shall reconvene to regular session and nominate
applicants to advance to the finalist round.


a. Any member of the Council may nominate any candidate(s) to progress to the
?nalist round.


b. Nominations shall require a second to place the nominee in contention for
selection as a finalist.


c. A simple majority vote of the council will move the nominated candidate to
finalist status.


2. After selection of ?nalists, the Council shall determine whether it wishes to hold an
additional round of interviews on a separate date.


3. If the Council does not feel an additional round of interviews is necessary, the Council
shall proceed with nominating ?nalists for appointment to the Mill Creek City Council.


The following process is proposed to be utilized by the Council for appointment of a finalist
to City Council Position No. 2.


1. Any member of the City Council may nominate any f1nalist(s) for appointment to City
Council Position No. 1.


2. Nominations shall require a second to place the nominee in contention for selection.


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 215 of 238







10.


11.


At the close of nominations, the Acting City Clerk shall place the names of all nominated
candidates on a written ballot, shall designate the ballot as “Ballot #1, and shall distribute
the ballot to each Councilmember.


The Council shallvote on the written ballot provided by the Acting City Clerk with each
Councilmember casting one (1) vote for the candidate of his/her choosing (or writing
“abstain” on the ballot).


The ballot shall be signed by the Councilmembercasting the vote and all ballots shall be
collected by the Acting City Clerk and tabulated. The City Manager shall witness the
tabulation. '


The City Manager shall armounce the names of each nominee,the number of votes
received, and the Councilmembers voting for that nominee.


If no nominee obtains at least four votes of the Council, the nominee(s) receiving the
lowest number of votes shall be removed from the ballot, provided that at least two
nominees shall move forward to the next ballot.


The Acting City Clerk shall prepare the next ballot, which shall contain the names of the
remaining nomineesand shall be designated as “Ballot #2.” The Council shall vote on
that ballot in the manner provided above.


Ballot preparation and voting shall continue in the above manner until one nominee
receives at least four votes of the Council.


All ballots from all rounds shall be retained by the Acting City Clerk as part of the record
and shall be available for public inspectionat the close of the meeting.


The success?ll nominee shall be sworn in by the City Manager.


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 216 of 238







l'||lll
__r


':
E


Creek
WASHINGTON


AcceptingAp licationsfor
Mill Creek City Council Position #2


’'‘'g''‘ T/IL’City ofMill Creek is nccepting lch‘crsof
iiztu/vstfroiizpersons de5ii'1'i1gmi rzppniiztiiieni
tofilln vnczzizcy on the Mill Creek City Council
(Posiiimz #2).


About the City Council
The City operates within the Council-Manager form
of government. The Councilconsists of seven Council
members elected at large to four-year terms. Every two
years, the City Councilelects a Mayor and Mayor Pro
Tem from its members. The Mayor serves as the chair
of the Council.


The Council appoints a City Manager to carry out
the legislative policies the Councildevelops. The City
Manager is the Chief Executive Of?cer of the City.


The City Councilenacts laws and establishes policies
through the adoption of ordinances and resolutions,
and develops strategies and objectives designed in
the City's mission. Through its legislative actions, the
Councilestablishes priorities for the City Manager and
staff.


The Council meets on the ?rst, second and fourth
Tuesday of each month at 6 p.m. in the Council
Chambers at MillCreek City HallSouth, located at
15728 Main St.


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 217 of 238







Mill Creek City Council Position #2


Term of Appointment 0 EducationalBackground


This appointment shall be for a term commencing on 0 Years Lived in Cm’
the date of appointment until certi?cation of the next 0 Whether applicant is a registered voter
election in November 2019. in the city of Mmcreek


_ _ _ o Statement of interest addressing the
Minimum Requirements following:
To be considered, applicants must meet the following |:| summarize your invoivementwith
mlmmum requirements: this or previous communities. Include


activities on City boards, with Qty
events, local community groups, civic
organizations, youth organizations, etc.


0 The applicant must have been a resident of the
City of MillCreek for at least one year immediately
prior to the time of application (RCW35A.13.020;


355 39 _ . . .RCW 12 0 ) El What do you like most about living
in the City of MillCreek?- The applicant must be registered to vote within the


City of MillCreek at the time of application (BCW
35A 13 020. RQW35A12 gig)


I] Why are you interested in being
L’ ' ' '


appointed to the City Council?


Appllcatlon Matenals - Written responses to the following supplemental
Eachapplicant must submit the following to be q“e5t‘°“5-


considered:
_ _ o The City of MillCreek operates under


- A signed letter of interest that sets forth: a counC”_Manager form of government
0 Name In this form of government, the role of a


0 Address councilmemberis to provide policydirection,
establish goals and priorities, determine


° phone (home! Work and mobileas spending parameters through the biennial
applicable) budget process and provide governance


0 p|aCe of Employment oversight. What backgroundor experience
do you feel you would bring to the City


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 218 of 238







..,,
Council that would make you a good City
Councilmember?


o How wouldyou describe your
communication and working style?


0 How would your communication and
working style enhance and foster a positive
and collaborativeworking relationship among
the Counciland between the Council and the
City Manager?


0 Please review the Guiding Principleson page
4 and describe:


El How, as a member of the City
Council,wouldyou provide leadership
and/ormodel the STAR values as set
forth in the Guiding Principles?


El What ideas do you have that would
help the City achieve the goals set forth
in the Guiding Principles?


El Whether you would seek to change/
add/removeany goals to the Guiding
Principles? Why or Why not?


0 Do you feel you have suf?cient time
available to: attend Council meetings,
retreats, regular meetings with the City
Manager and review written materials
provided to Councilmembers in order to
adequately prepare for such meetings?


Compensation and Bene?ts


Councilmembers receive a monthly stipend of $500 for
their service.


The City has a Social Security Replacement Plan
(the MunicipalEmployees Bene?ts Trust), which
means employees of the City of MillCreek, including
Councilmembers,do not contribute to or earn Social
Security credit whileemployed with the City.


Application Process


Applicantsmust submit their complete application
to the City Manager of the City of MillCreek at Mill
Creek City HallSouth, 15728 Main Street, MillCreek,
WA98012 or at citymanager@cigofmi||creek.com.
Application materials must be mm
g Faxes and postmarks
willnot be accepted. Applicants are responsible for
verifying the City has received applications submitted
by electronic mail.


The MillCreek City Councilwillbegin interviewing
applicants at approximately 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
February 5, 2019. Depending on the number of
applicants, additional interviews may be conducted.


Questionsregarding the application process should
be submitted in writing or via electronic mail to the
City Manager at MillCreek City HallSouth, 15728
Main Street, MillCreek, WA 98012 or at cigmanager@
cityofmil creek.com. Only written questions willbe
accepted. Questionsand responses willbe posted on
the City's website for the bene?t of all applicants.


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 219 of 238







City of Mill Creek


Guiding Principles
VISION


MillCreek will be a City where everyone works
together to foster an exceptional community
experience -- a place where people are safe,


the natural beauty is preserved, neighborhoods
?ourish, businesses thrive and recreational


opportunities abound.


STAR VALUES


Service
Through continuous improvement,
innovation, creativity, professional
competence and hard work,
we enthusiastically provide
outstanding service to all
customers, internal and external.


Teamwork
In order to support our shared
goals and successes, we teach,
learn from, collaborateand
cooperate with others, whilebeing
?exible,adaptable and inclusive.


Accountability
We are responsible for our
actions and decisions, and
always portray honesty, integrity,
transparency and leadership in
our contributions.


Respect
We take pride in our work and
accomplishments, and in the work
and accomplishments of others.
We support an environment that
honors the value and dignity of
all individuals.


Fiscal Responsibility
To responsibly manage the City's
?nancial resources to provide
quality public services, cultivate
economic prosperity, and
maintain a sustainable budget.


Community Preservation
To support the development,
maintenance and revitalization
of public and private property to
ensure the continuation of Mill
Creek as a safe, clean and well-
maintained community.


Civic Pride
To achieve strong community
spirit by promoting active civic
participation, public-private
partnerships and transparency in
government.


Customer Service
To provide excellent service to
all who interact with the City by
recruiting, training and retaining
a skilled,innovative and dynamic
workforce.


Recreational Opportunities
To facilitate diverse recreational
opportunities for people of all
ages.


MISSION
MillCreek's mission is to set the standard of


excellence for local government. Through dynamic
and innovative strategies, we provide outstanding
public services in a ?scally responsible manner to


promote a safe, active and vibrant City.


Public Safety
To protect the life,health and
property of residents,visitors
and businesses through the
delivery of community focused
public safety services.


Economic Prosperity
To engage in proactive
economic development efforts
that result in a robust local
economy and position the City
as a destination of choice.


Leadership
To in?uence regional, state
and national matters impacting
our community through the
engagement of staff and
elected of?cials.


Long Term Planning
To maintain the City's special
community character by
carefully evaluating future
opportunities for short and
long term bene?ts in order to
protect land use, infrastructure,
economic development and
service delivery standards.


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Appointment Process (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 220 of 238







I‘.
M111Cree


W A S H I N G T O N
Date: December 11. 2018


A/P Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
11/15/2018 ACH—Union76 F1eet—Oct $5,682.70
11/26/2018 ACH Debit-Dept of Rev-Sales Tax $2,042.51
11/28/2018 59481-59544 $1,024,998.49
11/30/2018 59545-59548 $16,304.28


Total $1,049,027.98


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation
59516 Wrong Vendor


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of check
numbers 5948] through 59548, and ACH’s in the amount of$1.049.027.98.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


F \DATA\EXEC'UT[VE\WP\FORMS\F[N\Vcuuch:r AppmVa[1.d0C


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 221 of 238







RptBatchSumVicwForm Page 1 of ‘t
2,;


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 11/14/2018


City of Mill Creek Report Time: 06:46:10 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: -’
ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: 76


Batch Status: Released Created By: SANKOTTKE


Released By: SANKOTTKE


Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account # E Trace #_ __ . ___ ___ T 95
__


0201-00«


NK 1059153
C 071000288 4539508 C


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $5,682.70 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $5,682.70 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo—ach.bankofamerica.corn/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?source=BATCHSU... 11/14/2018


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 222 of 238







My DOR Page 1 ofl


Business Licensing and Taxes << My DOR Services


Return Payment /e\c<>me, Sandra Kcltke SBWHQS Help Log Out


Home Return Payment lor $2,042.51 Oct-31-2018 Return Payment


J Return Payment 1;) Applies To gg History


CITY OF M\LL CREEK Oct-31-2013 ource —son-593-011


EXCISETax
Posted : Nov-26-2018


soc-593-011 Received —
Oct-31-2015


$2.o42.51


Contact Us View Support ID D<~W*d W


SecureAccess
Washington...


Access omerS|ale Agencles


Vcuu Fuvacy 1Access Agmcmcnl


1: 2019 Washmglon sme Dapanmem al Revenue
an ax hcenxors
All mm:reserved


Working together to fund Wash/ngton’s future


https ://secure.dor.wa. gov/atlaseservices/wtp/j 12/6/2018


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 223 of 238







Accounts Payable
Checks by Date — Detail by Check Date


User: Jodicg
Printed: 12/6/2018 1:22 PM CITY. wk


W A S H 1N G T O N


Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


59481 SEADAIJ Daily Journal ofCommeree 11/28/2018


3341929 BC: Sports Park lmprovements 10/29 & 11/()5 292.00


Total for Check Number 59481: 0.00 292.00


59482 ADPLLC ADP, LLC 11/28/2018
52474823] ADP Payroll S€f\'1CC§-HCM Suite 11.12 770.45


525159548 Payroll Processing Cligs-Workforce Now 11/15 411.45


Total for Check Number 59482: 0.00 1,181.90


59483 Allwest Allwest Underground, Inc 11/28/2018


79311 Multi-Pro O2 Sensor 369.51


Total for Cheek Number 59483: 0.00 369.51


59484 SCCFOA Snoltomish County Clerks And Finance 011 11/28/2018
SCCFOA Luncheon SCCFOA Holiday Luncheon 12/13-P Laucrman 94.00


Total for Check Number 59484: 000 94.00


59485 ASCE ASCE Seattle Section 11/28/2018
0170 Ad for Supervising Engineer-One Mon11t.1o1>Po. 75.00


Total for Check Number 59485: 0.00 75.00


59486 BANKCR16 Bank ofAmeriea 11/28/2018


1 Mill Creek Rotary Mtg 10/l0—TRogers 17.00


2 Parking 10/11-PAC Mtg T Rogers 6.00


3 Mill Creek Rotary Mtg 10/17—TRogers 17.00


4 Notary License. Bond.Insurance, Notary Statnp- 202.00


5 Mill Creek Rotary 1\ltg 1024-T Rogers 17.00


5:: Mill Creek Rotary Mtg 10/24-.1Buse1t 17.00


6 Subscription Renewal Landscape Architecture M 59.00


Total for Check Number 59480: 0.00 335.00


59487 bearx pa 13earX Painting 11/28/2018


112218.l Rcpaint 2 Spun Court S1gns~MCSP—\'3in<1a1isrn 1,300.00


Total for Check Number 59487: 0.01) 1,300.00


59488 BENEAD Benefit Administration Co, LLC 11/28/2018


1811514 Section 125 Flexible Bene?ts Plan-Nov 113.10


Total for Check Number 59488‘ 0.00 113,10


59489 BLUEBEAM Bluebeam Software Inc 11/28/2018
1207648 10-Bluobeam: Standard Annual Maintenance R01 1,092.96


Total for Check Number 59489‘ 0.00 1.09296


AP Checks by Dale - Detail by Check Date (12/6/2018 1:22 PM) Page 1


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 224 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


59490 BRUCEDEE Bruce Dees & Associates LLC 11/28/2018


6129 Consulting Services-MCSPTurf & Lighting-Oct 11,890.42


Total for Check Number 59490: 0.00 11,890.42


59491 BUILDEX Builders Exchange of Washington lnc 11/28/2018
1060402 PublishProjects Online-Mill Creek Sports Park 1 6| .50


Total for Check Number 59491: 0.00 61.50


59492 BANKCR20 Business Card 11/28/2018


1 Park Light Fittings 1.85


10 2 - IrrigationBoxes 28.68


11 Wood Handle Cultivator/TineFork-Sweeper Too 68.40


12 Fiberglass Mid Pole Ext,Belted Pole Saw Sheath 248.29


12a Use Tax-FiberglassMid Pole Ext,Be1tedPole Sa' -23.39


13 3 - Large Tooth Curved Blade Hand Saw 177.06


2 Clock - Council Chambers 24.67


3 Light Hardware 11.88


4 CHS Fixture & Fittings 51.41


5 Licensing Fees-Venneer Brush Chipper S/n#1Vl 42.75


6 Licensing Fees-2018Ford F150 lFTEXlE56JK1 49.75


7 Parks Lights Wire/'1‘001 31.94


8 Landscape Seminar, WTLS-M Harbison, J Chrie 270.00


8a Reeerti?cation Prog Dec 12 & 13-M Harbison, J 540.00


9 3 x Sloan C-100500-K Flushmate 84.93


Total for Check Number 59492: 0.00 1,608.22


59493 BANKCR26 Business Card 11/28/2018
1 Regional Meeting 2018-M Todd & P Pruitt 100.00


2 Breakfast 10/11-WMCAFall Conf-GPtister . 14.30


3 Wi-FiAccess-Council Packet 4.95


4 SCCT November 15thMtg-M Todd 35.00


5 LodgingWAPRO Fall Conf 10/24-I0/25-G P?st 160.86


6 2019 Oversized Planning Calendar-Usedto Trac‘ 33.31


7 Binders & Dividers—20l9-2020Budget Books 105.53


Total for Check Number 59493: 0.00 453.95


59494 Bankcr27 BusinessCard 11/28/2018
1 Taxi 10/05-IACP Conf-S Eastman 55.07


2 IACP Conf Registration-S Eastman 445.00


3 MasterparkAirport Parking SeaTac-IACPParkin 83.04


4 Lodging 10/06-10/09-S Eastman 710.19


5 MTR Freeway LightbarCover Kit ' 227.92


6 Refreshments Corporal Appointment 37.88


7 WSNIA Open Source Intelligence Class-B Foutc 49.00


Total for Check Number 59494: 0.00 1,608.10


59495 CANNONR Rosario Cannon 11/28/2018
6952 Circle Time with Friends 10/22-11/19 #6952 532.00


Total for Check Number 59495: 0.00 532.00


59496 CDW CDW Government 11/28/2018
PXV8897 2 Cisco Direct-City Hall WiFi Upgrade 285.60


QBB6l32 79-MS EA 0365 ESGOV SS/79-MS EA 0365 A1 3,048.20


Total for Check Number 59496: 0.00 3,333.80


AP Checksby Date - Detail by CheckDate ( 12/6/2018 1:22PM) Page 2


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 225 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


59497 CINTAS Cintas Corporation Loc. #460 11/28/2018


4011938265 Floor Mat Service 11/09 96-19


4011938265a Floor Mat Service 11/09 56-03


Total for Check Number 59497: 0.00 152.22


59498 COMCAST Comcast 11/28/2018
0457011 High Speed Internet Fee l1/18-12/17 191.40


Total for Check Number 59498: 0.00 191.40


59499 EASTMANS Scott Eastman 11/28/2018
Reimb Per Diem Dinner-WASPCConf 11/12-S Eastman 23.00


Reimb Per Diema Breakfast& Dinner-WASPC Cont‘11/13-S Eastr 34.00


Reimb Per Dicmb Breakfast-WASPC Conf I1/14-S Eastman 11.00


Total for Check Number 59499: 0.00 68.00


59500 ELWING Greg Elwin 11/28/2018
Reimb Per Diem Dinner-WASPC Cont‘ 11/12-G Elwin 23.00
Reimb Per Diema Breakfast & Dinner-WASPC Conf 11/13-G Elwi 34.00
Reimb Per Dicmb Breakfast-WASPC Conf 11/14-G Elwin 11.00


Total for Check Number 59500: 0.00 68.00


59501 ENVIRTCH Envirotech Services Inc 11/28/2018
CD20l901250 De-Icer 5,593.98


Total for Check Number 59501: 0.00 5,593.98


59502 ADLFSASC BSA 11/28/2018
141191 Prof Service-The Farm at Mill Creek l0/0l- 10/3 1,262.73


Total for Check Number 59502: 0.00 1,262.73


59503 EVERMARK Ever-Mark, LLC 11/28/2018
53877 1 - 6’x2' Dibond Sign Panel-"Sullivan Orthodont 309.12


Total for Check Number 59503: 0.00 309.12


59504 FCSGROUP FCS Group 11/28/2018
2923-21811051 Prof Services-Mill Creek Stormwater Rate Study 15,734.88
2947-21811084 Prof Services Rendered to 11/16-IndirectCosts 1,050.00


Total for Check Number 59504: 0.00 16,784.88


59505 GTENORTH Frontier ll/28/2018
425-316-0326 Alanu System Linc Chgs-Cook House 11/16-121 53.28


Total for Check Number 59505: 0.00 53.28


59506 GRYOSBRN Gray & Osborne Inc 11/28/2018
7 Prof Serv-35th Ave Recon CM & lnsp 09/ 16 tp 1 61,519.39


Total for Check Number 59506: 0.00 61,519.39


59507 HARBORPC Harbor Paci?c Contractors, Inc 11/28/2018
No. 5 35th Ave Reconstruction09/30-11/03 773,175.58


Total for Check Number 59507: 0.00 773,175.58


59508 NWCASC Honey Bucket 11/28/2018
0550870886 Honey Bucket Rental - Veterans Day Parade 295.50


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/6/2018 1:22 PM) Page 3


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 226 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 59508: 0.00 295.50


59509 HORIZON Horizon Distributors Inc 11/28/2018
2M077538 3 Leaf Rakes, 3 Forged Forks, 1 Manure Fork 340.31


Total for Check Number 59509: 0.00 340.31


59510 JRWENTRP JRW Enterprises 11/28/2018
4290 Service Call, Labor, PD Re-Key 531.74


Total for Check Number59510: 0.00 531.74


59511 KPFFCON KPFF Consulting Engineers 11/28/2018
236335 Prof Serv-35th Ave Recon 09/01-09/28 5,414.81


Total for CheckNumber59511: 0.00 5,414.81


59512 Laikwok Lai Kwok Chiu 11/28/2018
Reimb Shrubs Reimbursementfor Replacement Shrubs 700.00


Total for Check Number59512: 0.00 700.00


59513 LONGBUIL LONG Building Technologies, Inc 11/28/2018
SRVCE00942l2 Clean Up S2 Power Supply-Rewired S2 Control: 682.97


Total for Check Number 59513: 0.00 682.97


59514 NelsonCa Carrie Nelson 11/28/2018
Reimb Exp Reimb Supplies-Decorating forTrunkor Treat E 32.86


Total for Check Number 59514: 0.00 32.86


59515 NELSONM Melissa Nelson 11/28/2018
6943 Music for Preschool-Oct 10/19-11/16#6943 728.00
6944 Music for Preschool-Oct 10/19-1ll 16#6944 682.50


Total for Check Number 59515: 0.00 1,410.50


59516 NWADMINI Northwest Administrators 11/28/2018 VOID
851943822 PolizzottoCOBRA-December Payment 1,246.57


Total for Check Number 59516: 1,246.57 0.00


59517 OMWATT Ogden Murphy Wallace Attorneys 11/28/2018
817633 Prof Legal Services-CED-Sept 1,392.50
817634 Prof Legal Services-Engr-ExplorationPark-Sept 1,441.25
817634a Prof Legal Services-Engr-TransportationMitigat 303.75
8l7634b Prof Legal Services-Engr-SW Utility Rate Study 1,090.00
8176340 Prof Legal Services-Engr-35th Ave SE Reconstn 352.00
818130 Prof Legal Services-Franchises-Oct 379.50


Total for Check Number 59517: 0.00 4,959.00


59518 PGFREEZ Page Freezer 11/28/2018
INV-5472 PagcFrcczcr WcbsitcArchiving-12 Months 1,188.00


Total for Check Number 59518: 0.00 1,188.00


59519 PAWS PAWS 11/28/2018
October 2018 Animals Brought to Shelter-Oct 1,086.00


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date ( 12/6/2018 1:22PM) Page 4


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 227 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 59519: 0.00 1,086.00


59520 ELLITIRE PepBoys-Remittance Dept 11/28/2018
064462004648 LOF, Front Struts, Rear Shocks-Car #38 1,723.43


064462004705 LOF-Car#44 40.55


Total for Check Number 59520: 0.00 1,763.98


59521 PERTEET Perteet Inc 11/28/2018
2016028l.0l 1-3 Prof Serv Mill Creek TrafficMitigationFee Upd 3,985.02


20160281.014-4 Prof Serv-The Farm at MillCreek 10/01-10/28 1,622.50


2018001S.000-8 Prof Serv-Mill Creek Storm Pipe Assessment 10. 450.00


Total for Check Number 59521: 0.00 6,057.52


59522 PHILPUB Philips Publishing 11/28/2018
29488 MillCreek Magazine-Winter 2018 15,392.81


29488a Ad Revenue-MillCreek Magazine-Winter2018 -7,719.00


Total for Check Number 59522: 0.00 7,673.81


59523 PILCHVT Pilchuck Vet Hospital 11/28/2018
74827 Emergency Consultation, Fecal Exam, Meds 10/I 186.66


Total for Check Number 59523: 0.00 186.66


59524 PLANTSCP PlantscapesHorticultural Services 11/28/2018
47357E LandscapeMaintenance-Medians/SR527-Nov 1,283.85


47357Ea LandscapeMaintenance-Ditches-Nov 1,754.74


47357Eb LandscapeMaintenance-CHS-Nov 580.86


47357Ec Landscape Maintenance-CHN-Nov 130.96


47357Ed LandscapeMaintenance-Parks-Nov 7,566.56


Total for Check Number 59524: 0.00 11,316.97


59525 WASPC WA. Assoc of Sheriffs & Police Chiefs 11/28/2018
Dues 2018-00680 2018 WASPC Associate Dues - S Eastman 75.00


1NV028491 WASPC 2018 Fall Conf-G E1win‘&S Eastman 600.00


Total for Check Number 59525: 0.00 675.00


59526 SNOCPUD PUD No. 1 of SnohomishCounty 11/28/2018
200154458 2720 Seattle 1-Ii11Rd10/10-11/07 15.66


200797223 3401 148th St SE 10/20-11/16 18.97


201345386 2501 147thPl SE 10/20-11/19 46.73


201353968 15728Main St 10/05-11/01 1,395.29


201663515 14600 16thAve SE 10/03-10/31 19.50


201948601 13903N Creek Dr 10/16-11/13 690.54


202212361 928 Dumas Rd 10/16-11/14 133.59


202667499 2024 Seattle Hill Rd 10/10-11/07 33.42


202693008 15720Main St 10/16-11/13 1,630.70


202767935 Street Lights-21 Lights-400W 312.90


202852059 15720Main St Unit B 10/16-11/13 343.40


203028121 4560 SAC 10/06-11/01 49.68


203164694 13510N Creek Dr 10/16-11/14 48.62


203211552 13628N Creek Dr 10/16-11/14 48.25


203348081 1481035th Ave SE 10/10-11/06 54.84


203388152 15429Bothell Everett Hwy 10/09-11/02 13.50


221897242 14100 35th Ave SE 10/10-11/05 73.36


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/6/2018 1:22PM) Page 5


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 228 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 59526: 0.00 4,928.95


59527 Rasmussk Kristen Rasmussen 11/28/2018
Reimb Exp Reimb Expenses-Gi? Wrap & Bows-YAB Event 58.02


Total for Check Number 59527: 0.00 58.02


59528 EMPSECD Employment Security Dept- Records ll/28/2018
18-051633-RDUC5 5 Work History Research-S Yurevich 13.50


Totalfor CheckNumber 59528: 0.00 13.50


59529 SANDACLN Sanda Cleaners ll/28/2018
Sept/Oct Unifonn Dry Cleaning-G Elwin & S Eastman 9/‘ 359.13


Sept/Octa UniformDry Cleaning-S Conner 9/8-10/30 233.24


Total for Check Number59529: 0.00 592.37


59530 SHI SHI InternationalCorp ll/28/2018
B09137224 Barracuda Networks-lYear EnergizeUpdates 11. 2,449.96


Total for Check Number 59530: 0.00 2,449.96


59531 SILVERL SilvcrlakeWater District 11/28/2018
32140-27632 13903N Creek Dr-Irrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


32141-27633 13903N Creek Dr 10/0|-10/31 72.05


35996-27914 14600SR 527-Irrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


35997-27914 13800N SR 527-lrrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


35998-27914 1600SR 527-lrrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


35999-27914 15200 SR 527-Irrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


36000-27914 15100N SR 527-lrrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


36016-27914 SR 527 & Trillium Blvd-Irrig 10/0|-10/31 9.60


36025-27914 14600SR 527-lrrig 10/01-10/31 7.60


36026-27914 SR 527 & Dumas Rd-Irrig 10/0|-10/31 7.60


36365-27593 Dumas Rd Irrigation 10/01-10/31 22.30


37034-30017 14721 12thAve SE-Irrig 10/01-10/31 27.60


Total for CheckNumber 59531: 0.00 192.35


59532 SNOCOC Snohomish County Corrections ll/28/2018
2018-4715 Jail Service Fees - Sept 12,238.67


Total for Check Number 59532: 0.00 12,238.67


59533 SNYDERRF Snyder Roo?ng 11/28/2018
5873103 RepairLeak-CHN Bldg 460.36


Total for Check Number 59533: 0.00 460.36


59534 SNDPUBIN Sound Publishing Inc 11/28/2018
EDH832122 BC: Mill Creek Sports Park Improvements-Cons 103.20


EDI-1833616 Public Hearing Notice-Amendments to MCMC 49.88


EDH834505 City Applications-Kazziep,Preliminary Short P1: 61.92


EDH834734 Pub of Ord No. 2018-838 27.52


Total for Check Number 59534: 0.00 242.52


59535 SDISTCRI South District Court 11/28/2018
8Z0935291 JIS Fee 820935291-R Dhaliwal 23.00


8Z093529la Auto Theft 8Z0935291-RDhaliwal 10.00


8Z0935291b PSEA 8Z0935291-R Dhaliwal 31.09


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/6/2018 1:22PM) Page 6


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 229 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


8Z093529lc Trauma Care 8Z093529l-R Dhaliwal 5.00


8Z0935291d CVC 8Z093529l-R Dhaliwal 0.85


8Z0935291e PSEA 35% 8Z093529l-R Dhaliwal 16.91


8Z093529l f Traumatic Brain Injury 820935291-R Dhaliwal 2.00


8Z093529l g General Fund 820935291-R Dhaliwal 47.15


Total for Check Number 59535: 0.00 136.00


59536 SDISTCRT South District Court 11/28/2018
1000486358 Filing Fees SD Court-Oct 5,237.85


I000486358a Interpreter Costs-Oct 1,064.28


Total for Check Number 59536: 0.00 6,302.13


59537 STOWE Stowe Development& Strategies, LLC 11/28/2018
Ml ICM 005 Interim City Manager Services 10/01-10/31 25,987.50


Total for Check Number 59537: 0.00 25,987.50


59538 TERMINIX Terminix Processing Center 11/28/2018
380876000 Pest Control-WO# 15786094047-MCLibrary 80.59


Total for CheckNumber 59538: 0.00 80.59


59539 THORBARIV Thorson Barnett & McDonald, P.C. 11/28/2018
80523 Prof Legal Serv-COBRA& Withholding-RPoliz 879.50


Total for Check Number 59539: 0.00 879.50


59540 UNITDREC United Recycling & Container 11/28/2018
1800076 Sof‘fallChips-Pine Meadow Park 2,499.75


Total for Check Number 59540: 0.00 2,499.75


59541 WAALARM Washington Alarm 11/28/2018
449366 Service Labor, ServiceCall, battery-FirePanel-C 377.09


Total for Check Number 59541: 0.00 - 377.09


59542 WAVEDIV WaveDivision Holdings, LLC 11/28/2018
07144664 Fiber Lease-15728Main St-To 3000 Rockefeller 657.78


Total for Check Number 59542: 0.00 657.78


59543 WI-IPACIFI WHPaci?c, Inc 11/28/2018
lN67724W Prof Serv-Seattle Hill Rd Preservation Thru 11/1 39,020.65


Total for CheckNumber 59543: 0.00 39,020.65


S9544 WRIGHTJ Jere Wright 11/28/2018
Reimb Lic Fee 2019 Pesticide License Renewal Fee-J Wright 33.00


Reimb Supplies Clear Caulking-Leaking Window 12.13


Total for Check Number 59544: 0.00 45.13


Total for 11/28/2018: 1.24657 1,024,993.49


59545 AWC AWC Employee Bene?t Trust 11/30/2018
12/2018 R Polizzotto COBRA-DecemberPayment 1,246.57


AP Checks by Date - Detailby Check Date (12/6/2018 1:22PM) Page 7


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 230 of 238







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 59545: 0.00 l,246.57


59546 Bankcard Bank of America 11/30/2018
1 Phone Case, Car Charger 7l .58


10 WSNIA—OpenSource lntel-T Hoflack 49.00


11 WSNIA-OpenSource Intel-S White 49.00


12 28 Pkgs-72 Small Plastic AmericanFlags 4x6 In- 277.76


13 Tabs - Corporal Binders 13.20


14 Shipping Chgs-Mail Pulse Pads BackAWC 47.05


15 LodgingACCIS Fall Conf-JBusch 360.0]


16 Facebook Mill Creek Veterans Day Events-100 \ 750.00


17 Toll Charges-Car#38 6.75


18 Facebook-MillCreekVeterans Day Events-100 ‘ 750.00


19a Snacks - Employee Bene?t Open EnrollmentFai 24.58


2 Toll Charges-Car #10-DC 17.25


20 Motorcycle Helmet Face Shield 61.25


21 Toll Chgs-Staff Car 32-WCIA Mtg-PLauennan 10.25


22 MyBuilding Perrnit.com MonthlyFee 59.95


3 Red, White & Blue 24" Wreath-VeteransDay Pa 192.68


4 Sensor Cloud Monitoring Fee 10.94


5 Facebook-MillCreek Veterans Day Events-100 ‘ 432.34


6 One Dozen 12 x 18 US Cotton Stick American F 26.48


7 Red & Blue Patriotic Goody Bags-VeteransDay‘ 179.73


8 AA Batteries-ReplenishSupplies 15.44


9 1006Series Face Plate 99.00


Total for Check Number 59546: 0.00 3,504.24


59547 CBALDDES Christopher Baldwin Design 11/30/2018
3 Design Services-HistoricPreservation Project 2,500.00


Total for Check Number 59547: 0.00 2,500.00


59548 ZAC&Tl-IOIV Zachor & Thomas, lnc., P.S. 11/30/2018
l8-MCR00l0 Monthly Prosecution Legal Retainer-Oct 9,053.47


Total for Check Number 59548: 0.00 9,053.47


Total for 11/30/2018: 0.00 16.30428


Report Total (68 checks): L246-57 1,04|.302.77


AP Checks by Date - Detail by CheckDate 02/6/2018 1:22 PM) Page 8


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Approval of Checks #59481 through #59548 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 231 of 238







-‘=4'4
.,/""~‘5-i/


M ' 11”
Date: Decemberll 2018 WASHINGTON


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
11/21/2018 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $147,282.61
11/21/2018 AC1-lWire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $24,442.27
11/21/2018 ACH Wire MEBT—Wilmington Trust $16,549.94
11/21/2018 ACH Wire- ICMA RC—Def. Comp $1,717.52
11/23/2018 ACH Wire- BAC—Flex Spending Acct $1,491.60


Total $191,483.94


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of$191 483.94.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


G:\F|NANCE\Restricled (old I drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets 18\Payro|| Voucher Approval 12112018.docx
12/6/2018


AGENDA ITEM #M.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $191,483.94 (Audit Com... Page 232 of 238







ssm


.05
.u.lu0ooE


1Isa
£u.§s8B


—
0


383
:5.


H
28


E
m


._.=
..0


w
ho


uozm
o m


o_>
5m


5m
>


>
_._E


oz
0_u=


0<
n_


aem
z


S
am


m
_.aw


n.
m


S
~:~=


F
H


28
.5".


e
“.3532


sum
ac


2s<
auoo


E
m


a?oo
am


om
me


2.
._$>


>
m


S
~.m


_.:_.
M


9.__2m
__8__m


n_
.58


Hseam
xm


m
m


u .._:=
_>


_n_O
>


._._0
>


._m
E


E
:m


_m
o_um


_um
..w


$.v-..
E


.
>


«=
_n_m


:O
Q


w
om


=
2»m


..._m
E


._.
2.02


..:o>
.


m
9.a._.


.
a___%


_._550
8.35:


8.
m


u_o\<
>


m
nm


.n_E
_._m


E
.m


:.€<
_....._w332”.


scum


3
«S


.
«E


.
aw


.¢«~..E
.e


«=
=


ouu<
50>


E
2".


uaa?on
E


:oE
<


.52.
___.a_._:20...


<
m


<
E


.B
._.


sue
on.


.u2_o
n_n_<


a..2a:a..._.
.350


-.~3.§
<


m
<


ae»
l


62
48¢


.2333
asap


.83
T


no
.8...


.uE
m


_D
_8?w


8.
|xm


|._.
m


|E
8.I:_|.m


oo.:.._.


8
m


m
-


xm
h


?cw
z.


8.
m


w
|.


_:m
|E


m
m


.o.m
.a<


|uIc=
|n.


H
.c.o.._.


om
...w


._9:o>
>


D
D


m
m


a
.:m


E
m


m
m


m
m


< uczu
E


m
cm


m
.m


§_._o>
>


oo
.


m
m


-
aoc?am


s
.25.:2


E
95


22m


8.
.8...


E
2:


_
E


O
C


D
.m


._oum
n_


.
m


E
oE


an
oo:m


§m
w


<
E


:_E
m


..n.
55


m
m


-
.u<


xm
caw38:52


00
m


m
-


E
sm


w
..w


u=
um


_2


m
-328
m


m
-


23.8.2


m
m


m
m


-
E


au?m


8
m


m
-


taco
.200


cc.
m


m
o:m


>
_u<339.0


aE
|oo£


uoE
m


m
am


our.
uszan


«Q
8...


:55“...


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #M


.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $191,483.94 (Audit C
om


...
Page 233 of 238







4


~


Payment Approval Confirmation BankofAmerica4?
Company: City of MillCreek '


Requester: Kottke, Sandy ernll Lynch
Run Date: 11/21/2018 12:21:56 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwlre


status: Processing by Bank Template Name: MATRIXIMEBT
Transaction Number: 18BLD1738lEU1G95 Template Code: WILTRUST


Debit Account Information


Debit Bank: M
Debit Account-


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Beneficiary Details


Bene?ciary Name: MATRIXTRUST COMPANY Beneficiary Account: C
Beneficiary Address: NA Beneficiary Bank ID:‘


Beneficiary City: NA JPMORGAN CHASE BANK.NA
Beneficiary Postal code: NA 1111 POLARISPKVW


Beneficiary country: US - UnitedStates ofAmerica COLUMBUS
US - UnitedStates of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details
Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 11/21/2018


‘ credit Amount: 16.549.94


Optional information


Senders Reference Number: CITYMILLCREEK Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek n3177e


Additional Routing


lnterrnediary Bank ID: Receiver information:


Control Information


Input: sankottke input Time: 111211201812:17:56 PM CST
Approved: sankottke Time: 111211201812:21:43 PM CST


Initial Confirmation: Wi'X:2018112100355094


AGENDA ITEM #M.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $191,483.94 (Audit Com... Page 234 of 238







~


Payment Approval Confirmation


Company: Cityof MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 11/21/2018 12:21:56 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:UrgentIWire


Status: Processing by Bank
Transaction Number: 18BLD1626EWOY08


Debit Account information


Debit Bank: j
Debit Account: —


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name: ICMARC
Bene?ciary Address: P.O. Box 64553


Bene?ciary City: Baltimore
Bene?ciary Postal Code: 21264-4553


Bene?ciary Country: US - UnitedStates of America


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD
Credit Amount: 1,717.52


Optional information


sender's Reference Number: 302029


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control information


Input: sankottke
Approved: sankottke


Initial Con?rmation: WTX:2018112100355095


BankofAmerica
MerrillLynch


Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Template Code: ICMA


Bene?ciary Account: —
Bene?ciary Bank iD:-


MANUFACTURERSANDTRADERS TR C
ONE MANDT PLAZA.15TH FL
BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Bene?ciary Mobile Number:


Value Date: 11/21/2018


Bene?ciary lnforrnatlon: Cityof MillCreek 302029


Receiver lnfonnation:


input Time: 11/21/2018 12:16:41 PM CST
Time: 11/21/2018 12:21:43 PM CST


AGENDA ITEM #M.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $191,483.94 (Audit Com... Page 235 of 238







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 11/21/2018


City of MillCreek Report Time: 12:15:35 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 _ Effective Date: 11I23I2018


ACH ID: — Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Released Created By: SANKO1'l'KE


Released By: SANKOTTKE


Name Q Amount __C_ Bank ID ?ung $5338Trace #


BAC EENEF”A°M'” $1,491.60 c j j» c


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1,491.60 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .491.60 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?11/21/2018


AGENDA ITEM #M.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $191,483.94 (Audit Com... Page 236 of 238







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: December 7, 2018 
 


 


January 8, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due December 26) 


 Terry Ryan Check Presentation – Exploration 


Park (tentative) 


 A&B Board Appointments  


 2019 Council Assignments  


 2019 Community Events 


 LEOFF Board  


 Community Funding Discussion  


 


January 22, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due January 8) 


 Presentation: Health District Update 


 Presentation: Waste Management  


 MCMC Amendments - Code Enforcement 


 


February 5, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due January 22) 


  


 


February 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due January 29) 


 AWC Center for Quality Communities 


Scholarship Nominee Selection 


 


DECEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24 31 25  26  27  28  29  


       


JANUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


    1  2  3  4  5  


       


6  7  8  9  10  11  12  


       


13  14  15  16  17  18  19  


       


20  21  22  23  24  25  26  


       


27  28  29  30  31      


       


FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28      


       


Council 


Council 


Holiday 


Holiday 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #P.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 237 of 238







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Business signs  


 Business License Fee Increase 


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Utility Project Management  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  


 ST3 Stations 


 EGUV Development Agreement 


 SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 


 5G Presentation 


 Legislative Retreat 


 


MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24 31 25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30          


       


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #P.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 238 of 238





		Agenda

		C. Mill Creek Sports Park Rate Increase

		D. 35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 8 to Contract 2013-1091

		E. 35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Addendum No. 1 and No. 2 to Contract 2018-1405

		F. Exploration Park Contract Award

		G. Ordinance Amending MCMC 5.04 - Business Licenses

		H. Adoption of Personnel Polices

		H. Attachment A - Resolution 2018-____

		H. Attachment B - Personnel Administration Manual

		1.1 Personnel Administration Manual

		1.2 Definitions

		1.3 Equal Employment Opportunity

		1.4 Employees with Disabilities

		1.5 Whistleblowing

		1.6 Conflicts of Interest

		2.1 Recruitment and Selection

		2.2 Position Descriptions

		2.3 Background and Reference Checks

		2.4 Trial Period

		2.5 Performance Management

		2.6 Separation from Employment

		3.1 Personal Appearance and Dress Code

		3.2 Attendance

		3.3 Anti-Harassment

		3.4 Drug Free Workplace

		3.5 Non-Smoking Workplace

		3.6 Workplace Violence

		3.7 Personal Weapons

		3.8 Disciplinary Process

		3.9 Complaint Resolution

		3.10 Personal Relationships

		3.11 Safety in the Workplace

		3.12 Information Technology

		3.13 Email Communications

		3.14 Personal Electronics

		4.1 Employment Status

		4.2 Salary Administration and Pay Practices

		4.3 Re-Hires and Bridging Service Gaps

		4.4 Work Hours and Pay Period

		4.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time

		4.6 Callback Pay

		4.7 Incentives and Premiums

		4.8 Recording Time and Timecards

		5.1 Holidays

		5.2 Annual Leave

		5.3 Exempt Leave

		5.4 Sick Leave

		5.5 FMLA

		5.6 Jury . Court Duty

		5.7 Bereavement Leave

		5.8 Other Types of Leave

		5.9 Temporary Accommodations

		6.1 Flexible Benefit Plan

		6.2 Health and Welfare Plans

		6.3 Municipal Employee Benefit Trust

		6.4 Retirement Plans

		6.5 Extended Health Benefits (COBRA)

		6.6 Wellness Program

		6.7 Recognition and Appreciation

		6.8 Training and Tuition Reimbursement

		7.1 Employment Records

		7.2 Release of Confidential Information

		7.3 Inclement Weather

		7.4 Volunteer and Intern Programsl



		H. Attachment C - Redline Version of Policy 400-01

		I. Agreement for Professional Legal Services

		J. Historical Preservation Project

		K. City Council Appointment Process

		L. Check Vouchers

		M. Payroll Vouchers

		P. Council Planning Schedule




